CASTROVILLE P.O. BOX 1065
COMMUNITY OFFICE: 11499 GEIL STREET

CASTROVILLE, CA 95012

SERVICES DISTRICT FAX (831) 633-3103

24-HOUR TELEPHONE: (831) 633-2560

Prasident - Cosme Padilla General Manager - Eric Tynan
Vice Presidaent - Ron Stefani Board Secretary - Lidia Santos
Director - Glenn Oania

Diractor ~James R. Cochran Website: CastrovilleCSD.org

Diractor - Greg MacMillan

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TUESDAY, JULY 18, 2023 — 4:30 P.M.
DISTRICT BOARD ROOM — 11499 GEIL STREET

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is needed to participate in
the Board meeting, please contact Lidia Santos, Board Secretary during regular business hours at (831)
633-2560. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS — (Limited to three minutes per speaker within the jurisdiction of items not on the

agenda. Public will have the opportunity to ask questions or make statements as the Board addresses each
agenda itern.)

CONSENT CALENDAR:
1. Approve the Draft Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, June 20, 2023 — motion item
CORRESPONDENCE:

1. Memo from ACWA JPIA to All Property Program Members regarding 2023-24 Property Program 20%
increase in the Property Program rates effective for policy year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024,

-




AGENDA, Page 2
July 18, 2023
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. Salinas Valiey Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Seawater Intrusion Model Update

2. Monterey Bay Water Works Association, Annual Vendor Show/BBQ, Thursday, September 21, 2023
at Castroville Community Center

3. Central Coast Wetlands Group ‘Water 101’ Workshop Series

PRESENTATION:

1. Central Coast Wetland Group on the Salinas Valley Multi-benefit Land Repurposing Program —
Jenny Balmagia, Lower Salians Valley SGMA Watershed Coordinator

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Approve 3% salary increase for General Manager Eric Tynan, effective July 13, 2023 and set goals
for the General Manager to accomplish for 2023/2024 - motion item

2. Consider enrolling/investing with California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System
(California CLASS) Prime Fund, a joint exercise of powers entity authorized under Section 6509.7,
CA Gov. Code, pooled investment option that was created via joint exercise of powers agreement
by and among California public agencies or transfer additional funds from LAIF to CAMP — motion
item

3. California State Transportation Agency, Utility Policy Exception Request for this multi-cbjective
Asset Management Project located in Monterey County on State Route (SR) 183 in the
community of Castroville that seeks to address several transportation needs on SR 183 from just
south of Del Monte Avenue to the SR 1/SR 183 junction — Eric Tynan, General Manager

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

1. Consider approving the Castroville CSD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan - motion item

2. Update on the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) General Manager Leadership
Summit, June 25-27, 2023, Olympic Valley, CA attended by Castroville CSD General Manager -
Eric Tynan, General Manager

3. Update on Well levels — Eric Tynan, General Manager

4. Update on Asset Management and Maintenance Projects (Castroville Water Valves Project,
contractor selected Monterey Peninsula Engineering) — Eric Tynan, General Manager

5. Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) projects: (1) Caltrans
Merritt Street Beautification Project, (2) Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project, (3)
Castroville Boulevard Roundabout Project — Eric Tynan, General Manager

6. Update on status of grants/projects for Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 (Washington Sewer Trunk Line
Bypass), Moss Landing-Sewer Zone 3 (Professional Engineering Services for Moss Landing
Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project) land acquisition for Lift
Station 1, Castroville-Water Zone 1 (Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank
Project, Well No. 6) for system upgrades and improvements, Castroville Landmark Sign at
Highway 183 and DeSalter at Well No. 3 - Eric Tynan, General Manager

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board of

Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports. N

1. Update on Monterey One Water board meeting — Ron Stefani, Director and Eric Tynan, General
Manager

2. Update on the Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Ron Stefani, Director

3. Update on other meetings/educational classes attended by Castroville CSD Directors



AGENDA, Page 3
July 18, 2023
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GENERAL OPERATIONS:

1. General Manager’s Report — Compliance Update, Current Projects Update, Seminars Update
Staff Update, Suggestive Projects Discussions
2. Operation’s Report
a) Water — Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issues
c) Sewer & Storm Drain — Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service
Update, Safety Issues
3. Customer/Billing Reports — A/R Update, Water Sales, Water Usage

4. Financial Reports —Quarterly Financial Statements, * Treasures Report-L.A.LF., Internal Report
and Administration Update

CHECK REGISTER - Receive and file the Check Register for the month of June 2023 — motion
item

ITEMS FOR NEXT MONTHS AGENDA: Tuesday, August 15, 2023 at 4:30 p.m.

CLOSE:
Adjournment to the next regular scheduled Board Meeting — motion item

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the
record is distributed to ali, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the
District office located at 11499 Geil Street, Castroville, California.

Certification of Posting
| certify that on July 14, 2023, | posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting

place of the Board of Directors of the Castroville Community Services District, said time being at least
72 hours in advance of the meeting of the Board of Directors (Government Code Section 54954.2).
Executed at Castroville, California, on July 14, 2023.

Lidia Santos, Board Secretary



1.

THE OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
June 20, 2023

President Cosme Padilla called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m.
ROLL CALL:

Directors Present: President Cosme Padilla, Vice President Ron Stefani, Director James Cochran and
Director Greg MacMillan

Absent: Director Glenn Oania
General Manager: Eric Tynan
Secretary to the Board: Lidia Santos
Staff Present:

Guest: Mike McCullough, M1W Director of External Affairs, Bob Shull, Public Trust Advisor and
Christine Kemp, District Attorney

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by President Cosme Padilla.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

CONSENT CALENDAR

A motion was made by Ron Stefani and seconded by James Cochran to approve the minutes of the

May 9, 2023 Budget & Personnel Committee Meeting. The motion carried by the following roll call
votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

2. A motion was made by Ron Stefani and seconded by James Cochran to approve the minutes of the

May 16, 2023 Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors;
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Oania
Consent Calendar accepted as presented
CORRESPONDENCE:
1. None
Correspondence Calendar accepted as presented

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. 2022 Annual Water Quality Report available and posted at the following URL:
www.CastrovilleCSD.org/files/138715971.pdf

n4

Informational items accepted as presented



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2

PRESENTATIONS: Board President Cosme Padilla skipped down to item 2 so Mr. Shull with Public
Trust could present first and then returned to the order of business on the agenda.

1. Monterey One Water proposed sewer billing change; community presentation and feedback — Vice
President Ron Stefani who also sits on the Monterey One Water Board (M1W), introduces Mike
McCullough, Director of External Affairs. He is here today to discuss the proposed billing process of
having the annual fee itemized on the property tax bill by the Monterey County (Tax-Treasurer
Division) instead of the current direct mailing of bi-monthly customer bills for wastewater service by
2024/2025 as it would be more cost effective for its customers and M1W. The proposed sewer billing
change and community presentation and feedback information can be viewed on pages 16-23 of this
board packet.

2. California CLASS on investment opportunities for Castroville CSD — Bob Shull with Public Trust
Advisors informed the Board that California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CLASS) is
a joint power authority investment pool, which offers public agencies a convenient method for investing
in highly liquid, investment-grade securities carefully selected to optimize interest earnings while
maximizing safety and liquidity. California CLASS is overseen and governed by a Board of Trustees.
California CLASS is a client-first and user-friendly cash management solutions designed for California
Public Agencies of all sizes. California CLASS provides participants the following benefits: Convenient,
modern transaction portal, dedicated client service team equally committed to all California public
agencies, portfolios managed in accordance with California Government Code, transparent
governance by Board of Trustees and portfolios marked-to-market with net asset value and yields
posted to website daily. Furthermore, when you invest in California CLASS Prime fund, you have
access to your funds on any business day. California CLASS strives to provide competitive returns
while adhering to the objectives of safety and liquidity, current yield 5.2%. They are similar to CAMP,
which Castroville CSD also invests with. Public agencies may become participants simply by filling out
the Participant Registration Form. Mr. Shull thanked the Board for their time. This item just
informational at this time and the Board may take action at next month's board meeting if they wish to
invest with California CLASS.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. Approve “Castroville CSD Investment and Deposit Policy" for fiscal year 2022/2023 and 2023/2024 —
The policies can be viewed on pages 24-33 of this board packet. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and
seconded by Greg MacMillan to approve the “Castroville CSD Investment and Deposit Policy” for fiscal
year 2022/2023 and 2023/2024. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

2. Consider approving audit proposal with Fechter & Company Certified Public Accountants for three
years of audit services: 2024, 2025 & 2026 — General Manager Eric Tynan recommended the Board
approve the proposal for audit services with Fechter & Company Certified Public Accountants for fiscal
years 2024, 2025 and 2026 as they have shown to have experience and talent to provide the District
competent, professional and most importantly, defensible financial oversight. The memo and proposal
he addressed to the Board can be viewed on pages 34-36 of this board packet. A motion is made by
Greg MacMillan and seconded by James Cochran to approve the proposal with Fechter & Company
Certified Public Accountants for three years of audit services: 2024, 2025 & 2026. The motion carried
by the following roll call votes:

05



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting

Page 3
AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

. Consider approving MNS Engineers proposals for Professional Engineering Services - Washington
Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Regulatory Permitting Support ($19,622) and Washington Sewer Trunk Line
Bypass Right-of-Way Acquisition ($81,610) total $101,232 — After a serious discussion with MNS
regarding confusion and performance issues, General Manager Eric Tynan recommended the Board
consider approving both of these proposals. A memo and the proposal addressing the Board can be
viewed on pages 37-56 of this board packet. In addition, he has received notice award for $3.5 million
of grant funding. After some discussion a motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg
MacMillan to approve MNS Engineers proposals for Professional Engineering Services - Washington
Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Regulatory Permitting Support ($19,622) and Washington Sewer Trunk Line

Bypass Right-of-Way Acquisition ($81,610) total $101,232. The motion carried by the following roll
cail votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Oania

. Consider approving MNS Engineers proposal for Professional Engineering Services-Moss Landing
Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project Amendment Request No. 2 ($59,014) — General Manager
Eric Tynan recommended the Board consider approving Amendment Request No. 2 for this project.
Amendment Request No. 2 covers the completion of revisions to the technical studies and
administrative draft Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration as well as the increased cost of the
cultural resources records search and out-of-scope work related the presence of two known cultural
resources within the Area of Potential Effect. A memo an the proposal addressing the Board can be
viewed on pages 57-64. Amendment No. 1 was previously approved by General Manager Eric Tynan
for $14,520 for arborist survey and report. After some discussion, a motion is made by James Cochran
and seconded by Ron Stefani to approve MNS Engineers proposal for Professional Engineering
Services-Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project Amendment Request No. 2
($59,014). The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

. Consider approving Pedestrian Overpass Maintenance “Landscape” Agreement with Department of
Transportation Referred to as “State”, placed within State Highway right of way on State Route 156 as
per Exhibit A — General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that he had District Legal Counsel
Review the agreement as he had made changes to the agreement. A memo and the agreement
addressing the Board to consider approving the agreement as written can be viewed on pages 65-70
of this board packet. Under Landscaping he wanted to make sure it was clear Castroville CSD would
only be providing services for mural maintenance, graffiti removal and existing lighting maintenance. It
is anticipated that North County Park & Recreation District will take on most of the “Landscaping and
Parklet Maintenance.” District Legal Counsel Christine Kemp reiterated what General Manager Eric
Tynan stated, that in this agreement under Landscaping, Castroville CSD would only be providing
services for mural maintenance, graffiti removal and existing lighting maintenance. A motion is made
by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg MacMillan to approve the Pedestrian Overpass Maintenance

06



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4

“Landscape” Agreement with Department of Transportation Referred to as “State”, placed within State
Highway right of way on State Route 156 as per Exhibit A, Castroville CSD would only be providing
services for mural maintenance, graffiti removal and existing lighting maintenance. The motion carried
by the following roll cal! votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

State Water Resources Control Board, Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ, Statewide Waste Discharge
Requirements, General Order for Sanitary Sewer Systems — General Manager Eric Tynan reported to
the Board that he has submitted and completed the Sewer System Management Plan certification as
required by the State Water Resources Control Board. However, he also had to submit an application
for recertification for the discharge permit. He completed the application and had contacted State
Water Resources Contro! Board as he needed additional information from them regarding whether an
invoice fee needed to be paid. A response was not received until after the deadline had passed for the
submission of this application, which is also required. He will follow-up with the State Water Resources
Control Board to finalize the application. District Legal Counsel Christine Kemp stated she could
assist if needed. Further information on the Sewer System Management Plan certification and
statewide waste discharge requirements can be viewed on pages 71-78 of this board packet.

. Consider approving the Castroville CSD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan — General Manager Eric
Tynan informed the Board that in 2018 the State passed requirements that water system must meet to
deal with water shortage brought on by the extended drought. Memo and Water Contingency Plan
mandated by SCWRCB addressed to the Board can be viewed on pages 79-93 of this board packet.
After some discussion, Vice President Ron Stefani would like to see Section 1.0 INTRODUCTION
AND BACKROUND reworded for further clarification and presented at next month’s regularly
scheduled board meeting. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg MacMillan to table
this item for the July 18, 2023 regularly scheduled board meeting. The motion carried by the following
roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NQES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

. Approve attendance of Castroville CSD Board of Directors and General Manager to the CSDA Annual
Conference & Exhibitor Showcase, Monterey, August 28-31 — After some discussion, Vice President
Ron Stefani would like to aftend the conference and possibly President Cosme Padilla. General
Manager Eric Tynan is also interested in attending. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by
Greg MacMillan to approve the attendance of Castroville CSD Board of Directors and General
Manager to the CSDA Annual Conference & Exhibitor Showcase, Monterey, August 28-31, 2023. The
motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Oania

07



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 5

9. The Board will take action to designate Eric Tynan, General Manager as labor negotiator for all
employees for the District for purpose of (Gov. Code Sec. 54957.6 ) — After some discussion, a motion is
made by James Cochran and seconded by Ron Stefani to designate Eric Tynan, General Manager as
labor negotiator for all employees for the District for purpose of (Gov. Code Sec. 54957.6). The motion
carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

1. Update on Well levels — General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the well levels report
can be viewed on page 124 of this board packet. Well levels have rebound up but also took a little dip.
Hopefully, they did not drop again as low as they did a few years back. As mentioned prior, even though
we have had all this rain and the well levels have gone up during winter time, they are nowhere near
where they were a few years ago. He will continue working on considering alternate well sites, the
desalter and the pipeline. The District continues to monitor the chloride levels of all the wells. Well #3 is
not pumping and the motor is not hooked up. The static level is dropping for Well #3. A desalter is being
considered for Well #3.

2. Update on Asset Management and Maintenance Projects (Castroville Water Valves Replacement
Project - General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE)
has put in two valves. However, Site #4 will be a little tricky because there are two wells at Site #2 and
1 weli at Site #4. Two valves need to be replaced there and it would have been done sooner preferably
in the winter when there is the lowest water demand but MPE was busy working in Pajaro due to the
massive flooding that occurred in this community. Castroville CSD was not able to obtain the valves from
A & S Metals for this project, which would of lowered the cost. Operators Varela & Orozco both did a
great job assisting MPE as he was out at a conference and Lead Operator Galvez was on vacation. The
project should be completed by next week. As a reminder, Monterey Peninsula Engineering (MPE) was
awarded the project, not to exceed $121,000 for the Castroville Water Valves Replacement Project.

3. Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) projects: (1) Caltrans Merritt
Street Beautification Project, (2) Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project, (3) Castroville
Boulevard Roundabout Project— General Manager Eric Tynan reported that for project (1) Caltrans
emailed maintenance agreements for projects 1 and 2 that they want signed by Castroville CSD. He is
still reviewing agreement 1 and making some revisions as the maintenance of landscaping is included
and should be omitted. This agreement should only say what Castroville CSD will be doing, which is
provide maintenance of lighting and graffiti abatement for Project 1. For Project (2), NCRPD will be
taking care of landscaping and this should be in their agreement with Caltrans that they received and
need to sign. At this board meeting, the Board approved the Pedestrian Overpass Maintenance
“Landscape” Agreement for the (2) Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project. As
mentioned at a previous board meeting, a Cooperative Agreement was signed and Caltrans will raise
the valves and manholes at their cost. Caltrans will also be upgrading the lighting to a historical look.
There might also be some hydrants moved at their cost, which is great for the District. Project (2)
Caltrans also wants a maintenance agreement signed for this project. Castroville CSD will take care of
the solar lighting on the pedestrian bridge, mural maintenance and graffiti abatement. For this project,
Caltrans is planning to put a little parklet on either side of the pedestrian overpass. NCRPD will be
taking the responsibility for the landscaping and the parklet, which is the agreement they will sign with
Caltrans. For project (3) General Manager Eric Tynan stated as mentioned previously, Caltrans will
cover the work for the Castroville Boulevard Roundabout Project 100% and CCSD 0% because of
California S & HC 703. This project will start in 2028.

0]



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 6

4. Update on status of grants for Moss Landing-Sewer Zone 3, Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 and Castroville-
Water Zone 1 for system upgrades and improvements — Moss Landing Wastewater System
Rehabilitation Project (Gantt Chart can be viewed on page 125 of this board packet): Per General
Manager Eric Tynan in order to finalize the purchase of the land, to relocate the lift station, it is advised
to go through LAFCO for approval of an out-of-agency service extension and minor sphere of influence
amendment. A map will now be required showing the annexation and once this is submitted the District
can move forward with purchasing this property. Originally, LAFCO was only asking for a letter from the
Health Department stating why it was a health safety but per LAFCO the letter was not justified. Ortega
(FINEPRO, LLC (seller) approved the sale for the easement for $10,000 in Moss Landing and the District
is still working on finalizing the sale of the easement pending LAFCO approval, which is required before
acquiring the property. Also discussed prior, General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the
pipeline under the bridge is still under the mitigated negative declaration and without the bike bridge
being built by the County, Castroville CSD will have to do it on their own and build under the existing
structure, which is right over the Elkhorn Slough, Marine Sanctuary and Harbor. For this project, MNS is
to prepare a construction application following the 60% completion. In addition, the Coastal Commission
is requiring an arborist to analyze the trees. The Board had approved a proposal with MNS Engineers
to provide professional engineering services for the Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation
Project $462,722 in 2021. General Manager Eric Tynan had previously approved an Amendment No.1
for this project for an additional $14,520 for the arborist and at this meeting, June 20, 2023 the Board
approved Amendment No. 2 for $59,104 as costs have increased due to plans specifications changing
due to the County not building the bridge noted above.

The Washington Bypass Sewer Project (Gantt Chart can be viewed on page 126 of this board
packet): Per General Manager Eric Tynan let the Board know that the ditch affecting this project will not
be considered a judicated body of water by Fish and Game, therefore this reduces the cost of this project.
As mentioned prior, CEQA is complete and 60% detailed design of this project is also complete. The
Coastal Development Permit application is in progress and is pending the land owner authorization.
Castroville CSD still needs easement agreements and/or signed authorization from overlying
landowners. Project permitting for jurisdictional permitting, Caltrans encroachment permit and County
encroachment permit contracts are still pending. As previously mentioned, Castroville CSD applied for
the $3.5 million grant for this project and the State is saying Castroville CSD is good to go for this grant
once the environmental review is completed. Castroville CSD approved the environmental proposal
from MNS Engineers for this project, which is complete. MNS to submit the funding application for the
next phase, spring 2023. The District has applied for a grant for finishing the design and construction,
California Housing Community Development, Infill Infrastructure Grant. In addition, State Water
Resources Control Board, SRF set aside for small disadvantaged communities, “The Small Community
Clean Water Waste Water Funding Program. The proposal for Professional Engineering and
Constructions Management Services-Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Final Design and
Construction (not to exceed $498,141) is contingent on award of grant to Castrovilie CSD. The Board
approved at this meeting, June 20, 2023 MNS Engineers proposals for Professional Engineering
Services-Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Regulatory Permitting Support ($19,622) and
Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Right-of-Way Acquisition ($81,610) total $101,232.

Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank (Gantt Chart can be viewed on page 127 &
Update on page 128 of this board packet): Per General Manager Eric Tynan the hydrogeologic
approach was discussed with Mike Burke the hydrologist with Pueblo who will advance the well contract
documents to nearly bid ready, to be finalized and advertised upon securing project construction funding.
In addition, MNS has substantial budget remaining in the budget ($60k), which MNS will review if these
remaining funds can be used for applying for construction funding for the project. As mentioned prior,
the 30% design has been completed as of May 2022. The 60% design has been completed on the
application for the construction. The District is still working on getting grant funds for the construction of
the deep well and CEQA is complete. MNS to prepare a Future Grant Application if SCDR is a “no go”.
MNS also submitted a grant application on behalf of Castroville CSD for the SCDR grant. However, this
grant is first come first serve and there are 55 applicants ahead of CCSD. Still, partial funding is a
possibility.

09



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 7

Desalter at Well Three (Update on page 128 of this board packet) : Per General Manager Eric Tynan,
he had met with the owner of MNS Engineers and MNS acknowledges the initial grant was not completed
satisfactorily, and is in the process of preparing an additional grant application at no charge to the District.
As mentioned prior General Manager Eric Tynan is recommending to investigate the condition of well
casing and perforations to evaluate use as brackish water supply for RO treatment and consider an
appropriate response. There are alternatives to consider to mitigate the seawater intrusion of Well #3
by having the well investigated using a video.

The Overhead Sign at Highway 183 (Update on Project can be viewed on page 128 of this board
packet):. Per General Manager Eric Tynan Castroville CSD is waiting on Caltrans final approval for
engineering specs and encroachment permits. The project was supposed to be done by June 30, 2023
but Caltrans could not come to an agreement as to where the poles should be located but have finally
come to a consensus. The funds have been sequestered for this project by Caltrans and reimbursement
can still be expected. Jeremy with Signs by Van informed him it would also take about two months for
the fabrication to get done. General Manager Eric Tynan also suggested putting the current Castroville
overhead sign on the pedestrian overpass on Highway 156 if it is permitted once it is replaced with the
new overhead sign. Per President Cosme Padilla it appears this project will not be completed until
August or September of 2023. As mentioned previously, the Board approved the Cooperative Agreement
and Maintenance Agreement with Caltrans for the Overhead Sign in October 2022. The State has also
requested a traffic control plan and a storm water control plan which was prepared by MNS Engineers
and sent to the state. MNS will be handling the administration for this project. Resolution No.2022-14,
Engaging Signs By Van for the Design, Fabrication, and Installation of the Castroville Landmark Sign
was approved. MNS to continue working with Signs By Van and draft a Project Management Professionall
(PMP), contract, encroachment permit. Castroville CSD received a check from Caltrans in the amount
of $127,955.28 February 2, 2023. The original placement of the post, will remain in the same spot as
long as Castroville CSD Engineers say it is safe. Previously, Caltrans was telling Signs By Van where to
put them and the locations that they want has a lot of underground utilities.

Current grants awarded are the Clean Water Small Communities Planning Grant ($500,000} with State
Waterboards for administration, preliminary engineering report, plans and specs for sewer in Moss
Landing, project assigned to MNS Engineers. The IRWM Implementation Grant ($395,000) is with DWR
for the Deep Well (Well #6) and the use will be specified in the DWR/MCRWA agreement. The DAC
Involvement Programs amount $61,807 with DWR is for the design of the Washington Sewer Bypass for
Castroville sewer is also assigned to MNS Engineers. Current funding efforts: Moss Landing sewer

system improvements, Castroville emergency well replacement, Castroville water supply improvements
and Castroville wastewater improvements.

Resolution No. 23-04 Adopting the District Budget for FY 2023/2024 for Water (Castroville Zone 1),
Sewer and Governmental (Castroville Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS, Monte
Del Lago Mobile Park Zone 2) and Sewer (Moss Landing Zone 3) and CIP — motion item

Recommendation of the Budget & Personnel Committee (Directors: Stefani and MacMillan) to consider
along with the annual income and operating budget for fiscal year 2023/2024:

~ Extended recreational services with North County Recreation & Park District,

»  Operation Department move up to the next Wage Step Program (varies from (3%-3.3%) percent
salary increases. Effective July 13, 2023.

»  Administration Department move up to the next Wage Step Program 3% percent salary
increase. Effective July 13, 2023.
~ Capital Improvement Projects

10



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 8

The Board reviewed and discussed the final budget presented for FY 2023/2024 for Water (Castroville
Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental (Castroville Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS,
Monte Del Lago Mobile Park Zone 2) and Sewer (Moss Landing Zone 3) and capital improvement
projects for the fiscal year. Resolution No. 23-04, the District Budgets for FY 2023/2024 and supporting
documentation can be viewed on pages 95-123 of the board packet. $110,000 will be allocated for
extended recreational services. ($95,000 is being carried forward from fiscal year 2022/2023 due to the
delay of projects caused by the Covid-19 pandemic), and employees hourly/salary increases as noted
above for the Operations Department and Administration Department effective July 13, 2023. After some
discussion, a motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg MacMillan to approve Resolution
No. 23-04 Adopting the District Budget for FY 2023/2024 for Water (Castroville Zone 1); Sewer and
Governmental (Castroville Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS, Monte Del Lago
Mobile Park Zone 2) and Sewer (Moss Landing Zone 3); Capital Improvement Projects and Extended
recreational services with North County Recreation & Park District, $110,000 ( of which $95,000 carried
forward from 2022/2023), Operation Department move up to the next Wage Step Program {varies from
(3%-3.3%) percent salary increases depending on what step employee (operator) is currently on;
effective July 13, 2023. Administration Department move up to the next Wage Step Program 3% percent
salary increase; effective July 13, 2023. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NQES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

Closed Session: Board President Cosme Padilla announced the Board was going into closed
session The Board entered closed session at 6:20 p.m.

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.8)
Property: located at intersection of Castroville Blvd., Castroville bike path and Highway 156
Agency Negotiations: Negotiator Eric Tynan, General Manager CCSD
Negotiating Parties: CCSD and Property owner Mitchell, Wylie W. et al., agent Greg
Findley
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section. 54957, Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Title:
General Manager

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEM: (if applicable):

The board will reconvene into open session prior to adjournment and shall announce any action taken
during the closed session. The Board reconvened into open session at 6.33 p.m. There was no
action taken on item 1 or 2,

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board of
Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports.

Update on Monterey One Water (M1W) board meeting — Director Ron Stefani stated that MIW moving
full speed with the Expansion project. They have secured federal grants and the bids will be opened
next week, therefore in July they should be selecting a contractor.

Update on Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SVBGSA) meeting — Director Ron
Stefani stated that the SVBGSA meeting is not until next week, 29" of June. At this meeting they should
be approving their budgets. The big controversy is the tier fees. It got complicated but it appears
everyone is on the same page, and believes this includes growers. They will be voting to approve it.

11



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
June 20, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 9

3. Update on meetings or educational classes attended by the Directors — President Cosme Padilla
announced that he, along with General Manger Eric Tynan attended the LULAC Meeting as did
Supervisor Glenn Church. At this meeting a lot of questions and concerns came up about Caltrans
projects. General Manager Eric Tynan stated that the Castroville Boulevard Roundabout Project is
the only project that may lose funding due to PG & E not cooperating in a timely manner for this
project. The Pedestrian Overpass Project on Highway 156 would not be affected. Per Vice President
Ron Stefani the state funding deadiine for this project comes up at the end of this month. In addition,
the California Transportation Commission has to have a meeting to approve the extension of these
funds. The fear is it may not be approved due to California’s budget deficit.

GENERAL OPERATIONS

1. General Manager's Report — Compliance update, current projects update, meetings/seminars
update, staff update, suggestive projects discussions
2.  Operation's Report
a) Water — Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Water -Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issue
¢} Sewer & Storm Drain — Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service Update, Safety Issues
3. Customer /Billing Reports — Water Sales, Water Usage, A/R Update, Customer Service Update
4. Financial Reports — Treasures L.A.l.F. Report, Internal Report, Administration Update

General Operations Reports were accepted as presented

CHECK LIST — May 2023. A motion was made by Ron Stefani and seconded by James Cochran to pay
all bills presented. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: QOania

There being no further business, a motion was made by Greg MacMillan and seconded by Ron Stefani to
adjourn to the next scheduled Board meeting; the motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors;
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: QOania

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. until the next scheduled meeting

hespech‘u"y submitted by, Approved by,
Lidia Santos Ron Stefani
Secretary to the Board Vice President



Invoice

ACWA JPIA
P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661
800.231.5742 | www.acwajpia.com

TO: All Property Program Members
FROM: David deBernardi, Director of Finance
DATE: July 12, 2023

RE: 2023-24 Property Program

The JPIA Executive Committee adopted a 20% increase in the Property Program rates effective
for policy year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. This increase was due to a hard market found
in obtaining excess insurance. Please note that inflation factors have been applied to the Total
Insured Values (TIV) of 7.5% for all buildings and fixed equipment, as well as 5.5% to personal

property.

For any questions regarding the payment of this premium, please contact Heidi Singer in the
Accounts Receivable Department at (800) 231-5742 ext. 3133.

Member property schedules can now be found on the JPIA online portal. If you have any
questions, please contact Member Services at (800) 231-5742 or e-mail at
member@acwajpia.com. Any unpaid portion that becomes more than 60 days past due will be
subject to a 1% late fee each month.



ACWA JPIA Property Program
Renewal Billing Invoice

For July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024
Invoice Date: July 10, 2023

Member # C027 Invoice#: 0010640

Castroville Community Services District
P.O. Box 1065
Castroville, CA 95012-1065

Basic Property Total Value Rate Premium
A. Buildings Value $1,385,098 X 0.00146 $2,027.78
B. Fixed Equipment Value $3,444,923 x 0.00146 $5,043.37
C. Personal Property Value $152,910 x 0.00146 $223.86
D. Business Interruption Value $0 X 0.00146 $0.00

Total Basic Premium $4,982 930 = $7,295.01
Credit for $1,000 Deductible Amount - $0.00

Mobile Equipment
A. Mobile Equipment Value $12,000 x 0.002220 = $26.64
1. Replacement Cost Enhancement Chosen: No + $0.00

Total Mobile Equipment Premium = $26.64
Credit for $1,000 Deductible Amount - $0.00

Licensed Vehicle

Comprehensive and Collision Count Total Value Rate Premium
1. All Other 8 $581,471 x 0.012540 = $7,291.65

2. Light Truck 2 X $224.00 = $448.00
3. Passenger Car 1 b 4 $192.00 = $192.00

4. SUV/Jeep 0 X $268.00 = $0.00

5. Van 0 X $222.00 = $0.00

6. Replacement Cost Enhancement Chosen: No + $0.00
Total Vehicle Premium = $7,931.65

Credit for $1,000 Deductible Amount - $793.16

Catastrophic Coverage Total Value Rate Premium

Unscheduled Vehicle Value $0 x 0.002364 = $0.00
Total Catastrophic Premium = $0.00

Credit for $1,000 Deductible Amount - $0.00

Sub Total = $14,460.14

JPIA Multiple Program Discount (0.02%) - $289.20

Premium Adjustment + $0.00

Total Deposit Premium =  $14,170.94

Any unpaid portion that becomes more than 60 days past due will be subject to a
1% late fee each month.

14



Salinas ValleyBasin

Groundwater Sustainability Agency

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE: July 13, 2023
AGENDA ITEM: S5a
SUBJECT: Seawater Intrusion Model Update

RECOMMENDATION:
Receive a presentation on the status of the Salinas Valley Seawater Intrusion Model

BACKGROUND:

During development of the Monterey Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan, Marina Coast Water
District (MCWD}) and SVBGSA jointly applied for the Monterey Subbasin Round 3 SGMA Planning Grant.
This grant provided funding to MCWD to develop the Marina Monterey Groundwater Flow Model
(MMGWFM) and to SVBGSA (Agency) to develop a variable density flow model of seawater intrusion in
the Monterey Subbasin. This grant also supported model coordination between agencies.

As MCWD neared completion of the MMGWFM (spring/summer 2021), Errol L. Montgomery and
Associates (M&A) developed the SVBGSA Seawater Intrusion Model based on both the MMGWFM and
the Provisional Salinas Valley Integrated Hydrologic Model (SVIHM), as well as the Seaside and North
Marina Groundwater Models. In the fall of 2021, the Agency and County of Monterey {County) decided to
jointly fund expansion of the Seawater Intrusion Model beyond the Monterey Subbasin to incorporate the
length of the coastal area of the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin and Zone 2C. The County contributed
to the expanded model to be able to use it to fulfill the requirements of a Basin Investigation required by
the Monterey County General Plan, The Agency has developed the model as a tool to be able to assess
the effectiveness of potential projects to address seawater intrusion.

During 2021 and 2022, the Agency brought key aspects of model development and related issues for
discussion at several meelings with the Seawater Intrusion Working Group Technical Advisory Committee
{SWIG TAC). It was also presented to the Advisory Committee and 180/400 Subbasin Committee. In the
spring of 2023, the Agency and M&A met with the Groundwater Technical Advisory Committee (GTAC,
former SWIG TAC) and M&A presented the completed Salinas Valley Seawater Intrusion Model. M&A
shared the model, calibration dataset and model grid with interested GTAC members. The GTAC provided
comments for both near term model refinements and for consideration in future updates.

On June 9, 2022, the Agency Board of Directors adopted a Groundwater Model Policy. The policy
underscores the Agency's commitment to information transparency while acknowledging the appropriate
objectives, uses, and limitations of groundwater models. It notes that models can estimate and reasonably
bound future groundwater conditions, support decision-making about monitoring networks and
management actions, but that there should be no expectation that a single ‘true’ model exists. The
seawater intrusion mode! is identified as one of several models being used by the Agency, Section 2 states
that it is the policy of the Agency to engage in regular model updates, with coordination with partner
agencies being one of the primary reasons for doing so.

15



DISCUSSION:

Based on the recent comments from the GTAC, M&A has identified several near-term revisions to the
seawater intrusion model to improve use of the model for assessing the potential effects of projects on
seawater intrusion. These improvements include addressing chloride concentrations in the southern part of
the model to better reflect measured values, adjusting the Monterey Formation uplift in the Monterey
Subbasin to reflect more recent data, and improving medel calibration of inland groundwater levels.

Continued collaboration with MCWD is also anticipated later this year. MCWD and SVBGSA worked
together on an application for additional funding from the Sustainable Groundwater Water Management
Round 2 Implementation grant program. The application identified several model related tasks, including
further refining the Seawater Intrusion Model based on new data, updating the coastal aquifer extents
based on the Deep Aquifers Study findings and collaborating with Seaside Watermaster to update the
conceplualization along the Seaside-Monterey Subbasin border. DWR has made initial funding
recommendations for the Monterey Subbasin that would include these activities.

FISCAL IMPACT:
A cost estimate to prepare near-term revisions to the seawater intrusion model is $59,500. This work is
funded in part by the Tier 2 activity attributed to 180/400 Subbasin and in part by SGM Round 1 Grant.

ATTACHMENT(S):
Presentation by M&A

PREPARED BY:
Sarah Hardgrave, Deputy General Manager

16



pn T 13pouLt 84}
0 88N pezLoyNeun 1o pazuoyINe
ayy wouy Supnsads sabewep

Aue s0} afqey play aq yeys
JBLULWBAGS) 'S 2] JoU §OSN
ay) Jayyels jel) LOIEPUOD 8y} Uo
papiad st japous 8y} Auewem
yans Aue 8NKSUCD ases|al jo
138} 3y} j2ys 10U [eUajew pajelal
pue japouws aif) jo Ayjeuoniung

Y] 0] SB JUaILIBADE) 'S'f) ay] 40
S9SN 8y} Aq apew s) ‘paydiy 10
passaidxa ‘Mueses oy '(Sosn}
Aaning jeaiboyoas 's'n oy Aq
1eaoudde jeuy panadal jou sey
18poW 3} "8IUAIaS JS6q Ajaus
Jo} paau ayj jasty 0} papiaoud
firrag ate synsas japoiy pue
AP0 S| “woISAR) o) jaafgns
2/ pue jeuoisiaosd Jo Aeunuyaid
aie {synsal japoul 1o/pue

{3pow) Biep siyy saunepsid,

[SPO 19)EMPUNCIS)
19|SBIWIBIRAA BpISEaS

[9PO J31eMpunoIS)
uIseqqgng Aslsjuoly

lepo woAsmHIAS [
lopoiy uoisnau Jetemess |
SE3IY BPON

Jayinby 1004-081 ‘(176w 00g
< uogeguaouod apuoiyd) [
Baly uoisniiu| 1oyemeasq 02072

slessig pue s1aAly Jolep

pisea

o

wm_._muczom_”w_nm_v . mc_v_._m._ AVE
1sjempunals) Aajje seujes \‘ S AFHILNOW
NOILVNV1dX3 fane) oreled

18]eMeas
JO UOISNJ)UI [SPOLL JouUED Sjapou Bunsixg e

AajjeA seulies ay) ul LoisnJjui 1a)emeass
ssaippe jey; sposfoud pue suonoe Jusiusbeuew
ubisap pue ssasse 0} j00} & dojansp 0f :[eos)

[9PO\ UoISnu| Jo)emeas Joj PasN




iy, B oy gunba] .

e ey o v

e ey
4

Avg
AJUIINONW

L

useg
FRRADUNOID) ABEER SRS D
eary Apms [epoyy

NOHVNV1dX3 |

Baly [3poj

UOIJBJUa2u09 3pLIoJYD

1ng Aiepunoq [ejseod
SS0J0B MOJ} Jajempunolb
1sn[ jou sjepo

90BLI8)UI UBSS0 10) JUN0JIE
0} 9I0YSYO SpUs)X3J

1odsuey) [Bolwayo
pue mo|) Jajempunolb
Juapuadap Ajisuap (¢

[OPON uoISnu|
lajemeag

18




SUOISIIA [OPOJN GO WOL)
SO0 UCHEIUIIUOL) IPLIO[Y) T/Bwt g paenuig mc_u—wmw ._mt—._Um

WioJj sejewnse Jejaweled olnetpAq  ©

SUOIBJJUSOUOD BPLOJYD  ©

S|9A8| JaJempunols)  ©

:papnjoul
BJep uoljeiqies paaIasqo JayiQ e

iNOJU0D

e _ 2i3iove apuojyo /6w pog peddew YYMOW
R G __ me-meeosw|  QU) DUIYDJBL UO PASNO0) Uuonelqie)

san[e PaAIasqQ 0} paje|nuuIg payolely uonelgied



20

IBm Apa.d yojew
LONOB.IP PUE Jus)Xs
uoIsnJul pajspoi

SEUNES

uiseq Jajempunoic)y

Aajien seuies
ealy ApMS {epopy —

(0zo2) ##jinby 1004-081

INOUIO0S| DD s
VbW 00S pAEIMUIG
[(1%4174]

VO S YHAMIW =———
WAS Japnby 1 4081

NOILYNYIdX3

NVYIOO0

g RN lajinby 1004-08]

UoISNJ)u| Jajemeas

PaAIBSQ S UOI}ali( Pue ajey SWeS Je SoUBAPY UOISNIU| Jajemeas



21

00} uonelbiw
|BJILSA WIOJ) SPUBS]
LIOISNIUI 19)eMeas
SOl [BPOIN

_ SjustlaINSesll
jutod pue Jnojuodos|
9pLOJu9 Ujog
uo paseq pajeiqien

A

WISeH J3eMPURAID)
Aaep, seues

ealy Apmis 18poiy —
(0202} 18}inby 1004 L 1y

-00p INOJL0IAS| BPUONT) = i
Vs 005 PAEIMUS
(0202) AN e

k)

dm\lﬂ
19 NY3OO0
7B 00§ VHMOW === Pt - m
WS 18jinby 1 00 Ry ..J..\I\lI.J.J ~ 21410Vvd

_ o i 19)inby j004-00¢

UoISN.Ijuj I9)emeas
POAIIS() SE UOI}3lI([] pue a)ey swes je SOUBRAPY UOISNIu| Jojemeas



N\

uone.qied

|oA8] Jajempunoib
puejul aAodw)

\n uIsky JBIEMPUNGIS)

hotien seukes
eay Apnig (apoyy ——

(0202) rapnby 003
.| -00F Inoiwodes) apualD ——
WO 0ps pAIRINWNS

{ozozt

T 005 VEMOW === |15
AAS Japmby { 300¥

NOLLYNY1dX3

SjuaWIWO) HVYLO Buissalppy 0} yoseoiddy

18Jinbyy J004-00%

22

painseaul Jogyl

la)jaq o) ajay

SUONEIJU3oU0d
9pLOJUD SSBIPPY

BJep Jusdal
310W U0 paseq
yidn uonew.od
Aaiejuopy 1snipy
/




Monterey Bay
~._ Water Works Association

i

Annual Vendor Show/BBQ
Thursday, September 215, 2023

Calling All Water/Wastewater Related Vendors

What: We are signing up vendors for our Annual Monterey Bay Water Works Association BBQ and Vendor Show on
September 21*. Vendors interested in sharing products and recent innovations to the water, wastewater and collections
industry shotld definitely not miss this event! In recent years we have attendances of over 150 people ranging from:

operators and managers from county/city agencies, utility districts, private systems, consulting engineers, and various types
of contractors.

= e ok,

Where: Castroville Community Center. 11261 Crane Street, Castroville, CA
Schedule:  Set-Up and Check-in 2:30-4:00 PM

Vendor Show 4:00-7:00 PM

BBQ Dinner 6:15

PM Raffle 7:00 PM

*** We will resenve the front parking lot of the Communiny Center tor those vendors who have equipment, trailers. or
would {ike the additional room to display at the ey ent**#¥

Cost and details: The cost for display space is $150 for a 6 foot table (eleciricity is available by request). Two meal tickets
for the BBQ dinner are included! The money we collect goes towards paying for the show and provides funds for the
upcoming year's MBWWA training events and educational speakers.

Donated raffle prizes will be acknowledged and very much appreciated.

How to participate: RSV by September 6, Mail, fax (831.763.1970), or email this form, and mail your check (payable
to MBWWA) to secure a spot.

Beau Kayser

500 Clearwater Lane

Watsonville, CA 95076

Questions? Contact Beau @ (831) 768-3193 / email h¢

Company:
Representatives Attending:
Type of Product or Service:
Mailing Address:
Phone Number: Fax: Email:
Number of Spaces: 1 - 2 (circle one)
Additional Meal Tickets over the two included with Space:1 2 3 4 5 6 (circle one)
(Two tickets included for every $150 space, $25 each additional)
We will bring a raffle prize: YES — NO (circle one)

No. of Spaces x§150=
Add. Meal Tickets x $25= TOTALAMOUNT DUE:
Requests/Comments:

(5

fid



Central Coast Wetlands Group (CCWG} — Jenny Balmagia, Watershed Coordinator
Jenny.balmagia@sjsu.edu, mobile: 310-850-7412

‘Water 101’ Workshop Series

Audience: Aduits in the Castroville community and/or broader North Monterey County School District
service area

Objectives:

* Educate community members on local water issues, and management decisions, and how these
impact their lives. Inform community members on how they can learn more and become more
involved if they are interested in doing so.

» Provide a forum for community members to voice input/concerns regarding water management
activities.

* Promote building stronger relationships between community members and local water agencies
by increasing community understanding of the role of local water agencies and increasing staff
understanding of community concerns/issues.

Description: This workshop series will involve presentations by the Lower Salinas Valley Watershed
Coordinator (Jenny, Central Coast Wetlands Group) with invited guest speakers from Castroville
Community Services District (local water provider), Groundwater Sustainability Agency (regional
groundwater managers), and other focal water managers and decision makers, These workshops will
emphasize communicating information in an accessible and engaging way for the community — this
includes making translation services available for each workshop, having all workshop materials
translated and available, and explaining scientific and water terms and concepts in a digestible way for
non-experts and those for whom English is not their first language.

This series will ideally consist of 6 workshops, can be less or more though. Potential curriculum below,
these topics can be rearranged, combined, or added to:

Where does your water come from?

Local impacts to groundwater — and how does this impact you?

Groundwater Sustainability Efforts — what's being done and how might this impact you?
“How do we know what we know?” — Cool science and technology being used in the area
Upcoming local restoration projects: Multibenefit Land Repurposing Program {MLRP) and
Castroville to the Coast

6. Wrapping it up: summary/reflection/any needs_not being addressed?

e

Other CCWG education efforts
s Secured grant funding to:
o Create the Natural Resources class at NMCHS
o Build greenhouse at Castroville Elementary
* Would like to connect with teachers at these schools, and others, to continue support of these
efforts, can come do class presentations, organize field trip tours of older restoration projects,
or planting days for new/ongoing restoration projects.
o Contact: Sarah Stoner-Duncan, sarah.stonderduncan@sjsu.edu



Salinas Valley Multi-benefit Land
Repurposing Program

What is Multi-Benefit Land Repurposing?

The Greater Monterey County Integrated Regional
Water Management Group
(www.greatermontereyirwmp.org/) has been
awarded a $10 million grant by the California
Department of Conservation forthie Multi-benefit
Land Repurposing Program to strategically and
voluntarily acquire and repurpose the least viable,
most flood-prone portions of irrigated agricultural
lands in the lower Salinas Valley.

Our vision for the Salinas Valley Multi-benefit Land
Repurposing program is to support the strategic
transition of least productive, most flood-prone
irrigated lands to new, lower water uses that will
help reestablish natural watershed processes and
sustainable groundwater supplies — while also
providing benefits to landowners, adjacent
communities and freshwater ecosystems.

Climate
Resilience

Quality

This multi-benefit approach can benefit our
communities, environment, and water resources while
ensuring that farmlands have access to sustainable
irrigation water supplies and are more resilient to
flooding.

GAEATER MONTEREY COUNTY \
e ™ T e =~ \‘ ‘ 1 |
I o 1
PRl e WiCOWG
IRWMP CentraL coasy

WETLORDS GROUP

AN
@ www Cali{arniaMEF

What Are the Benefits?

This Salinas Valley Multi-benefit Land Repurposing
Program will support acquisition of portions of
agricultural ranches where interested landowners
wish to transition farmlands to projects that
increase groundwater recharge and storage, reduce
flooding, and enhance water quality and base flow.
Additional benefits can include habitat
enhancement and public recreation opportunities.

Where Will Projects Be Located?

Irrigated, flood-prone lands adjacent to a waterway,
and optimal location for multi-benefit land repurposing

The program will focus efforts in the Lower Salinas
Valley which includes North Monterey County, the
City of Salinas, and down the Valley to Gonzales.
Projects can range in size from 5 acres to more than
80 acres. The total amount of {and repurposed
through this program will not radically change
farming in the Salinas Valley, but instead will help
make our farms, communities, and environment
more resilient to flooding and other surface and
ground water related challenges.

CMSF

Salinas Valley Basin

Groundwater Sustainability Agency

23



Example Multi-benefit Projects

In partnership with growers and {andowners
interested in selling portions of their irrigated lands
we will develop multi-benefit water resource
projects that are compatible with adjacent, on-
going farming operations. Optimal locations for
farmland acquisition as part of this program include
irrigated areas that are:

= Historic creeks and lakebeds
= Highly permeabie soils

= Adjacent to waterways

* Frequently flooded

Our Partners

The Regional Water Management Group is
partnering with the following organizations to
develop and implement this program:

» Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater
Sustainability Agency

* Central Coast Wetlands Group

= California Marine Sanctuary Foundation

= Resource Conservation District of Monterey
Ceunty

30m

Food Safety Fence

Treatment Pond

Raised boardwalk I

L1 0

e
"'-'-'h‘-. :':rll. 1.-1":1 L] ]

sy

Channel Flcodplaln

Main Channal

A vision for a multi-benefit project that could provide community, environment, and water resources benefits.
Project designs will vary to best suit each location and landowner and grower needs.

Interested landowners will be fairly compensated
for these lands, which will be acquired by the
program with support of four local land trusts.
Lands acquired through this program will be
transitioned into multi-benefit projects and
maintained in perpetuity. Example projects may
include one or more of the following features:

* Floodplain restoration

= Stormwater capture and reuse

* Habitat friendly recharge basin

= Treatment wetland

= Riparian corridor enhancement

* Parks/open space

GREATER MONTEREY COUNTY

R \
8 ~®> \iowWG

CenTraL COQsT
TRWMEP WETLONDE GROUP

These project partners will be engaging with local
agencies, agricultural representatives, land trusts,
and underrepresented communities to ensure the
Multi-benefit Land Repurposing Program will
benefit a broad portion of the Valley's
stakeholders.

Learn More and Stay in Touch

To learn more about the Multi-benefit Land
Repurposing Program or to let us know about an
area you think would be suitable for repurposing,

please email jenny.balmagia@sijsu.edu.

CMSF Salinas Valley Basin

www.CalllernlaMsF crg Groundwater Sustainability Agency

26

@



Amendment made to General Manager’s contract; as per Section 2. Compensation: section b.
Amendments to Compensation.

At the July 18, 2023 board meeting, the Castroville Community Services District Board of Directors
approved a three (3%) percent salary increase to the General Manager's annual base compensation of
$171,227.78 to be retroactive to July 13, 2023.

The General Manager’s annual compensation; effective July 13, 2023, will be $176,363.20. This

amendment is to be attached to the contract that is currently in place for the General Manager J. Eric
Tynan.

In addition, the board set two goals for the General Manager to accomplish for fiscal year 2023-2024 as
listed below.

1. Purchase two generators for Sewer Zone 1 and 2
2. Finalize the Clean California Castroville Arch, Project No: 0522000079

Cosme Padilla, President Ron Stefani, Vice President

J. Eric Tynan, General Manager

27



GENERAL MANAGER EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
BETWEEN
J.ERIC TYNAN AND THE CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

This Contract is made and entered into, effective July 1, 2021, by and between the

Castroville Community Services District (“CCSD") and J. ERIC TYNAN (“General
Manager™).

RECITALS

A. CCSD is a political subdivision of the State of California formed and existing

pursuant to the Community Services District Law, California Government Code Sections
61000 and following.

B. Government Code Section 61050 authorizes and requires the board of
directors (“Board™) of a community services district to appoint a general manager,
provides that the general manager shall receive the compensation determined by the
Board and shall serve at the Board’s pleasure, and provides that the Board may require
the general manager to be bonded, with the cost of the bonds paid by the district.
Pursuant to Section 61051, the responsibilities of the general manager are:

(a) The implementation of the policies established by the Board for the operation
of the CCSD.

(b) The appointment, supervision, discipline, and dismissal of the CCSD's
employees, consistent with the employee relations system established by the Board,

(c} The supervision of the CCSD's facilities and services.

(d) The supervision of the CCSD’s finances.

C. CCSD desires to employ J. ERIC TYNAN as the CCSD's General Manager,
on the terms and conditions contained in this Contract.

D. L. ERIC TYNAN, by reason of his education and experience, is qualified to
fill the General Manager position.

E. I. ERIC TYNAN desires (o be employed by the CCSD as CCSD’s General
Manager, on the terms and conditions contained in this Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND
AGREEMENTS SET FORTH BELOW, the parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENTS

l. Services: General Manager will provide to CCSD necessary
professional. administrative, and managerial services to perform the duties and

1533700997246 11 12912



responsibilities of General Manager to the satisfaction of CCSD's Board of Directors.
Such services shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

a. To perform all functions and duties of the CCSD’s General Manager
pursuant to applicable laws, and as set forth in the Recitals to this Agreement and
in the job description for “General Manager” in effect as of the date of this
Agreement. General Manager shall be authorized to engage consultants for the
CCSD with compensation either individually or in the aggregate up to $20,000 for
any individual engagement without prior Board approval. This paragraph shall
not limit the General Manager’s authority to engage contractors to respond to
emergencies,

b. To perform such services on an exclusive full-time service basis for
CCSD, and to be available as needed to properly perform such services, including
attendance at after-hours meetings as needed for conduct of CCSD business.

2. Compensation:

a. CCSD will provide, as total compensation to General Manager, the
following:

(1) Base Compensation: General Manager shall be paid at the
rate of $163,074.08 annually, in accordance with payroll procedures and
protocols in place within the CCSD from time to time, from which shall be
deducted such amounts as are agreed to by CCSD and General Manager
are required by law to be deducted. This base compensation will be
increased annually on the same date whether or not the term of the
agreement is renewed pursuant to the automatic renewal provision of
Section 4 or otherwise negotiated between the parties to this Agreement.
If the Board determines to award a merit increase and has not done so by
the first day of the first pay period in July each year, the effective date of
the merit increase will be retroactive to the first day of the first pay period
in July of the current year.

(2) Expenses: General Manager shall be entitled to the same
reimbursement for other out-of-pocket expenses incurred on CCSD
business, on the same terms and conditions, as authorized for other CCSD
personnel. The Board encourages the General Manager to represent the
CCSD and participate in professional organizations such as the
Association of California Water Agencies and other organizations and
associations whose activities affect the CCSD's concerns or policies
and will retmburse the General Manager for reasonable expenses incurred
in such activities.

(3) Health Care: CCSD shall pay the annual costs to enroll the
General Manager and the General Manager’s family in the CCSD's health
care plan for dental care, vision care, and medical health care, and/or life
insurance expenses incurred for him and/or his family.

IS33IMNOYT246 11 12912



(4) Sick Leave: General Manager shall accrue sick leave
according to the schedule adopted from time to time by the CCSD's
Board, without credit for any prior service.

(5) Vacation: General Manager shall be entitled to four weeks
paid vacation during each year of this Contract. Unused vacation time
may be accumulated in accordance with the CCSD Personnel Policy.

(6) Retirement Plan Contribution: The CCSD shall make
contributions to the CalPERS retirement program for General Manager
equal to 100% of the monthly employer contributions.

(7)_CCSD Vehicle: CCSD will provide a vehicle for the General
Manager’s business and personal use.

b. Amendments to Compensation. All adjustments to General Manager’s
compensation, including, but not limited to, cost of living adjustments,
must be authorized by action of the Board separate and apart from action
taken to authorize adjustments for other employees of the CCSD. No
adjustment to the General Manager's compensation shall be effective until
an Amendment to this Contract is signed by the President and Vice-
President of the Board and the General Manager and attached 1o this
Contract.

3. Performance Reviews: The Board will conduct annual performance reviews
with the General Manager during the month of June each year. The Board may at its
discretion review confidentially the performance of the General Manager at any time
during the term of this Contract. In connection with each annual review required by this
paragraph, the CCSD’s Board shall consider, but shall not be required to act on,
adjustments to General Manager’s compensation and other terms and conditions of this
Contract. It shall be the General Manager’s duty, as a condition precedent to the Board's
obligation to annually review the General Manager’s performance under this paragraph,
to notify the CCSD’s Board in writing not less than 30 nor more than 45 days in advance
of each annual review period of the Board’s obligation to conduct the review and the
dates between which the review is required under this paragraph.

4. Term: This Contract shall become effective on July 1. 2021, after execution
by General Manager and the President and Secretary of CCSD’s Board, and shall remain
in effect until terminated as provided herein or until midnight June 30, 2024, whichever
occurs first. Each year, on the anniversary of this contract the term of the contract shall
be extended by one year.

5. Termination: General Manager serves at the Board's pleasure. The CCSD
may terminate this Contract either with or without cause by providing General Manager
18 months” advance written notice of the termination. The termination shall become
effective upon the 18 months ‘anniversary following mailing, verified electronic
transmission, or delivery of written notice thereof. CCSD, at its option, may terminate
this Contract immediately by written notice, if General Manager dies or becomes
otherwise incapable of performing duties under this Contract, or is convicted of a felony.

30

L333T\009W972486 1012412



Except in the case of termination for General Manager’s death or conviction of a felony,
CCSD shall pay to General Manager or his legal representative a sum equal to General
Manager’s Base Compensation for the unexpired term of this Contract. However, no
cash severance benefit under this or any succeeding contract may exceed an amount
equal to the monthly salary of the General Manager multiplied by the number of months
left in the unexpired term of the contract or 18 months’ salary, whichever is the lesser.
Any termination by CCSD within ninety days following a public election of members of
the CCSD’s Board shall require the affirmative vote of four members of the CCSD’s
Board. Any termination by CCSD at any other time shall require the affirmative vote of
a majority of the CCSD’s Board.

6. Work Product: Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the parties, all forms
of expression of ideas relating to General Manager’s performance of this Contract shall
be the property of the CCSD. General Manager shall provide all such work product
produced through the date of termination, whether complete or incomplete, to CCSD,
free of any and all claims, liens, and/or encumbrances, to be used by CCSD for any
purpose.

7. Licenses: General Manager shall secure and maintain, throughout the life of
this Contract, at CCSD’s cost, all licenses, permits, qualifications and approvals of
whatsoever nature which are legally required to practice any services required by this
Contract.

8. Standards of Performance; General Manager shall perform the services
described in a professional, first-class, workmanlike and businesslike manner in

accordance with standards of quality satisfactory to CCSD’s Board of Directors in their
sole discretion.

9. Assignment of Contract; Subcontracting: This employment contract is
personal to J. ERIC TYNAN, based upon his unique training, background and
experience. General Manager may nol assign or subcontract any of his duties or benefits
under this Contract without the CCSD’s prior written consent, which the CCSD may
withhold at its absolute discretion for any reason.

10. Bond: General Manager shall obtain for the benefit of CCSD such bond for
the faithful performance of General Manager’s duties under this Contract as the CCSD’s
Board may require from time to time. CCSD shall pay the premium on any such bond.

I1. Reimbursement of Payments: If during the pendency of an investigation of
the General Manager for abuse of office or position, the General Manager receives paid
leave salary, funds for his legal criminal defense or a cash settlement related to a
termination, and the General Manager is subsequently convicted of a crime involving
abuse of his office or position, the General Manager shall reimburse the CCSD for any
paid leave salary, defense funds and cash settlement.

12. Paragraph Headings: The paragraph headings contained herein are for
convenience and reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of this
Contract.

15333N0NINT246 1V 12912

31



13. Notice: Whenever notice to a party is require by this Contract, it shall be
deemed given when deposited with proper address and postage in the U.S. Mail or when
personally delivered as follows or at such other address or place either party may
designate in writing from time to time:

CCSD:; CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
11499 Geil Street
Castroville, CA 95012

General Manager: J. ERIC TYNAN

14, Duplicate Originals: This Contract may be executed in one or more duplicate
originals bearing the original signature of both parties and when so executed any such

duplicate original shall be admissible as proof of the existence and terms of the Contract
between the parties.

I5. Jurisdiction: This contract is made and is to be performed in Monterey
County and, subject to provisions of law governing venue, the courts of Monterey County
have jurisdiction over any litigation relating to the enforcement or interpretation of this

Contract, arising out of General Manager’s performance or relating in any way to the
work under the contract.

16. Court Costs and Attorney's Fees: In the event legal action is instituted by
either party to enforce this Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled 10 reasonable
attorney’s fees and actual costs incurred in connection with such action.

17. Waiver or Modification: No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the
provisions of this Contract shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly
authorized representative of both parties to this Contract. Any document which modifies
this Contract shall be appended to the original of this Contract, and copies of such
documentation shall be provided to all parties to this Contract. No changes shall be
implied. If there is any ambiguity or lack of clarity or uncertainty in or by reason of the

language of any amendment, the language of the Contract shall control the interpretation
of the Contract and any amendment.

18. Governing Law: This Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California.

19. Previous Agreements Integrated: Any and all existing understandings and
agreements, whether oral or written, or renewals thereof, between the parties hereto,

covering the same subject matter, are hereby integrated within and superseded by this
Contract, and shall have no further force or effect.

1535300997246, 1\ 12912

32



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract, consisting of
six pages, in duplicate on June I¥, 2011, effective upon execution.

CCSD: General Manager:

CASTROVILLE COMMUNIT}ERVICESD TRICT

By M/Z/C

" JAMES COCHRAN
President, Board of Directors

By e Sk

LIDIA SANTOS
Secretary, Board of Directors

IS33TVONI97246. 1\ 12912

33



Amendment to General Manager’s (. Eric Tynan) contract as per Section 2, Compensation:
Section b. Amendments to Compensation.

At the June 21, 2022 board meeting, the Castroville Community Services District Board of
Directors approved a five percent (5%) salary increase to the Genera| Manager’s annual base
compensation of $163,074.08. The increase will be effective as of luly 14, 2022, The General
Manager’s annual base compensation as of July 14, 2022 will be $171,225.60.

This amendment is to be attached to the contract that is currentiyin place for the General
Manager J. Eric Tynan.

Ron Stefani, Di ctor

34



California

CINSS

What is California CLASS?

California Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (California
CLASS) is a joint exercise of powers entity authorized under
Section 65097, California Government Code. California CLASS is
a pooled investment option that was created via a joint exercise of
powers agreement by and among California public agencies.
California CLASS offers public agencies a convenient method for
investing in highly liquid, investment-grade securities carefully
selected to optimize interest earnings while maximizing safety
and liquidity. The California CLASS Prime and Enhanced Cash
funds offer public agencies the opportunity to strengthen and
diversify their cash management programs in accordance with the
safety, liquidity, and yield hierarchy that provides the framework
for the investment of public funds.

How is it governed and managed?

Catifornia CLASS is overseen and governed by a Board of
Trustees, The Board is made up of public agency finance
professionals who participate in California CLASS and are
members of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA). The Board of
Trustees has entered inte an Investment Advisor and
Administrator Agreement with Public Trust Advisors, LLC. Public
Trust is responsible to the Board for all program investment and
administrative activities as well as many of the services provided
on behalf of the Participants.

How can we participate?

Enrolling in California CLASS is simple. Public agencies may
become Participants simply by f{illing out the Participant
Registration Form that can be found in the document center on
the California CLASS website. Public agencies may submit the
completed reqgistration packet to California CLASS Client Services
for processing at clientservices@californiaclass.com. To obtain
account forms and fund documents, visit
www.californiaclass.com/document-center/,

Endorsed By:

California Cooperative Liguid Assets Securities System

Participants
benefit from the following:

Same-day availability of funds in
Prime fund (11:00 a.m. PT cut-off}

Deposits by wire or ACH

Ratings of 'AAAM' & 'AAAT/ST
Prime fund transacts at stable NAV
Portfolio securities

marked-to-market daily

Secure online access for transactions
and account statements

No withdrawal notices for Prime Fund

Participant-to-Participant
transactions

Interest accrues daily and pays
monthly

No maximum contributions

No minimum balance requirements

No transaction fees*

Annual audit conducted by
independent auditing firm**

Dedicated client service
representatives available via phone
or email on any business day

*You may ipcur fees associated with wires andfor ACH
transactions Ly your bank, but there will be no transaction
fees charged from California CLASS for such transactions.
**External audits may not catch alf instances of accounting
errors and do not provide on absolule guarantee of
accuracy.

LEAGUE OF
CAL|FORNIA
CITIES

California Special
Districts Association

Districts Stronger Together

www calcities.org www.csda.net

T (B77)930-5213 | F (877) 930-5241 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com 3 5



California

What are the objectives of California CLASS?

Safety

The primary investment objective of the California
CLASS Prime fund is preservation of principal. Both
California CLASS portfolios are managed by a team of
investment professicnals who are solely focused on the
management of public funds nationwide. The custedian
for California CLASS is U.S. Bank, N.A.

Liquidity

When you invest in the California CLASS Prime fund,
you have access to your funds on any business day. You
must notify California CLASS of your funds transaction
requests by 11:00 a.m. PT via the internet or phone.
There are no withdrawal notices for the daily-liguid
California CLASS Prime fund. Enhanced Cash is a
variable NAV fund that provides next-day liquidity and a
one-day notification of withdrawal.

Competitive Returns

California CLASS strives to provide competitive returns
while adhering to the objectives of safety and liquidity.
Participants benefit from the investment expertise and
institutional knowledge provided by the team of Public
Trust professionals. Portfolio  performance s
strengthened by the extensive knowledge of California
public agency cash flows that the Public Trust team
possesses.

Ease of Use

To make cash management streamlined and efficient,
California CLASS includes many features that make it
easy to access account information and simplify record
keeping. Participants can transact on any business day
using the California CLASS phone number (877)
930-5213, fax number (877) 930-5214, email
clientservices@californiaclass.com or via the California

CLASS Online Transaction Portal at
www.californiaclass.com.

Flexibility

You may establish multiple California CLASS

subaccounts. You will receive comprehensive monthly
statements that show all of your transaction activity,
interest accruals, and rate summaries. These
statements have been specifically designed to facilitate
public sector fund accounting and to establish a clear
accounting and audit trail for your records.

Legality

California CLASS only invests in securities permitted by
California State Code Section 53601; permitted
investments are further restricted to those approved by
the Board of Trustees as set forth in the California
CLASS Investment Policies.

Have Questions? Contact us or visit www.californiaclass.com for more information.

i

Bob Shull
Director, investment Services
boh.shull@californiaclass.com  laura.glenn@californiaclass.com

Laura Glenn, CFA®™ Brent Turner
Senior Director, Investment Services Regianal Director of Strategy

Rodrigo Bettini

Director, Investment Services
brent.turner@californiaclass.com rodrigo.bettini@californiaclass.com
(303) 999-8190 {813) 820-0703

&7y Lnzncial andfor invesiment decision should he mage only atter considerable research, consideraticn, and invofvement with an experiencen professicaal engaged for the speaific purpose. Past
performance Is not an indication of luture perfore e. Any ] lal and/for investment declslon mey Incur losses. Please see the informaticr Statement for furtmier detaiis en the fee calcuiation
and ciner key aspects sbout Califernia CLASS. Canfornia CLASS Prime is rated 'AAAM' by S&P Glohal Ratings. A "AAAM rating by 5&P Global Ratings «5 chtalned aller S&° esluates a nurber of
fsetors including credit quality, market price expssute, and management. for a full cescriplion on rating methodsiogy, please ¥isit wew.sngioba:com, Californ'a C.ASS Enhanced Cash s tated oy
'LARI/ST py FitchRatings. The "AAAP rating Is Fitch's opinion oa the averil credit prafie aithin a fixed-ncome fundfsorifalio ang Ingdicates the highest underlying credit guallty of the poats
isvestments. The ‘51 volatility rating is Fitcn s opnion cn tre selative sens.tivity of a portisiio’s total return angfor net asset vawe to assumag thanzes in crent spreads and interest rates. The "1
solatility rating incicates that the fund pessesses a low sensitivity to market risks. Far a full gescription ¢n rating methodalogy alease visit wwawchichralings.com. Ratings are subject o change ang oo
net remave credit risk,

(213) 378-2070 (404) 822-8287

T (877)930-5213 | F (877)930-5241 | www.californiaclass.com | clientservices@californiaclass.com ’ 35



www.californiaclass.c

Sponsored by

LEAGUE OF
CALIFORNIA
\ CITIES

California Special
Districts Association

Districts Stronger fogether

A JOINT POWERS AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POOL

Client-First & User-Friendly Cash Management Solutions Designed
for California Public Agencies of All Sizes

California CLASS provides
Participants the following benefits:

v Convenient, modern transaction
portal

v’ Dedicated client service team equally
committed to all California public
agencies

v’ Portfolios managed in accordance
with California Government Code

v Transparent governance by Board of
Trustees

v Portfolios marked-to-market with
net asset value and yields posted to
website daily

Fund Option Enhanced Cash

Portfolio Type Prime-style fund Enhanced cash
Purpose Operating Funds Strategic Reserves
Rating ‘AAAM' 'AAAS/ST'
Withdrawals Unlimited Unlimited
Investment Horizon Day-to-Day 12-18 Months
Liqyit!lty! " Same-Day Next-Day
r-'-' .IW-AM <60 days 90-200 days
Net Asset Vatue Stable $1.00 Variable $10.00
(NAV) per share per share

Learn more about building an optimal liquidity portfolio for your public agency; contact us today.

Laura Glenn, CFA®

Bob Shult

Directer, Investment Services
bob.shull@californiaclass.com
{213) 378-2070

(404) 822-8287

Sepior Director, Investment Services
laura.glenn@californiaclass.com

Brent Turner

Regional Director of Strategy
brent.turner@californiaclass.com
{303) 999-8190

Rodrigo Bettini

Director, Investment Services
rodrigo.bettini@californiaclass.com
(813) 820-0703

Many factors atiect performance including changes in market conditions and interest rates and in response to other economic, palitical, or financlal developments, Investment involves risk includ:ng the possible loss
of principal No assurance can be given that the performance objeclives of a given strategy wilt be achieveg. California CLASS is not a bank. An investment in Califernia  CLASS is not insured or guaranieed by the
Federal Deposit Inscrance Corporation or any other gavernment agency Although California CLASS seeks 1o preserve Lhe value of your investment at $100 per share, il cannot guarantee it witl do 5o, Please review
the Calilornia CLASS Information Statement before investing, Past perfarmance is no guarantee of future results. Any linanclal and/or investment decision may incur losses. Cafifornla CLASS ‘s rated "AAAM' by SEP
Global Ratings. A 'AAAm' rating by S&P Global Ratings is obtained afler SEP evaluates a number of factars including credit quality. market price exposure, and management For a full description on rating
methodology, Dlease visit www spgicbalcom. Californla CLASS Enhanced Cash is rated 'AAAL/SI* by FitchRatings. The 'AAAL rating is Filch's opinion on the overall credit prafile within a fixed income tund/portfolio
and indicates the highest underlying crecit quality of the pool's investments. The 'SY volatitity rating is Fitch’s opinion on the relative sensitivity of a portfolio’s totat return and/or nel asset value o assumed changes
In credit spreads and interest rates, The ‘SY volatllity rating indicates that the fund possesses a low sensitivity to market risks. For a full description on rating methedology please visit www.iilchratings G 1ngs

are subject to change and do not remove credit risk,



The California CLASS Participant Portal will be unavailable this Saturday, July 15, from 6:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. PT for
routine maintenance. We apologize for the inconvenience.

(/)

Historical Rates

PRIME

Filter the yields by month: | Select Month ~

or select a date range:

July 13,2023

July 13,2023

Submit

PRIME
Jul 2023

Daily YTDYield 7-Day 30-Day WAMDays WAMDays Daily Net Asset Value
Date  Yield (%) (%) Yield (%) Yield (%) to Reset to Final Dividend (NAV)

07/13 5.2753 4.9196 5.2580 5.2516 42 78 0.000144529 0.99979651

& Download .CSV (/rate/?startdate=2023-07- 13&enddate=2023-07-13&class=08&export=csv)

Performance 376



CAMP - O Signin

Current Rate
m

Name Date Current Seven-Day Yield

Calfornia Asset Management Program 71312023 5.28%

A summary of the CAMP Pool holdings as of the most recert month end is avaliablz upon request by calling CAMP at (800) 729-7665 ar under
tha luyesior/Parlicipant Resources Section on this wabsite.

Current Annualized Yield

Past perdormance is not [ndicative of future resutts and yields may vary. The ‘current annualized yield™ of the Pool may, from time to time, be
quotet In repers, literature and advertisements published by the Trust. Current onnualized yield represents the net change, exclusive of capital
changes and income other than investment income, in the value of o hypothetical account with a balance of one share {normatly $1.00 per
share} over a seven-day base petiod expressed as a percentage of the value cf one share at the beginning of the seven-day period This
resulting net change In account velue is then annualized by multiplying it by 365 and dividing the result by 7.

CAMP.. Is a registered trademark and the CAMP logos and designs are trademarks owned by the California Asset
Management Trust (Trust)

This Information is for institutional investor use only, not for further distribution fo retall investors, and does not reprasent an
offer Io sell or a solicitation of an offer lo buy or self any fund or other securily. Investors should consider the Trust's investment
abjectives. risks, charges and expenses before investing in the Trust. This and other information about the Trust is avallabla i
the Trusl's current Information Statement, which should be read carefully before investing. A copy of the Trust's Information
Statement may be obtained by cafting 1-800-723-7665 or Is avallable on the Trust's website at wwv.campontiie com. While
the Cash Reserve Portfolio seeks to maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share and the CAMP Term Fortiolio seeks
fo achieve a net @sse! value of 51.00 per share al the stated maturily it is possible lo lose money investing In the Trust An
Investment in the Trust is not insured or guaranteed by the Fedaral Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other govemment
agency. Shares of the Trust are distributed by PFM Fund Distributors, lic., mamber Financlal Industry Reguiatary Authority
{FINRA) (viww finra.org) and Securities Investor Protection Carporalion (SIPC) {vwinw, sipc org). PEM Fund Distributors, Inc. is
an affiliate of PFM Asset Management LLC

Copyright 2020 Al Rughts Resenvad

Important Announcements

(c]



Mani

CAMP ki B @ sign In

About The Program

Since 1989, CAMP has served the investment and arhitrage compliance needs of Califomia public sgencies. Investment options offered to public
agencies through CAMP are the Pool, Term and individual portfolios. Arbitrage rebate complience services are availabla for bond proceeds
invested through the Program.

CAMP Pool

The Pool is a short-term cash reserve portfolio and cash management vehicle. The Poo! provides public agencies with

+ Same-day liquidity (11:00 a.m. Pacific Time cut-off for transactions)
+ Opportunity to eam a competitive yield

+ Interest paid monthly

« Zero out of pockel expenses

» Unlimited transactions via wire, ACH, or check

« Online account management

+ Sub-accounting

+ Sweep capabitity

The Pocl is managed to maintain a dollar-weighted average portfolio maturity of 60 days or less and seaks to maintain a constant net asset value
{NAV) per shere of $1.00. The Pocl invests in obligations of the United States Govarnment and its agencies, high-quality, shor-term debt
obligations of U.S. companies and financial institutions. The Pool is a pemitted investment for all local agencies under California Government
Code Section 53601{p).

CAMP is rated AAAM" by Standard & Poor's. To see the CAMP Pocol's Standard & Poor's report, click here

CAMP Term

Term is a fixed-rate, fixed-term investment thal allows CAMP Shareholders to seek to maximize intarest eamings on excess funds. Benefits
include:;

» Opporiunity to secure competitive interest rates

« Laddering maturities to meat known cash flow needs
« Salecting from a wide range of maturity dates

« Planning sround interest income streams

+ Diversifying your portfolio’s maturity structure

« AAAT rated by Fitch**

Tem allows Shareholders o lock in a competitive fixed rate of return for a specified timaframe. Term investments are based on a pool of open-
market securities similar to those in the Pool. They are matched to the amount invested and maturities selected by the Shameholder

Funds can be transferred directly from a Pool account to purchase Term investments and vice versa. Upon maturity, funds flow back into the
associated Pool account to help ensure they emain invested.

Individually Managed Portfolios

CAMP also offers public agencies the option to have an individuslly managed portfolio to meet the agency's specific investment cbjectives. An
indvidually managed portfolio provides a public agency with:

« The investment advisory resources of PFMAM, a leading investment advisory firm serving the public sector

= Investments tailored to meet the agency's specific liquidity needs or draw schedule

+ Portfolic management services focused on managing risk and enhancing earnings

« Investmenis in compliance with the agency’s investmen! policy or bond dacuments

« Competitive shopping for every security to identify the most favorable price and execution

+ Third-party custody of all assets

« Reasonable cost Important Announcemenls

Individually managed portfolios are automatically linked to the Investor'siParticipant’s Poo! account so that maturities and coupon payments are

37



invested at all times. Individually managed investment partfolios, which are not a part of the Program, are available under a separate agreement
with PFMAM, the Program's nvestment Adviser.

Arbitrage Rebate Compliance Services

For bond proceeds invested with CAMP, PFMAM tracks the proceeds for arbitrage rebate compliance purposes. [nvestors/Participants can
receive the following comespondence/reports:

» Spending exception compliance report: including notification of an upcoming expenditure test date
+ Yield rastriction compliance notification

= Annual estimates of accrued arbitrage rebate and yield restriction liabilities

+ Notification of instaliment Calculation Date sent 60 days in advance of the required calculation date
* Retention of arbitrage related documents and investment records

+ Rebate calculation reports at a nominal charge

Investors/Participants can check the arbitrage status of any of their bond issues invested with CAMP by contacting CAMP at {800} 729-7665,

*Standard & Poor's fund ratings are based on analysis of credit quality, market price exposure. and management. According to Standard &
Poor’s rating criteria, the AAAM rating signifies excellent safety of invested principal and a superior capacity to maintain a $1.00 per share net
asset value, However, i should be understocd that the rating is not a “market” rating nor a recommendation to buy, hokt or sell the securities. For
a full description on rating methodology, visit Standard & Peor's wabsile.

**The AAAF rating refiects Fitch Ratings’ ("Fitch”) review of the Term program'’s investment and credit guidelines, the portfolio’s credit quality and
diversification, as well as the capabilities of PFM Asset Managament LLC as investment adviser It indicates the highest undertying credit quality
{or lowest vulnerability to defauli). However, it should be understood thal this rating is not a “market” rating nor a recommendation lo buy, hold or
sell the securities. For a full description on rating methodology visit www fitchratings com

*Standard & Peor's fund ratings are hased on analysis of credit quality, market price exposure, and management. According to Standard &
Poor's rating criteria, the AAAm raling signifies excellent safely of invested principal and a superior capacity to maintain a $1.00 per share net
asset value. However, it should be understood that the rating is not a "market” rating nor a recommendation to buy, hold or sell the securities.
For a full description on rating methodology, visit hito./Mww.standardandpoors.com/en_USweb/guesthome.

CAMPg is a registered trademark and the CAMP logos and designs are trademarks owned by the California Asset
Management Trust (Trust).

This information is for institutional investor use only, not for further distribution to retail investors, and does not represent an
offer to sell or a soficitation of an offer to buy or sell any fund or other securily. investors should consider the Trust’s investment
objectives, risks, charges and expenses before invesling in the Trusl. This and other information about the Trust is available in
the Trust's current Information Statement, which should be read carefully before investing. A copy of the Trust's Information
Statement may be obtained by calling 1-800-729-7665 or is avaifable on the Trust's website at www.camponline.com. While
the Cash Reserve Portfolio seeks lo maintain a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share and the CAMP Term Portfolic seeks
{o achieve a net asset value of 31.00 per share at the stated maturity, it is possible to lose monsy investing in the Trust. An
investment in the Trust is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other government
agency. Shares of the Trust are distributed by PFM Fund Distributors, Inc., member Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
(FINRA) (www.finra.org) and Securities Investor Protection Comoration (SIPC) (www.sipe.org). PEM Fund Distribulors. Inc. is
an affifiate of PFM Asset Management LLC.

Copyright 2020, Al Rights Resarved.

Important Announcements

37 ¢ce)



From:

Stale of Calitornia California Slate Transportation Agency
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Memorandum

TINA LUCAS, CHIEF Date: June 28, 2023
Office of Project Support
Division of Design, MA 28 File: SLO-1-10.0/146.8
05-1H&50
EF1S: 0516000118

201,999 SHOPP Asset
Management Project

SCOTF MORRIS
Design Manager
Branch G

Office of Design Il
District 5

Subjeck: UTILITY POLICY EXCEPTION REQUEST

TIMOTHY CAMPBELL
Deputy District Director
D5 Project Development and Construction

Utility Policy Exceplion Request

The project is requesting an exception to the following policy from the Project Development Procedures
Manual (PDPM), Chapter 17, Section 3, Arlicle 2.

Project Description

The project is located in Monterey County on State Route (SR) 183 in the community of Castroville. This multi-
objective Asset Management Project seeks to address several transportation needs on SR 183 from just south
of Del Monte Avenue to the SR 1/SR 183 junction. The project would rehabilitate the pavement, address
essential bridge maintenance needs, improve multimodal feoture including transit stops., sidewalks,
driveways and curb ramps; along with new Intelligent Transportation System (TS} features and improve
aesthetics, bicycle network continuity, and pedestrian safety,

Existing Utilities
Existing ufilities al the project location are shown in the Attachment 2_05-1H&50-Utility Plans, sheets U-1

through U-16. Much of the project work consist of limited excavation as defined in PDPM Chapter 17, Section
1 and approximate locations of utilities are show in accordance with the Utility Policy.

o "High priority utilities must include positive location information.”

Utilities in variance:

IOwnerI Uttitty Location Notes Depth I Clear I

"Provide a safe and reliabte transportation network thaf serves all people and respects the environment”

38



Plan Pressure/ Varlance
Sh:ei Type Size Voltage Request
PH# 8-4
SW Str Sec 8" "
us | ccsp | SEWET | o N/A 384420 | (Shid Widen Str '?U:if"s"vﬁp 12vics) | oo
Sec=24".& Curb
SirSec 12")

The project is requesting an exception to the following peolicy from the Project Development Procedures

Manual {PDPM), Chapter 17, Section 3, Arlicle 4

e "Existing utilities must be protected in place or relocated in accordance with this Chapter and must
meet the following minimum clearances.”

o

Q

o}

e}

=]

18 inches below the grading plane {GP)

12 inches below disturbed ground

12 inches below the grading plane of drainage structures

18 inches below the flow line of proposed unlined ditches

24 inches horizontally from the side of planned excavations

Utilities in variance are identified in the following table:

40 Oty Varlance
Sheet | Owner Location Notes Depth | Clear | Action
4 Type Size P&i;’:;i’ Request S5
PH# 3-8, 18" below 18",
us | ccso | water | 2 NIA | Poeeaad® | PH# 318 GP e | o
SWSlrSec: | undersw) | (cs)
L S, Variance
Sh;el Owner == T Pressure/ Location Notes Request Depth | Clear Action
Yp Voltage
PH #6-2] 18" g‘;‘ow -
vs CCsD Water 1" N/A 372+07 {Curky Str Sec (Under (CS) o"
12’) Cutb)
PH #6-25 18" below
ué CCsD Water 2" N/A 374+07 {Curb Sir Sec GP ia" 4"
12") {Under
PH #7-12 18" below 12"
uz7 | ccsb | water | 8" N/A 377+70 | (Curb StrSec quP () 0"
12) o
L) S, Variance
Sheet | Owner Pressure/ Location Notes Request Depth | Clear Aciion
f# Type Size Voltage

"Provide a safe and refiable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment"



PH# 8-4

18" below
. T {SW §ir Sec GP .
us | ccsp | S| o N/A 2o 8" (Under SW, ('gS) 0"
tShld Widen Road &
LS Curb)
PH #8-6 18 g‘;“’w _—
us CCsD Water 12 N/A 381+52 [Cur?zs‘!]r Sec (Under (CS) 16
Curb}
Variance
Sh;ei Owner = e Pressure/ Location Noles Request Depth | Cleor Action
yP Vollage
PH #10-9
(Shid Widen 18"gelow
t Stl’ P 1" "
uio CCsD Sewer 8 N/A 394+88 Seceoa"s | {Under Road 29 5
Curb Sir Sec & Curb)
12'
Flon Oty Variance
Sh:et Owner e = Pressure/ Location Notes Request Depth | Clear Action
yp Voltage
PH #11-39 18" below
Ut CCsD Water " N/A 402+04 {SW Sir Sec GP 25" 17"
=8") (Under SW)
Plan AT&T
Ul4 Varlance -
Sheet U14 Pressure/ Location Notes Request Depth | Clear Action
# PG&E Size v
oltage
PH #15-2 18" below
" {Shid Widen GP " “
uis CCsD Water 5 N/A 424+4| Sir Sec=24" (Under 30 6
SW & Curb) Curb)
PH #15-19 18" below
" {Shid Widen GP " "
u1s CCsD Water 2 N/A 424+41 Sir Sec=24". {Undler 38 14
SW & Curb) Curb)
Acronyms
AB Aggregate Base Sec Section
CS Cement Slurry Shid Shoulder
CaG Curb and Guiter Str Structural
Dwy Driveway SW Sidewalk
GP Grading Plane u Utility
HP High Pressure VG Valley Gutter
N/A Not Applicable
PH Pothole
PIP Protect in Place
Rd Road

“Provide a safe and reliable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

40



Policy Variances

Sheet U-2
The work at the location as shown on sheet U-2 includes 0.6' mill and asphalt concrete overlay.

+ Electric Line: A 2" electric line was located [PH 2-3) at a depth of 18”. The electric line is located
along Merritt Street running longitudinally along the northbound edge of travel way/ shoulder.

Sheet U-3
The work at the location as shown on sheet U-3 includes 0.6' mill and asphalt concrete overlay, ADA curb
ramps, curb and sidewalk.

+ Electric lines: Electric lines that cross perpendicular to Merritt Street towards Ook Street were test
holed (PH 3-3, PH 3-5, and PH 3-7).

o Concrete slury backfill was encountered at a depth of 14" {PH 3-3) over the electrical line,
It is common practiice to cover utilities with concrete slurry under roadways.

o Concrete slury backfill was encountered at o depth of 12" [PH 3-5) over the electrical line.
o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 14" (PH 3-7) over the electrical line.

e Gasline: A 4" gas line runs under Blackie Road was test holed {PH 3-1). This gas line was positively
located at a depth of 34",

s Water line: A 2" water line was located (PH 3-8 and PH 3-18). This water line will be below the
proposed ADA ramp and sidewalk.

o The 2" water line was posilively located at a depth of 18" (PH 3-8).

o Concrete slunry backfill was encountered at a depth of 16" (PH 3-18) over the waterdine.
+  TVine: A 2"TV line runs perpendicular to Meritt Street were test holed (PH 3-5A and PH 3-6).

o The 2" TV line was positively located at a depih of 24" [PH-3-5A).

o Concrete slumy backfill was encountered at a depth of 14" [PH 3-6) over the tv line.

Sheet U-4
Work at the location shown on sheet U-4 includes 0.46' mill and asphali concrete overlay, and median curb

and gutter.

+ Electiic lines: Test holes were performed {PH 4-1, PH 4-3, and PH 4-4, and PH 4-7) for the electrical
line that run longitudinally along the edge of travel way in the northbound direction.

o The electrical lines were positively located at a depth of 13" [PH 4-1).
o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depih of 18" [PH 4-3) over the electrical lines.
o Concrete slurry backfill was encouniered at a depth of 16" [PH 4-4) over the electrical lines.
o The electrical lines were positively located at a depth of 13" [PH 4-7).

o Electricline: An electrical ine runs perpendicular to Merritt Street was test holed {PH 4-11). Concrete
slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 227,

"“Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

41



e Gasline: A 1" gas line runs perpendicular to Merrilt Street under the median curb was test holed [PH
4-24). This gas line was positively located at a depth of 24",

Sheet U-5

The work at the location shown on sheet U-5 includes 0.4' mill ond asphalt concrele overlay, ADA curb ramps
and sidewalk improvements.
« FElectrical lines: Electric lines that cross perpendicular to Menitt Street just south of Monterey Street
were fest holed (PH 5-1). Concrete slumy backfill was encountered at a depih of 17" over the
electrical lines.

s Electricallines: Electricallines runlongitudinal to Meritt Street along the southbound travel way were
test holed (PH 5-8, PH, PH 5-10, and PH 5-14A).

o Concrete slurry backfill was encounterad at a depth of 13" (PH 5-8) over the electrical lines.
o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 13" (PH 5-10) over the electrical lines,

o Concrete slurry backiill was encountered at a depth of 10" {PH 5-14A) over ihe electricol
lines.

o Electric Line: A 3/4" electric line was located {PH 5-21} at a depth of #". The electric line is located
along Merritt Street running longitudinatly along the northbound edge of travel way/ shoulder,

o Gosline: A 3/4" gos line runs perpendicular to Meritt Street under the median curb was 1est holed
{PH 5-4A). This gas line was positively located at a depth of 9",

«  Gasline: A 3/4" gas line runs perpendicular to Merritt Street under the median curb was test holed
{PH 5-4B}. This gas line was positively located at a depth of 28",

« Gasline: A 3/4" gas line runs perpendicular to Merritt Street under the curb and sidewalk was test
holed [PH 5-11}. This gas line was positively located ot a depth of 29",

» Fiber Optic lines: A 4" fiber optic that run longitudinal along Merritt Street along the southbound
fravel way under the gutter was test holed (PH 5-6, and PH 5-6A).

o Concrete slurry backfil was encountered at a depth of 24" {PH 5-6) over the fiber oplic line,
o The electrical lines were positively located at a depth of 29" [PH 5-6A).

» Fiber Opfic lines: A 4" fiber oplic that run longitudinal along Merritt Street along the southbound
travel way under the gutier was test holed {PH 5-13, PH 5-17, and PH 5-18].

o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 13" (PH 5-13) over the fiber optic line.
o Concrete slurry backiill was encountered at a depth of 20" [PH 5-17) over the fiber opfic line.

o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 17" (FH 5-18) over the fiber optic line.

Sheet U-&

The work at the location shown on sheet U-4 includes 0.6' mill and overlay, ADA curb ramps and sidewalk
improvements.

+ Electricallines: Electrical lines run longitudinal along Meritt Street along the southbound travel way
were test holed (PH é-1). Concrete slumy backfill was encountered at a depth of 14" over the
electrical fines.

s Electical line: A 2" Blectrical line way was test holed (PH 6-8). The electrical line was positively
located at a depth of 13" that runs parallel under the curb and sidewalk,

“Provide a sofe and refiable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

o

{



Electrical lines: Electrical lines run longitudinal along Merritt Street along the northbound travel way
were test holed (PH 6-%, PH 6-12 and PH 6-16).

o The electrical ines were positively located ot a depth of 26" {PH 4-9).
o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 6" (PH 6-12) over the electrical line.
o Concrele slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 8" [PH 4-16) over the electrical line.

Electricalline: A 3" Electrical line was test holed (PH 6-2é). The electrical was positively localed at a
depth of 25" that runs perpendicular under the driveway.

Fiber Optic line: A 2" fiber optic that run longitudinal to Meritt Sireet along the northbound travel
way line was fest holed [PH é-11). Concrete slurmy backfill was encountered ot a depth of 12" over
the fiber optic line.

Fiber Oplic line: A 2" fiber optic that crosses perpendicular o Memitt Street was test holed {PH 6-13).
Concrete slumy backfill was encountered at a depith of 13" over the fiber opfic line,

Waterline: A 1" water service lateral line runs under the driveway was test holed {PH 4-21). Concrete
slurry backfilt was encountered at a depth of 12" over the water service lateral line.

Water line: A 2" water service lateral line runs under the driveway was test holed (PH é-25). The
water service lateral was positively located at a depth of 14",

Sheet U-7

The work al the localion shown on sheet U-7 includes 0.6" mill and overlay, ADA curb ramps and sidewalk
improvements.

Blectrical line: A 2" electrical line that runs fongitudinal along Merritt Street along the northbound
travel way was test holed {PH 7-2 and PH 7-19}.

o Concrete slurmy backfill was encountered at a depth of 7" {PH 7-2) over the elecirical line.
o The electrical lines were positively located at a depth of 24" [PH 7-19),

Electrical lines: Electrical lines run longitudingal along Merritt Street along the southbound travel way
was test holed (PH 7-6 and PH 7-14).

o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 12" (PH 7-4) over the slectrical lines.
o Concrete slurry backfill was encountered ot a depth of 14" {PH 7-14} over ihe electrical lines.

Gas line: A 4" gas line was test holed [PH 7-21, 7-21A). Concrete slurmy backfill was encountered at
13" deep at both locations just prior to the bridge crossing.

Fiber Optic line: A 2" fiber optic that runs longitudinal along Merritt Sireet along the northbound
travel way was test holed {PH 7-2}. Concrete slumry backfill was encountered at a depth of 7" over
the fiber oplic line.

Fiber Oplic line: A 2" fiber optic that runs longitudinal along Haro Sireet was test holed [PH 7-4).
Concrete slury backfill was encountered at a depth of 9" over the fiber optic line.

Water line: A 8" water line runs under the curb was est holed (PH 7-12). Concrete slurry backfill was
encountered at a depth of 12" over the water line.

TV line: A TV line running aleng the curb was test holed (PH 7-17). Concrete slurry backfill was
encountered at a depth of 14" deep over the TV line.

"Pravide a safe and refiable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

-t

o



Sheet U-8
The work at the location shown on sheet U-8 includes 0.2' mill and overlay, ADA curb ramps and sidewalk
improvements.

Electrical line: A 1" electrical service line runs perpendicular across Meritt Street was test holed (PH
8-9}. The electric line was positively localed at a depth of 38" that runs under the widening of Merritt
Street.

Electrical line: A 2" elechical line runs perpendicular across Pajaro Street was test holed (PH 8-14).
The eleciric line was positively located at a depth of 32" that runs under the widening of Merritt
Street.

Gas line: A 4" gas line was fest holed {PH 8-1). Concrete slurry backfill was encountered at 13" deep
over the gas line just prior to the bridge crossing.

Fiber Optic line: A 2" fiber oplic line runs perpendicular across Pajaro Street was test holed (PH 8-14).
The fiber optic line was positively located at a depth of 32" that runs under the widening of Mermritt
Sireet,

Sewer line: A 10" sewer line was test holed (PH 8-4). Concrete slumy backfill was encountered at a
depth of 12" over the sewer line that runs under the widening of Mermitt Street,
Water ling: A 8" waler line runs under the curb was test holed (PH 8-6). Concrete slurry backfill was

encountered al a depth of 28" over the water line,

TV line: A 2" TV line runs perpendicular across Pajaro Sireet was test holed {PH 8-14}. The TV line was
positively locoted at a depth of 32" that runs under the widening of Menitt Street.

Vine: A 2'TV line that runs longitudinally under the curb and gutter was test holed (PH 8-15).
Concrete slury backfill was encountered al a depth of 12" over the TV line.

Sheet U-2

The work at the location shown on sheet U-? includes 0.2' mill and asphalt concrete overlay, ADA curb ramps
and sidewalk improvements.

Gas line: A %" gas line was test holed (PH 9-13). The gas line was positively located at a depth of 21
that runs under the curb and gutter.

Gas line: A %" gas line was test holed [PH 9-15). The gas line was positively locaied at a depth of 26"
that runs under the curb and gutier,

Sheet U-10

The work at the locatfion shown on sheet U-10 includes 0.2' mill and asphalt concrete overay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvemenis.

Electric line: A 3" electric line run perpendicular across Merritt Street was test holed {PH 10-6A). The
electric line was positively located at a depth of 33" that runs under the widening of Merritt Sireet,

Gos line: A %" gas line was test holed (PH 10-17}. The gas line was posilively located at a depth of
25" that runs under the curb and gutter.,

Gasline: A 2" gas line run perpendicular across Merritt Street was test holed {PH 10-20). The gas line
was positively located at a depth of 31" that runs under the widening of Merritt Sireet,

Sewer line: A 8" sewer line was test holed (PH 10-9). The sewer line was positively located at a depth
of 29" thot runs under the curb and sidewalk.

"“Provide a safe and refiable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

44



TVline: A 2'TV line was test holed (PH 10-13). The TV line is positively located at a depth of 19" that
runs under the sidewalk.

Sheet U-11

The work at the location shown on sheet U-11 includes 0.2' mill and asphalt concrete overlay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvements.

Eleclical ine: A é” electrical line was test holed (PH 11-20). The electric line was positively located
at o depth of 29" that runs under the driveway and sidewalk.

Electrical line: A 3" elechical line was test holed [PH 11-33). The electric line was positively located
at a depth of 28" that runs longitudinal along Merritt Street along the northbound travel way.,

Electical line: A 4" electrical line was test holed [PH 11-26 and PH 11-26A). The electric line was
positively located at depths of 27" and 22" that runs under the sidewalk.

Electrical lines: A 5" electricalline was test holed {PH 11-29}, The electrical line was positively located
ot depths of 24" which run longitudinal along Merriti Street under the sidewalk and curb.

Gos line: A %" gos line was test holed (PH 11-5). The gas line was posilively located ot a depth of 24"
that runs under the curb and gutter.

Gos line: A 24" gas line was test holed (PH 11-19). The gas line was positively located at a depth of
22" that runs under the curb and gutier.

Gos line: A %" gas line was test holed [PH 11-26 and PH 11-26A). The gas line was positively located
at depths of 24" and 21" that runs under the sidewalk.

Gas line: A %" gas line was test holed (PH 11-34). The gas fine was positively localed at a depth of
23" that runs under the curb and guiter.

Waler line: A 1" waler line was test holed {PH 11-3%). The waler line was posilively located at a
depth of 25" that runs under the curb and sidewalk.

Sheet U-12

The work at the location shown on sheet U-12 includes 0.2' mill and asphalt concrete overlay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvements.

Elecirical ine: A 6" elecirical line was test holed (PH 12-9}. The electrical line was positively located
at a depth of 31" that runs perpendicular under the concrete valley gutter.

Electical fine: A electrical line was test holed (PH 12-17). Concrete slurry backfill was encouniered
ot a depih of 27" over the electrical lines that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Electrical line: A 1" electrical line was test holed (PH 12-24). The electrical was positively located at
a depth of 192" that runs longitudinal under the sidewalk.

Electrical line: A 6" electrical line was test holed (PH 12-26, PH 12-28, PH 12-30, and PH 12-42) that
runs longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street.

o The é" electric line was positively tocated (PH 12-24) with a depth of 17",
o The é&" electric line was positively located (PH 12-28) with a depth of 14",
o The é" electric line was positively located (PH 12-30) with a depth of 14",

o The é" electric line was positively located {PH 12-42) with a depth of 17",

“Provide o safe and reliable fransportation network that serves all people and respects the environment"



*

Gas line: A 2" gas line was test holed (PH 12-10). The gas line was positively located at a depth of
31" that runs perpendicular under the concrete valley gutter.

Gas lines: A %" gas service line was test holed (PH 12-12). The gas service line was positively located
at a depth of 17" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Gas lines: A %" gas service line was test holed {PH 12-20). The gas service line was positively located
at a depth of 29" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Gaslines: A %" gas service line was test holed (PH 12-41). The gas service line was paositively located
at a depth of 29" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutier.

Gaslines: A %" gas service line was test holed [PH 12-61). The gas service line was positively located
at a depth of 23" that runs perpendicutar under the curb and gutter.

Fiber Optic line: A 4" fiber optic line was test holed (PH 12-7, PH 12-18, PH 12-26, PH 12-27, PH 12-28,
PH 12-30 and PH 12-42) that runs longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk on Merrift Street.

o The 4" fiber oplic line was positively located {PH 12-7) with a depth of 19",

o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located {PH 12-18) with a depth of 14",

o Two 4" fiber oplic lines were positively located (PH 12-26) with a depth of 12",

o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located {PH 12-27) with a depth of 20".

o The 4" fiber optic line was posilively located {PH 12-28) with a depth of 20",

o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located [PH 12-30) with a depth of 20".

o The 4" fiber optic line was posilively located [PH 12-42) with a depth of 18",
Fiber Optic lines: Three 4" fiber oplic lines were test holed {PH 12-16) that runs perpendicular across
Merritt Street.  The fiber optic lines were positively located with a depth of 27" that run under the
curb and gutter.
Fiber Optic line: A 4" fiber optic line was test holed {PH 12-48) that runs longitudinally under the
northbound sidewalk on Merritt Sireet. The 4" fiber optic line was positively located with a depth of

12",

Fiber Optic lines: Three 4" fiber opfic lines were test holed (PH 12-48, PH 13-4, PH 13-8 and PH 13-13)
that runs longitudinally under the sidewalk and driveways.

o The fiber opfic lines were positively located (PH 12-48) with a depth of 12",
o The fiber opfic lines were positively localed (PH 13-4} with a depth of 20".
o The fiber oplic lines were positively localed {PH 13-8) with a depth of 29",
o The fiber oplic lines were positively located (PH 13-13) with a depth of 21",

TV lines: The TV lines were test holed (PH 12-12). The TV lines were positively located at a depih of
24" that runs under the curb and sidewalk.

Sheet U-13

The work at the location shown on sheet U-12 includes 0.2" mill and asphalt concrete overay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvements,

Electrical line: A 4" electrical line was test holed {PH 13-4} that runs longitudinally under the
northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street. The 4" electric line was positively located with a depth of 19"

"Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”



Electrical line: A 4" electrical ine was test holed (PH 13-7) that runs perpendicular across Merritt
Street. Concrele slurry backfill was encountered at a depth of 13" over the electric line.

Electrical line: A 6" electical iine was test holed [PH 13-8) that runs longitudinally under the
northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street. The 6" electric line was positively located with a depth of 14",

Electrical line: A 6" electrical line was test holed {PH 13-9) thal runs longitudinally olong the
southbound fravel way on Merritt Sireet. Concrele slumy backfill was encountered at a depth of 12"
over the electric line.

Electrical line: Two 4" electrical lines run perpendicular across Merritt Street were test holed (PH 13-
16). The electric lines were positively localed at depths of 41" and 42" that runs under the widening
of Meritt Street,

Electricalline: A 6" electrical line was fest holed (PH 13-21, PH 13-23, PH 13-24 and PH 13-30) that runs
longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street.

o The &" eleciric line was positively located (PH 13-21) with a depth of 18",
o The é" electric line was positively located {PH 13-23} with a depth of 14",
o The é" electric line was positively located {PH 13-24) with a depth of 14",
o The §" electic line was positively located (PH 13-30) with a depth of 13",

Gasline: A %" gas service line was test holed [PH 13-25). The gas service line was positively located
ot a depth of 29" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Gasline: A '2" gas service line was test holed (PH 13-31}. The gas service line was positively located
al a depth of 25" that runs perpendicular under the curb and guiter.

Gasline: A %" gas service line was test holed {PH 13-35). The gas service line was posilively located
al a depth of 22" that runs perpendicular under the curb and guiter.

Gasline: A %" gas service ling was test holed (PH 13-36). The gas service line was posilively located
at a depth of 25" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Fiber Optic Line: A 4" fiber optic line was test holed (PH 13-4, PH 13-8 and PH 13-13) that runs
longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street.

o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located {PH 13-4} with a depih of 20".

o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located [PH 13-8) with o depth of 19",
o The 4" fiber optic line was positively located [PH 13-13} with a depth of 21",

Fiber Optic lines: A 4" fiber optic line runs perpendicular across Merritt Street was test holed (PH 13-
16}. The fiber optic line was positively located at a depth of 39" that runs under the widening of
Merritt Street,

Fiber Oplic Lines: Three 2" fiber opfic lines were test holed (PH 13-18). The fiber optic lines were
positively located with a depth of 19" that runs perpendicular under the curb and gutter.

Fiber Optic Lines: 4" fiber optic lines were test holed {PH 13-21, PH 13-23, PH 13-24 and PH 13-30) that
runs longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk on Merritt Street.

o The 4" fiber optic lines were posilively located [PH 13-21) with depth of 18", 23", 27" and 27".

"Provide a sofe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment”

7



o The 4" fiber opfic lines were positively located [PH 13-23) with depth of 18", 18", 18", 22", and
22",

o The 4" fiber optic lines were positively located (PH 13-24) wilh depth of 12", 14", and 20".

o The 4" fiber optic lines were positively located {PH 13-30) with depth of 18", 18", 19", 22", and
22",

TV ling: A 4" TV line was test holed [PH 13-4) that runs longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk
on Merritt Sireet. The 4" tv line was positively located with a depth of 20™.

TV line: A 2" tv line was test holed {PH 13-24} that runs longitudinally under the northbound sidewalk
on Menitt Street. The tv line was positively located with a depth of 23",

Sheet U-14

The work at the location shown on sheet U-15 includes 0.2' mill and aspholt concrete overlay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvements.

Electrical line: A 4" electrical line was test holed {PH 14-6). The electrical line was positively located
at depths of 23" which run perpendicular across Merritt Streel under the sidewalk and curb,

Electrical lines: Electrical lines were test holed (PH 14-12A). The electrical line was positively located
at depths of 33.5” to 50" which run under the widening of Mermritt Street.

Gasline: A %" gos service line was test holed {PH 14-35). The gas service line was positively located
at a depth of 25" thal runs perpendicular under the driveway.

Fiber Optic lines: Two 4" fiber optic lines were test holed (PH 14-3). The fiber optic lines were positively
located at a depth of 27" that runs longitudinally along the nothbound travel way of Merrilt Street
under the guiter and sidewalk,

Sheet U-15
The work at the location shown on sheet U-15 includes 0.2' mill and asphall concrete overlay, ADA curb
ramps and sidewalk improvements.

Eleckical lines: Electrical lines run longitudinal along Merritt Street along the southbound travel way
were tesi holed (PH 15-1). The electric lines were posilively located ot a depth of 39" and 43" that
runs under the widening of Meritt Street.

Electrical lines: Electrical lines run perpendicular across Merritt Street were test holed {PH 15-10). The
electric lines were positively localed at a depth of 34" and 35" that runs under the widening of Merritt
Street.

Gas line: A %" gas service line run perpendicular across Meritt Street was test holed (PH 15-3). The
gas line was positively located at a depth of 35" that runs under the widening of Merritt Street.

Fiber Optic line: A 4" fiber optic line that runs perpendicular across Merritt Street was test holed (PH
15-12). The fiber opfic line was positively located at a depth of 37" that runs under the widening of
Merritt Street.

Water line. A 5" water line was test holed (PH 15-10). The water line was positively located at a
depth of 30" that runs under the widening of Merritt Street,

Water line: A 2" waler line was lest holed (PH 15-19). The water line was positively located at o
depth of 38" that runs under the widening of Merritt Street,

TV line: A 2" TV ling that run was test holed (PH 15-2). The tv line was positively located at a depth
of 21" that runs under the curb and gutter,

"Provide a safe and refiable fransportation netwaork that serves ol people and respects the environment”

18



o TViine: A2"TV line that run was test holed [PH 15-20). The v line was positively located at a depth
of 20" that runs longitudinally to Merritt Street.

Sheet U-15
The work al the location shown on sheet U-16 includes 0.2' mill ond asphalt concrete overlay,

« TVliine: 2" TV line that crosses Merritt Sireet was test holed {PH 14-9). Concrete slurry backfill was
encountered at a depth of 10" over the TV line.

Justification

{High Priority Ulility Verification)

Test holes were performed for the gas line on both sides of the bridge overpass. The test holes encountered
concrete slury over the gas line. Positive localion of this gas line could not be confirmed due to this concrete
slurry,

A test hole for the sewer force main was performed a few feet downstream to positively locate this facility.
The upstream portion of this sewer force main will have similar depth,

{Existing Utility Minimum Clearance)

The pavement improvements for this project will be mill and asphalt concrete overlay, sliver roadway
widening and concrete sidewalk improvements with a majority of the project improvements not extend 1o
the depths of the existing utilities. The existing utilities within the project limils have been positively located

and are shown on sheets U-1 thru U-14, In addition, the justification for this utility policy exception includes
the following:

* A majority of the existing utilities are protecied by concrete shurry.

» Mil and asphall concrete overay improvements will not extend into the sub-base of pavement
structural section,

e Concrete slurry will be added over the top of the existing utility in locations where the utility is within
the aggregate sub-base.

Attachments
1. 05-1H450 Title Sheet
2. 05-1H&50 Utility Plans

3. 05-1H650 Construction Details — Typical Utility protection

"Provide a safe and reliable fransportation network thot serves all people and respecis the environment”



sk of

Eric Tynan — General Manager

TO: CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20,2023

RE: Consider approving the Castroville Community Services District’'s Water
Shortage Contingency Plan

RECOMMENDATION:;

Approve the Castroville Community Services District's Water Shortage
Contingency Plan

SUMMARY;

In 2018 the State passed requirements that water systems must comply with in
order to deal with water shortages brought on by the extended drought. In order to
comply with Water Code 10632sub(a)-(i) the District developed the Water Shortage
Contingency Plan mandated by the SWRCB. The plan lays out the triggers and

responses various scenarios and triggers to deal with water supply shortages
FISCAL IMPACT:

Additional costs are undetermined at this time

50



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This Water Shortage Contingency Plan is developed in compliance with California Water Code
Section 10632. Requirements of subsections (a)-(i) are identified below and are accompanied by
the required elements and information.

The CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (CCSD) obtains 100% of its water
supply from the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin (SVGB). The SVGB is not adjudicated and
provides water for growers, residence and other municipal and industrial uses in the Salinas
Valley. Due to cumulative basin over pumping, coastal aquifers are experiencing seawater
intrusion. CCSD continues to work with Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA)
in developing plans to coordinate and encourage preservation of the SVGB aquifers by all
municipal and agricultural users.

In 2011, CCSD added Well # 5, a deep well that has improved system-wide reliability by
diversifying use of our multiple aquifers.

CCSD is actively pursuing development of a Regional Water Supply Project, in partnership with
the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA) and California-American Water
Company (CAWC).

The Regional Project will develop desalinated water from the seawater-intruded portion of the
SVGB. This supply will meet current water demands within the CAWC Monterey service area
and future water demands within the SVGB.

The production wells would be installed within the intruded portions of the SVGB and are
intended to intercept seawater intrusion before it can migrate further inland and further
contaminate the aquifer. The project also includes a recycled water component that will provide
non-potable water for landscape irrigation within the MCWRA, CSIP and CAWC service areas.

One other coordinated effort includes the Water Awareness Commitiee of Monterey County
(WAC). Through the WAC, representatives from several agencies throughout Monterey County
work together coordinating conservation and other water awareness efforts including education
programs, information booths for special events and public understanding of Monterey County
water challenges and opportunities.

California Water Code Section 10632(c) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier
to prepare for, and implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies, including
but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake or other disaster.

The CCSD developed and adopted an Emergency Response Plan for emergency and disaster
occurrences with guidelines and agreements for cooperative efforts with other State and local
agencies, as required by the State Health Department. This Plan contains actions CCSD would
initiate in the event of a catastrophic reduction in its water supply.



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

2.0 STAGES OF ACTION

California Water Code Section 10632(a) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water
supplier in response to water supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water
supply and an outline of specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stage.

The CCSD developed a five-stage Water Conservation Plan that includes two voluntary and
three mandatory stages. Table | generally describes the various stages. Specific water supply

conditions applicable to each stage, referred to as “triggering mechanisms” herein, are discussed
in the next section.

Table 1: Water Conservation Stages and Reduction

Stage Demand Reduction Goal Type Program
Stage | 10% reduction Voluntary
Stage 2 15% reduction Voluntary
Stage 3 25% reduclion Mandatory
Stage 4 35% reduction Mandatory
Stage 5 50%-+ reduction Mandatory

Priorities for use of available water, based on California Water Code Chapter 3 are:
1. Health and Safety - interior residential and fire fighting

2. Commercial, Industrial, and Governmental - maintain jobs & economic base

3. Existing Landscaping - especially trees and shrubs

4. New Demand - projects without permits when shortage declared

California Water Code Section 10632(b) An estimate of the minimum water supply available
during each of the next three water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for
the agency’s water supply.

This requirement is oriented toward water supply systems that are primarily supplied via surface
waters and therefore can be directly affected by short-term fluctuations in hydrology i.e., drought
conditions. CCSD’s total current water supply is produced through groundwater pumping from
the large SVGB. CCSD supply availability from this basin has not historically varied due to
short-term hydrologic conditions. The minimum water supply available within the driest three-

year sequence is expected to match demands as discussed in the Modified Urban Water
Management Plan.

3.0 TRIGGERING MECHANISMS

The SVGB is currently the most important source of water for CCSD. In 2004, the CCSD's
groundwater withdrawals of about 780 acre-feet accounted for less than one percent (1%) of the
estimated basin-wide annual extractions of roughly 550,000 acre-feet. Given this relatively
small percentage, CCSD conservation and contingency management activities can play only a
small part within the SVGB. The foremost concern in developing appropriate triggers is
achieving the maximum practical protection of an adequate long-term water supply of acceptable

- 92



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

quality for CCSD customers. To that end, triggering mechanisms should be tied to factors that,
directly or indirectly, have the greatest potential effect on the gquality and quantity of available
groundwater.
Two general types of threats could cause CCSD to experience water shortages:
I.  Unanticipated catastrophic system failure due to an earthquake, terrorist attack or
sudden contamination of water supply, or
2. Chronic system shortage due to seawater intrusion reaching water supply wells in
concentrations such that those wells would have to be removed from service.

In the case of a catastrophic failure, the CCSD would assess the nature and extent of the failure,
and the General Manager would identify the appropriate Conservation Stage in accordance with
the expected level of water supply shortage. Should shortages be anticipated in amounts beyond
fifty percent of normal demands, emergency actions will be taken in accordance with the
CCSD’s Emergency Response Plan, including enacting emergency ordinances as may be
required by CCSD Board of Directors.

The chronic system threat to CCSD's present water supplies is seawater intrusion, which has
occurred along the coastal margin of the Salinas Valley in response to historic over-drafting of
the basin. Contamination from arsenic has also affected CCSD Well #5 and could pose
additional problems. Although seawaler intrusion has not yet affected the deep zone (900-Foot
Aquifer) of the SVGB (which is the source of supply for CCSD's Well No.5), it is possible that
continued extractions in the 900-Foot Aquifer could ultimately lead to contamination of these
water supplies by seawater, CCSD monitors the rate of seawater intrusion and plans to construct
a new well in the deep aquifer and develop alternative water resources that would be insulated
from intrusion. However, it is possible for intrusion to appear in a relatively short time span and
reduce overall supplies available. Consequently, the CCSD has structured this Water Shortage
Contingency Plan with the primary goal of reducing water supply demands to allow time for
alternative water supply measures, including the drilling of alternate wells in areas unaffected by
intrusion and/or contamination. A specific triggering mechanism for various levels of
conservation is tied to concentrations of chlorides in CCSD wells . Chloride concentration is
directly related to the seawater intrusion problem, and are related to the overall basin viability as
a secure source of water supply.

Chloride concentration, which is the trigger for the most advanced stages of conservation, is also
a key indicator of water quality degradation due to seawater intrusion. Tests for statistically
significant changes in chloride concentrations assist in the detection of the earliest stages of
intrusion and are appropriate indicators of a water supply emergency. In addition, CCSD
currently is investigating desalting Well #3 which was our most efficient well until Chlorides
exceeded 500 Mg/L.

.l

W



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

TRIGGERING MECHANISMS FOR CONSERVATION STAGES

These Triggering mechanisms shall be interpreted as guidelines and are summarized in Table 2.
The General Manager and/or Board of Directors may impose any of the following conservation
stages based upon facts and circumstances which may not have been otherwise anticipated in this
plan.

Table 2 Conservation Level Triggering Mechanisms

Conservation Stage

and Shortage Level Triggering Mechanism

Stage One 1) systern malfunction resulting in up to 10% shortage

0-10% 2) increase in chlorides which do not threaten to exceed drinking water
Voluntary quality standard

Stage Two 1} system malfunction resulting in greater than10% shortage

>10-25% 2) increase in chlorides which may threaten to exceed drinking water
Voluntary quality standard

Stage Three 1) system malfunction resuiting in greater than 25% shortage

>25-35% 2) increase in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water quality
Mandatory standard

Stage Four 1) systern malfunction resulting in greater than 35% shortage

>35-50% 2) increase in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water quality
Mandatory standard

Stage Five 1) system malfunction resulting in greater than 50% shorlage

>50% 2} increase in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water quality
Mandatory standard

STAGE 1: Upto 10% - Voluntary

Stage | conservation measures may be called for as a result of malfunction of all or portions of
the water system that reduces supplies by up to 10% on a daily, peak seasonal or annual basis. It
also may be called due to prolonged drought conditions and a need to focus public attention on
water conservation.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of a statistically significant increase in chloride concentrations but
where such concentrations do not threaten to exceed the CA DHS “Upper Level”
secondary (aesthetics) drinking water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the
well(s) in question, or

54



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

STAGE 2: >10% to 25% -Voluntary

Stage 2 conservation measures may be called for due to malfunction or failure of all or portions

of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 10% on a daily, peak seasonal or annual
basis.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of a statistically significant increase in chloride concentrations where
such concentrations may threaten to exceed the CA DHS “Upper Level”
secondary (aesthetics) drinking water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the
well(s) in question, or

STAGE 3: >25% to 35% - Mandatory

Stage 3 conservation measures may be called for due to malfunction or failure of all or portions

of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 25% on a daily, peak seasonal or annual
basis.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected to exceed the CA DHS “Upper Level” secondary (aesthetics) drinking
water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the well(s) in question, or

STAGE 4: >35% to 50% - Mandatory

Stage 4 conservation measures may be called for due to malfunction or failure of all or portions

of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 35% on a daily, peak seasonal or annual
basis.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected to exceed the CA DHS “Upper Level” secondary (aesthetics) drinking
water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the well(s) in question, or

STAGE 5: >50% - Mandatory

Stage 5 conservation measures may be called for due to in malfunction or failure of all or

portions of the water system that reduces supplies by 50 % or more on a daily, peak seasonal or
annual basis.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected to exceed the short term primary drinking water standard of 600 mg/] at
the well(s) in question, or

4.0 CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS AND APPEAL PROCEDURES

© 95



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

The following are CCSD’s conservation requirements by customer type and stage and the appeal
procedures. These requirements and procedures are adopted as part of CCSD’s Water Shortage
Contingency Plan.

STAGE 1: Up to 10% - Voluntary — Minimal Conservation Requirement

CCSD shall:
- notify all customers of the water shortage
- mail information to every customer and reasonably available potential water user
explaining the importance of significant water use reductions
- provide technical information to customers on ways to improve water use efficiency
- conduct media campaign to remind consumers of the need to save water
- publicize the showerhead, toilet rebate and other efficiency programs
- enforce mandatory restrictions on water waste as provided in CCSD Code, Chapter 21

STAGE 2: >10% to 25% -Voluntary — Moderate Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions listed in Stage 1, CCSD shall call for voluntary reductions of up to 25%
for each connection based on the average use during a base period proposed by the Water
Conservation Commission and adopted by CCSD’s Board of Directors.

STAGE 3: >25% to 35% - Mandatory — Severe Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions listed in Stage 1 and 2, CCSD shall establish mandatory annual
allotments for each connection based on the average use during a base period proposed by the
CCSD’s Board of Directors. When Stage 3 use reduction becomes necessary, administration and
enforcement of water conservation rules becomes the major focus of CCSD. If necessary,
additional temporary personnel may be hired and special meetings Board of Directors may be
scheduled.

1. Each water service connection shall receive an allotted quantity of water, typically specified in
hundred cubic feet (hcf) units per billing cycle, as calculated by the General Manager.

2. The Board of Directors may pass an emergency ordinance increasing the usage rate for potable
water in order to ensure stable revenues for operation and maintenance of CCSD.

3. As individual customers are notified of allotments, it is expected that many requests for
special consideration will be received. These petitions must be processed rapidly, efficiently and
fairly. Every application for waiver must be heard, evaluated and acted upon by the District
General Manager as rapidly as possible. Every action by the General Manager shall be referred
to CCSD’s Board of Directors for consideration. The procedures for appeal are defined, below.

4. No building permits will be issued or meters installed for new accounts that had not received
building permits before the “Severe Shortage™ was declared.

- 96



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan

5. The following water use restrictions shall be imposed.

Adopted 07/18/2023

37



CCSD Waiter Shortage Contingency Plan

Adopted 07/18/2023

Stage

Type Use

Restriction

3

Landscape Irrigation for
Existing Landscapes,
including Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) Landscape watering using sprinkler or irrigation systems
is permitted only two days per week. Addresses ending
in even numbers (0,2,4,6,8) may water on Mondays and
Thursdays. Addresses ending in odd numbers (1,3,5,7.9)
may water on Tuesdays and Fridays. If there is no street
address, or if more than one street address is associated
with a contiguous property, the irrigation days are
Wednesday and Saturday.

(2} Manual landscape watering with a soaker hose, handheld
hose or watering can/bucket is allowed on any day.

Landscape Irrigation for
New Landscapes,
including Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) Landscape watering is permitted to maintain adequate
growth on newly installed landscapes, for a period
generally up to five (5) weeks. Property owners must
notify the District of the address where new landscape is
installed and the date of installation.

(2) Following the initial establishment period, landscape
watering using a sprinkler or irrigation system is
permitted only on the days associated with the current
conservation stage in effect.

Golf Courses, Athletic
Fields

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) All landscape out-of-play areas such as may be found
around a clubhouse or entryway shall follow the general
landscape irrigation restrictions.

(2) All in-play areas may be irrigated during the standard
watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

(3) Course operators shall implement a ten (10) percent
reduction in irrigation water use.

Hotels, motels and bed
and breakfasts

Hotels, motels and B&B’s must offer and clearly notify guests of
a “limited linen/towel exchange” program.

Swimming pools, hot
tubs

Initially filling new and existing swimming pools prohibited.
Draining and refilling existing swimming pools permitted only if
repairing a pool leak or repairing, maintaining or replacing a pool
component that has become hazardous. All pools and tubs shall
be covered when not in use to reduce evaporation.

Industrial and
Commercial

Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. Compliance
with mandatory demand reduction measures is required for
outdoor water uses including landscape irrigation, swimming
pools, and vehicle washing.

08



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

Stape Type Use Restriction
3 Vehicle and Equipment | Non-commercial washing of vehicles and mobile equipment (e.g.,
Washing washing vehicle at a residence) is permitted only on assigned

landscape watering days during landscape watering hours (before
10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Fleet managers are encouraged to only wash those vehicles as is
necessary for health and safety.

3 Heavy Construction The use of potable water for dust control shall be reduced to the
greatest extent possible.

STAGE 4: >35% to 50% - Mandatory - Critical Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions listed in the previous stages, CCSD shall establish allotments based
upon a 35% -50% curtailment of water use. All new and previous appeals for waiver shall be
evaluated by field audit and shall be reheard by the Water Conservation Commission, if
necessary, upon recommendation of CCSD staff. Water rates may be increased by the Board of
Directors.

The following water use restrictions shall be imposed.

Stage Type Use Restriction

4 Landscape Irrigation for | Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:
Existing Landscapes,

including Public Parks (1) Landscape watering using sprinkler or irrigation systems

is permitted only one day per week. Addresses ending in
numbers 0 or | may water on Mondays. Addresses
ending in numbers 2 or 3 may water on Tuesdays.
Addresses ending in numbers 4 or 5 may water on
Wednesdays. Addresses ending in numbers 6 or 7 may
water on Thursdays. Addresses ending in numbers 8 or 9
may water on Fridays. If there is no street address, or if
more than one street address is associated with a
contiguous property, the irrigation day is Wednesday.

Manual landscape watering with a soaker hose, handheld hose or
watering can/bucket is allowed on any day.

4 Landscape Irrigation for | The installation of new landscapes irrigated with potable water is
New Landscapes, discouraged.
LRUIALEL ST Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) Landscape watering is permitied three (3) days a week to
maintain adequate growth on newly installed landscapes,
for a period generally up to five (5) weeks. Watering
days for new landscapes are Tuesday, Thursday and
Saturday. Property owners must notify the District of the
address where new landscape is installed and the date of
installation.

Following the initial establishment period, landscape watering

39



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Adopted 07/18/2023

Stage

Type Use

Restriction

using a sprinkler or irrigation system is permitted only on the
days associated with the current conservation stage in effect.

Golf Courses / Athletic
Fields

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) All landscape out-of-play areas such as may be found
around a clubhouse or entryway shall follow the general
landscape irrigation restrictions.

(2) All in-play areas may be irrigated during the standard
watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Course operators shall implement a twenty (20) percent reduction
in irrigation water use.

Hotels, motels and bed
and breakfasts

Hotels, motels and B&B’s must limit linen/towel changes to once
every two (2) nights or for the entire stay, whichever is shorter,
except for health and safety.

Swimming pools, hot
tubs

Initially filling new and existing swimming pools prohibited.
Draining and refilling existing swimming pools permitted only if
repairing a pool leak or repairing, maintaining or replacing a pool
component that has become hazardous. All pools and tubs shall
be covered when not in use to reduce evaporation.

Vehicle and Equipment
Washing

Non-commercial washing of vehicles and mobile equipment (e.g.,
washing vehicle at a residence) is permitted only on assigned
landscape watering days during landscape watering hours (before
10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Fleet managers are encouraged to only wash those vehicles as is
necessary for health and safety.

Industrial and
commercial

Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. The Board
of Directors may establish mandatory use reduction targets, if
needed.

Compliance with mandatory demand reduction measures is
required for outdoor water uses including landscape irrigation,
swimming pools, and vehicle washing.

Heavy Construction

The use of potable water for dust control shall be reduced to the
greatest extent possible.

STAGE 5: >50% - Mandatory — Emergency Conservation Requirement

Appropriate 50% water shortage allotments shall be calculated and noticed to customers.
Appropriate administration and enforcement of this stringent program shall be the highest
priority of CCSD activity. All resources of CCSD will be directed toward improvement and
increase of water supply to the system. Water rates may be further increased by the Board of

Directors.

The following water use restrictions shall be imposed:




CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Adopied 07/18/2023

Stage

Type Use

Restriction

5

Landscape Irrigation for
Existing Landscapes,
including Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

Landscape watering with potable water is prohibited.

Landscape Irrigation for
New Landscapes,
including Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

The installation of new landscapes irrigated with potable water is
prohibited during Conservation Stage 5.

New landscapes installed prior to declaration of Conservation
Stage 5 may water two (2) days a week to maintain adequate
growth on newly installed landscapes, for the remainder of the
initial five (5) week establishment period. Watering days for new
landscapes are Tuesday and Friday. Property owners must notify
the District of the address where new landscape is installed and
the date of installation

Golf Courses / Athletic
Fields

Landscape watering with potable water shall be subject to the
following limits:

(3) All landscape out-of-play areas such as may be found
around a clubhouse or entryway shall follow the general
landscape irrigation restrictions.

(4) All in-play areas may be irrigated during the standard
watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Course operators shall implement a thirty (30) percent reduction
in irmgation water use.

Hotels, motels and bed
and breakfasts

Hotels, motels and B&B's must limit linen/towel changes to once
every three (3) nights or for the entire stay, whichever is shorter,
except for health and safety.

Swimming pools, hot
tubs

Filling new swimming pools and/or draining and refilling existing
swimming pools is prohibited. All pools and tubs shall be
covered when not in use to reduce evaporation. Contact District
conservation staff if an existing swimming pool must be repaired
and refilled during Conservation Stage 5.

Vehicle and Equipment
Washing

Non-commercial washing of vehicles and mobile equipment is
prohibited. Only commercial facilities with water recycling
systems may be used.

Industrial and
commercial

Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. The Board
of Directors may establish mandatory use reduction targets, if
needed.

Compliance with mandatory demand reduction measures is
required for outdoor water uses including landscape irrigation,
swimming pools, and vehicle washing.

Heavy Construction

The use of potable water for dust control shall be reduced to the
greatest extent possible. The District may establish mandatory
construction water budgets, if needed.

51



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

Appeals Procedure

1. Any person who wishes to appeal a customer classification or allotment shall do so in writing
by using the forms provided by CCSD.

2. Appeals will be reviewed by the General Manager and staff. Site visits may be scheduled if
required.

3. A condition of granting an appeal shall be that all plumbing fixtures or irrigation systems be
replaced or modified for maximum water conservation.

4. Examples of appeals that may be considered are as follows:

a. Substantial medical requirements.

b. Commercial/Industrial/Institutional accounts where any additional water supply
reductions will result in unemployment or inappropriate hardship, after confirmation by
the CCSD staff that the account has instituted all applicable water efficiency
improvements.

5. In the event an appeal is requested for irrigation of trees or vegetation, CCSD staff may use
the services of a qualified consultant in determining the validity of the request. Costs for such

consulting services shall be paid by the party or parties making the request.

6. The General Manager shall refer all appeals to the Water Conservation Commission. The
Water Conservation Commission may refer appeals to CCSD’s Board of Directors.

7. If the General Manager and the applicant are unable to reach accord, then the appeal shall be
heard by the CCSD Board of Directors, who will make the final determination.

8. All appeals shall be reported monthly to the Board as a part of the Water Supply Report.

50 MANDATORY PROHIBITIONS ON WATER USE

California Water Code Section 10632(d). Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific
water use practices during water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of
potable water for street cleaning. Section 10632(e) Consumption reduction methods in the
most restrictive stages. Each urban water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction
methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are
appropriate for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent with
up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply.



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

The CCSD adopted a "Water Waste/Water Conservation" Ordinance (Ordinance No. 20) in April
of 1990, which prohibits water waste and promotes water conservation. Since the initial
adoption, revisions were adopted by the Board of Directors on April 14, 1992 and October 4,
1993. The ordinance has most recently been revised on and now appears as Chapter 3.36 of
CCSD Code. Section 3.36.030, Mandatory Restrictions on Water Waste, details the applicable
prohibitions of use. These prohibitions are in force at all times. Additional water use reduction
methods available to water users or CCSD to adopt in order to comply with use reductions

during the more restrictive stages of water shortages (Stages 4 and 5) include, but are not limited
to, the following:

a) elimination of turf irrigation with potable supplies;

b) restriction of landscape watering to shrubs and trees by hand or drip irrigation only;

c) elimination of vehicle washing except in car washes that have water recirculation
systems;

d) prohibition on filling or topping off of swimming pools where damage to pumping
equipment will not result;

€) eclimination of water served in food service establishments unless requested,;
f} elimination of the issuance of construction meters;
g) shut-off of dedicated landscape irrigation meters; and
h) moratorium on provision of new supply meters.
If water use reductions called for in Stages 3-5 are not achieved, the CCSD may amend this

Water Shortage Contingency Plan to make any of the above available conservation tactics
mandatory.

6.0 PENALTIES OR CHARGES FOR EXCESSIVE USE

California Water Code Section 10632(f) Penalties or charges for excessive use.
Section 3.36.050 of CCSD Code provides for a system of violations and notices. Violation of

provisions of this Water Shortage Contingency Plan shall be enforced under Section 3.36.050 of
CCSD Code.

7.0 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE IMPACTS

California Water Code Section 10632(g) — An analysis of the impacis of each of the actions
and conditions described in subdivisions (a) to (f), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures
of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, such as the
development of reserves and rate adjustments.



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

Enforcement of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is assumed to be covered by enhanced
revenues from application of excess use charges and penalties. CCSD reserves may be used
temporarily should revenues remain below expectations. CCSD’s rate structure is based upon
adopted rate ranges and allows for modification of rates on short notice within those ranges.
CCSD retains the ability to modify rates to meet all legitimate CCSD needs. Revenue impacts
from water sales losses are estimated as follows, based upon Tier 2 rates of $2.35/hcf in.

Table 3: Potential Revenue Impacts of Implementation of WSCP

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5
Assumed Reduction 10 percent | 20 percent | 30 percent | 40 percent 50 percent
Water Sales Loss $ 45,466 $ 90,929 $136,399 $ 181,865 $ 227,332
Revenue Source:
Pumping savings at
$135/af $ 5,356 $10,713 $ 16,070 $21427 $ 26,784
Net Revenue
Reduction $ 40,109 $ 80,219 $120,328 $ 160,438 $ 200,547
Percent of Total
Annual Water System
Revenue 5% 11% 16% 21% 27%

* Table based on FY2018-2019 water sales, $1,160,973 for 770 acre-feet

8.0 WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

California Water Code Section 10632 (h) A draft water shortage contingency resolution or
ordinance.

CCSD Board of Directors adopt the Water Shortage Contingency Plan in Resolution No. 15-1,
which enables implementation of the Plan upon advice of staff based in part on the triggering
mechanisms discussed herein. The resolution is attached as Appendix A to this Plan.

9.0 WATER USE MONITORING PROCEDURES

California Water Code Section 10632 (i) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in
water use pursuant to the urban water shortage contingency plan.

Normal Monitoring Procedure:

In normal water supply conditions, production figures are recorded daily by CCSD O&M
personnel. Totals are reported monthly to the General Manager. Production figures are reported
in the Annual Report to the Drinking Water Program, which is submitted to the California
Department of Health Services each year.

Stage 1 and 2 Water Shortages

During a Stage | or 2 water shortage, daily production figures will be reported to the Senior
Operator and General Manager. The General Manager compares the weekly production to the

64



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 07/18/2023

target weekly production to verify that the reduction goal is being met. Monthly reports are
forwarded to the General Manager, the Water Conservation Commission and the CCSD Board of
Directors. If reduction goals are not met, the General Manager may notify the Board of Directors
so that corrective action can be taken.

Stage 3 and 4 Water Shortages

During a Stage 3 or 4 water shortage, the procedure listed above will be followed, with the
addition of a daily production report to the General Manager and weekly reports to the Water
Conservation Commission and Board of Directors. Special meetings may be called for
administration of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

Stage 5 Water Shortage

During a Stage 5 shortage, production figures will be reported to the O&M Superintendent and
the General Manager daily. Reports will also be provided to CCSD’s Board of Directors, the
Monterey County Office of Emergency Services, and land use jurisdictions located within
CCSD’s service lerritory.



_ (S# 1MAM) JBBU e G TTIM == P#f TITMex = F TITIMesllies  Zi# TITM emmm

0ozl-
5 il ' _“ .._, bl o £ LR w.. T ! H 1 b |
, 11 .
4! = I £ 1 1= | o'00L-
._ KR | i_ FEFTE
| _ 1 BN
1l UL LLLLLLL |
At 434 b bt b g 4] 07o8-

: I
! L 1] ) ._. | | r
i ‘ | _ T - u.f.q,.;_. B¢ 4 ) pRARd __ L 00

> 1" &8 R0 5 AREY, | IRRERY 2 I8 ooy
P 1 11 1
| wm~ - "_.._# ﬁ
_ _ i i g _ ;H_ - = .
1 I Iy i T Hm : , _ =T 0'0g-
ittt b it _
RRtIRARRRAN L I L |
_ = ERREEERE B OB vas
| ____ | _ | |
_ N ]| "
] . - doDid v b Daioda fohe Lk B itade ; bt B b e ahide Lo la a2 g 002

EC NVl 22 Onv CZ NV LZanvy LZ NV 02 ONV 02 NV 61 9NV 6L NV 81 9NV 8L NVl LI 9NV LI NVT 9L 9NV 91 NVISL ONY

€202-5102 ST3A3T T13IM ITHAOYULSYD

66



MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATE 7/11/2023

Washington Bypass Project:

» Coastal development permitting is on hold pending land acquisition and Caltrans encroachment
permitting. A draft application package has been submitted to MNS and the District for review.

* Right-of-way acquisition consultant has been contracted to initiate land acquisition for the
agricultural field and trailer park.

» (Caltrans encroachment permitting is being initiated.

e MNS is currently preparing legal descriptions and plat maps for temporary and permanent
easements.

o Jurisdictional permitting associated with crossing the agricultural ditch is being initiated.
» Consider approval of additional MNS services through final design and construction.

Moss Landing Wastewater Project:

* Coastal Development Permitting is ongoing. Coastal permit is anticipated to be obtained within
3-4 months.

Emergency Well #6:

e MNS finalizing the required grant monitoring plan within the next month.
e Construction funding pending to move project forward.

Merritt Street Arch sign:

Traffic Study & Encroachment Permit submitted to MC Public Works

X



Castroville Well No. 3 Desalination Facility

OPR ICARP Regional Resilience Grant
Talking Points

» Castroville, a Severely Disadvantaged Community (SDAC), has had its only source of
water supply, local groundwater, impacted by regional seawater intrusion.

+ Seawater intrusion into the 180/400 Foot Aquifers has rendered Castroville Community
Services District (CCSD) Well No. 3 unusable due to elevated TDS and Chiorides,
despite well modifications the CCSD has implemented.

» Weli No. 3 is a critical well for this community and the Well No. 3 Desalter Facility
would provide a reliable, resilient water supply for this SDAC community until a regional
solution to mitigate against the impacts of seawater intrusion is developed.

» The Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SVBGSA) is tasked with
addressing the scawater intrusion into the 180/400 Foot Aquifers and as part of that effort
is assessing the feasibility of a scawater intrusion extraction barrier and brackish
treatment project as a potential regional solution.

» The Well No. 3 Desalination Facility would provide the SVBGSA with critical
information on water quality, trcatment cfficiency and performance, and seawater
intrusion migration that will inform the regional scale Seawater Intrusion Extraction
Barrier Feasibility Study.

e Groundwater modeling indicates that Castroville should be included an end user of the
Scawater Intrusion Extraction Barrier Project (i.c.receive potable water from the Brackish
Water Desalination Facility) as all of the CCSD’s 180/400 Foot Aquifer Wells could be
impacted in the future if the extraction barrier is implemented.

» Asa future end user for this regional project, Castroville’s Well 3 Desalter Project can
serve as an important demonstration and pilot for the future full scale, regional project

» A demonstration scale effort would inform implementation of the full scale project, so

Castroville’s Well 3 Desalter Project will save time in the future by establishing the
demonstration in the near term.

68



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT JuLy 18TH, 2023

** Regulatory Compliance

OoDDOo

i I Y Ry e i i Y

Last SWRCB-DDW inspection of water system April 2021

NEW Initiated State mandated Drought Resiliency Program

NEW Initiate EPA Lead pipe inventory& Replacement

NEW Certify the Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage - Statewide
Sanitary Sewer Systems General Order 2022-0103-DWQ

All routine samples coliform samples negative for April 2023

Well #3 future desalter use under investigation

Approved Bacteriological sampling plan for 2023

Completed annual extraction report to MCWRA

State report 2022 EAR in completed

Submitted DAC status to DWR for reduced annual fees

Submitted water reports to 7 large Water system customers 6/6/2023
Submitted No-Spill report to State for Castroville, Moss Landing and Moro Cojo
Regulatory documentation for CCSD ~ Zone 3 sewer jetting activities
Regulatory documentation for MLCSD ~ Zone 1,2 & 3 sewer jetting activities

*+ Current Projects

[ [ I i i o

Request LAFCO annexation for sewer connections contiguous to Struve Rd
Replace damaged Loop Sensor damaged during Burger king repair on Merritt
Hire leak detection company to iocate rising water loss data

Replace malfunctioning furnace in District Office

Institute Community outreach with School District and other organizations
Researching De-Salter feasibility for Well #3 as brackish water supply well
RFQ for new Zone 2 generator @ Castroville Blvd lift station

RFQ for new Zone 1 generator @ Sea Garden lift station

MPE to install 4 main line valves

Secure $3.5million in funding for construction of Washington sewer by-pass line
Consider collaboration with MCWD on water system tie-in



OooooDooCeoe

oo ooe

Review conflict with District assets and CalTrans improvements on Merritt St
Collaborate with the SVGWBGSA on developing a long-term water supply

Lupe Ibarra reduced total door hangers from 69 past due notices to 19

Oversee grant funding, permits and design of new Overhead sign from CalTrans
Grant proposal to SWRCB for new Castroville water supply for $6.8 million
Obtain CalTrans encroachment permits for annual/routine repair & Maintenance
Review MNS Grant writing proposals for Washing BP, Moss Landing sewer
system, Well#6, and Cypress Alley

Zone 1-Castroville Serwer Operations, see report in Board packet

Staff assisted in replacing two malfunctioning mainline valves

Zone 2-Moro Cojo Sewer Operations, see report in Board packet

Zone 3- Moss Landing Sewer Operations, see report in Board packet

< Completed Projects

[ iy i R o R o Y OO0 OoOoOoao

o

Replaced main line valves @ Poole & Merritt and Wood and Jackson

Deep Well, storage tank & reconfigure piping to system fill @ 60% design
60% draft design completed for Washington BP

60% Design for Moss Landing Sewer Rehab

60% Planning for Well site #4 modifications for filling storage tanks from
distribution system & additional 600,000-gallon water tank

Working with LAFCO to annex small lot at Struve Rd

Resolved CalTrans request to re-locate force main on Castroville Bivd
Located old water connections for replacement before CalTrans Merritt St work
Completed North Water Lateral replacement program with County

NOE completed for Washington By Pass

Completed negotiations for purchase cost for Lift Station #1 easement
Review/assist CalTrans Castroville/Merritt St Beautification Project

Located old water connections for replacement before County proceeds with
street rehab on south side of town

Planning well site #4 modifications for filling storage tanks from distribution
system & additional 600,000-gallon water tank and possible treatment

Upcoming Projects

OO0 O0COo@eOo

Coordinate with MCPW lateral & saddle replacement@ south side of town
Water lateral Replacement/ Abandonment with CalTrans on Merritt/HWY 183
Tie-in to MPWSP Desal water line(research)

Meet with M1W Source control to resolve I & I issues on Struve Rd

Initiate community outreach with NMCUSD

CCSD tie-in to MCWD, M1W & Desalter line(concept)CCSD owned pipeline

70



poocococoooD

Review proposals for projects in 2022/2023 budget

Design new sewer mains to replace Cypress Alley sewer main

Design, secure, Bid funding for New Deep Well#6

Initiate permitting for Deep Well 6

Pig #1 & #2 force mains in Moss Landing

Consider costs for Castroville Oaks project for street & sewer service
Investigate possible Well #7 location & cost

Locate, budget & replace waterlines prior to CalTrans Merritt St improvements
Inspect depressions in street for sewer repair

< Meetings/Seminars (attended)

a
u

Quarterly Water Managers meeting
Met with several Solar providers to see what opportunities are out there for the

District to install a solar array

a

| R R Y |

(]

OO0 00D

*»

CcCoOoooooao

Cal Water tour of Deep Well 5 & arsenic treatment system
Monterey Bay Water Works Assaciation training in Castroville
Enforce Water-Waste Ord. for any water leaving property
Met with MPE re: Valve replacement and timeline
Meeting with Emily Gardner & Sarah Hargrave re: DAC ongoing engagement with
SVGWB-GSA
Cal Trans-Multiple meetings/ conversations re:
1. Replace Castroville Overhead Sign,
2. Improve/enhance Pedestrian Over-pass
3. Merritt Street Improvement & overlay
4. Castroville Blvd roundabout
5. Castroville Beautification Project
NMCUSD & Community engagement
SVGWBGSA- 180'400" Committee
Special District Managers Meeting
IRWM Committee meeting
Met with Water Solutions Group re” North County-180/400" water issues

% Meetings/Seminars (upcoming)

General Managers Conference

Moss Landing Chamber meeting

Various safety classes

Clean & Dirty Water Managers - Water & Wastewater General Managers group
Moss Landing Community Plan Update

Monterey 1 Water- various Board meetings-

180°-400 Aquifer- Advisory Committee

7t



Quarterly Water Managers meeting

MPWMD Board meetings

Quarterly Clean & Dirty Water Managers meeting
SVGWB GSA Deep Aquifer study meeting
Quarterly Special District Managers meeting

oo ocoDao

< Improvements/Ideas/Suggestions
a Install “For fire use only- all others will be fined” on all fire hydrants
o Pressure wash and weed maintenance on fire hydrants
o Collaborate with County Public Works to replace infrastructure prior to road
rehab in roads south of Hwy 156 in Castroville

72



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

OPERATIONS REPORT
June 2023

Emergencies:

= Assist Aromas Water District with Water Leak.

Maintenance:

* Wood and Jackon St. ~ Water Valve Replaced.

* Merritt and Poole St. — Water Valve Replaced.

» Well 4 — BP2 Valve Replaced.

» Relocate S.S. Electrical Box from Del Monte to Well 5 Bubbler.
» Del Monte Lift Station — Troubleshoot Ultrasonic Level Sensor.
¢ 11161 Rico St — Lateral Repair.

» Aand S Metals - Fire Hydrant Knocked Down.

o 7600 Sandholdt Rd. - Video Sewer Lateral.

» MPE - Potholing for Water Valve Replacement.

o GSP - Generator Diagnostic.

« Del Monte Lift Station — Pump #1 was Pulled. (Air Logged).
 Well 5 CL2 Tank Level Dropped. — Chlorine Float.

» Moro Cojo Lift Station — Pump # 1 Flush Valve was Removed.
¢ Inventory.

» Hartnell College Leak Inspection.

o Vacuum Truck Picked Up from Mechanic Shop.



Weekly

. Rounds - Well sites (Check water softeners, Chlorine Generator, tanks, pumps, etc.)
. Mark water and sewer lines (USA's) as necessary.
. Exercise Valves.

Respond to e-mails.

Rounds - Lift stations (Check fluids, oil, alarms, floats, etc.)
Jetting. (Castroville, Moro Cojo, Moss Landing).
Water samples (Bacteria).

Mapping reports.

Office grounds keeping.

Wash and clean trucks.

Lift stations grounds keeping.

Maintain Cartegraph records updated.

Inspect and Update Water Meter Boxes Records
Take Garbage and recycle out.

Monthly

Run Generators.

Water Loss Report.

Read and re-read meters.

Deliver 72 hrs. notices.

Replace registers.

Reset logs on tablet for Lift Stations.
Reset logs on hand-held for Well sites.
Fire Hydrants readings.

Troubleshoot computers, printer, Internet.
Water Well level bubblers readings.

Work Orders:

a) 7 Day Disconnect Notice — 19
b} Final Bill Read Meter — 3

¢} Investigate - 3

d) Padlock Srvc, No Tenant - 1
e) Reg-1

TOTAL WORK ORDERS - 27

74



|Castroville Community Services District

Parcent Watar Loss

Monthiy & Yearly
Well #5 | Site 2 Well SItaGSWaII Site 4 Well Totals Totals miscallanaous Unaccounted
Month Gal. Gal. al. Gal. Water Pumped | Water Sold Water %
Hyarara melers 2T Jeteg &Flushing
10-Jun-22| 3142023 7839000 3000| 12399000 23383023  20845847| 3p157g et TR s 9,56%
39 5k Lok s Hiyatrarit Oa. FD 2% Softner
11-Jul-22| 2332658 6155000 0| 15976000 24463658]  21388312] 319823 11.26%
0k Lotk b Hycraon 406 FT 3% Scitner
10-Aug-22| 3715135 3969000 o| 16156000 23840135]  21365496| 279038 x 9.21%
S0 Lamh 5 Hydrant 20k FII 2% Scitner
9-Sep-22| 3632381 4007000 0| 16513000 24152381 21569320 316658 « 9.38%
e
100004 Laah 3 Hysrar 5. FD 2n Softner
10-Oct-22| 4602233 5304000 0| 13647000 23553233 20864031( 214000 x 10.51%
T
200 Lo 3 Hydeam 2006 FD 20 Sohrer
10-Nov-22| 4782509 5320000 0| 12343000 22445509]  197695B0| 248672 = 10.81%
Hydrant meters 196 Jaong & Fashng
9-Dec-22| 3444215 3821000 0] 11048000 18313215 16077983 4gg72 " imterieron FIR Sover 11.93%
TR T o Ty T e
Th.Lask 3 Hyrand 500k, FO 2b Seftner
9-Jan-23| 3581953] 3879000 0| 8824000 16284953  14146946| 573224 = 9.61%
3% Lomhs Hydrant 5700 FD 24 Saftner
9-Feb-23| 5797895| 6782000 0| 4146000 16725895  14522831| 580796 = 9.70%
T T Ty
164 Lmshs Hyrant 40&. FD 2k Softner
9-Mar-23| 4266573| 4372000 0| 6663000 15301573 13392386| 95000 = 11.86%
Hy BNt makar . 671, Jmirs) B ushang
286 Lomh s Hydrant S4k. FD 2 Satnar
10-Apr-23| 4628641 4716000 o] 8025000 17369641 15068094| 149245 = 12.39%
Hytirant metars. 145K Jsiorg & Fakeng
10-May-23| 4965248 4931000 o| 9502000 19398248)  16871088| 181234 "o rreesa oA s 12.09%
Hydrant mekers. 228K, Jetong & Flusrng
9-Jun-23| 4406928 4343000 ol 13558000 22307928|  19418671| 335664 ‘0TI FOM S 11.45%
Average 10.85%
= e e — . . ————
16.00% f = t | ! | i ; [
| .i + i ! ! | | 1
| | ( |
| [ I i | i |
14.00% ._,___,-[__,__,_ - G | - SRR e
i | 12.39%
! i ' 111.93% | 11.86% | L2085
12.00% - — L] B i g
10.00%
B.0D% +
6.00% +
4.00%
2.00%
0.00% - — — 1 - -
10-Jun-22 11-Jul-22 10-Aug-22 9-Sep-22 10-0ci-22 10-Nov-22 08-Dec-22 5-Jan-23 9-Feb-23 9-Mar-23 10-Apr-23 10-May-23 9-Jun-23 Average

N




CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

&

CASTROVILLE - ZONE 1

MONTHLY O&M REPORT
JUNE 2023

< LIFT STATION #5 Del Monte

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

*» LIFT STATION #6 @ Sea Garden

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station64/29/2023



< LIFT STATION #7 @ Via Linda

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

o Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

a Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

s+ JETTING ACTIVITIES

o Total jetted approx. 5,193 feet

<+ OTHER MATTERS
o Responded to 12 Underground Alert marking requests
a Submitted no-spill report to SWRCB on 6-1-2023
o Cleaning and inspecting storm drains in October-January

< Improvements/CIP/Suggestions
a Confirm that storm drain drainage ditches are clear & free of debris
a Confirm that storm drain interceptors are clear & free of debris



D
10800Pomber
109000ak
10900Pomber
109005eymour
11000Geil
11000Pomber
11100Geil
11100Poole
11100Rico
11200Poole
11300Pool
11300Union
11400Pool
11400Rico
11500Rico
11700Rico
11800Rico
11900Rico
Hwy156/Benson

Castroville

JUNE 2023 JETTING

Material

6" Clay

6" Clay

6" Clay

6" Clay

18" PVC

6" Clay

18" Clay

6" Clay

6" Clay

6" Clay

SDR35 6"

SDR35 6"

6" Clay

6" Clay

6" Clay

PSM SDR35 6"

PSM SDR35 8"

PSM SDR35 8"

6" Clay
TOTAL

Length
176
123
365
140
361
242
354
369
280
352
339
340
303
352
160
292
232

97
316
5193

Street
Pomber St.
QAK St.
Pomber St.
Seymour St.
Geil St.
Pomber St.
Geil 5t.
Poole St.
Rico 5t.
Poole 5t.
Poole St.
Union St.
Poole St.
Rico 5t.
Rico St.
Rico St.
Rico 5t.
Rico St.
Benson St.

7/12/2023

Downstream MH
MH 16.1
MH 29
MH 16.1
MH 16.13
MH 17
MH 16.2
MH 18
MH 16.2
MH 16.1
MH 17
MH 17
MH 18
MH 17.1
MH 16.13
MH 16.15
MH 15.78
MH 15.77
MH 15.76
MH 105

Upstream N
€0 16.6
MH 30

MH 16.2
€0 16.14
MH 18

C0 16.7

MH 16.3
€0 16.12
MH 16.2
MH17.1
MH 18.1
C017.2
MH 16.15
CO16.16
MH 15.79
MH 15.78
MH 15.77
MH 106

o



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

&

MORO COJO - ZONE 2

MONTHLY O&M REPORT
JUNE 2023

< LIFT STATION @ CASTROVILLE BLVD

O

a

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

% LIFT STATION @ COMPO DE CASA

m]

a

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

9



< JETTING ACTIVITIES

a

Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #59 to MH #59.1

o Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #65 to MH #66
a Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #64 to CO 61.72

o Total jetted approx. 835 feet

<» OTHER MATTERS

]

DDoQeCDo

Responded to 0 Underground Alert marking requests
Cleaned lift station and weed-whacked site
SWRCB-Reported “no-spill” 6/1/2023

Need NCP&R to Clean EQ Basins

Performed inspection of all storm drains in November 2023
Open space mowing completed April-May 2023

<+ Improvements/CIP/Suggestions

Q
a

Confirm that storm drain interceptors are clear
Detention ponds are clean & fence secured



Moro Cojo
JUNE 2023 JETTING 7/12/2023

D Material Length Street Downstream MH  Upstream Mt
PS5M SDR35

Campo De Casa 8" 265 CampoDeCasaDr MHH59 MH 59.1

CommunidadWay3 8" PVC 300 Communidad Way MH 68 MH 65

Cortezind 8" PVC 270 Cortezln, MH 68 Coe61.7

TOTAL 835 sk 81



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

&

MOSS LANDING-ZONE 3
MONTHLY O&M REPORT

JUNE 2023

“ LIFT STATION # 1 (Struve Rd)

]

0

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

< LIFT STATION #2 (Hwy 1 @ Pottery barn)

n

a

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

Do



< LIFT STATION #3 (in front of Phil’s fish market)

0

u]

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

% LIFT STATION #4 (Potrero Rd)

\J
0.‘

)
..0

]

]

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/1/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/8/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/15/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/22/2023

Did pump-down, alarm check, and general inspection
of Lift Station 6/29/2023

JETTING ACTIVITIES

a
a
0

]

Jetted sewer lines bbwn MH #32 to-MH#33
Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #33 to-MH #34
Jetted sewer lines btwn MH #37 to-MH #38

Total jetted approx. 905 feet

OTHER MATTERS

Q

o Received approval for $500,000 grant from DWR to initiate Moss Landing

Responded to 5 Underground Alert marking requests

sewer system improvements and upgrades

“~83



a
a
a

Finalizing grant application for $2.8 Million for upgrades

and repair of sewer system

Performed Bi-annual inspection of grease traps at

various facilities in and March 2022 and November 2022

Emailed notice of “no spill” to CIWQS 5-3-2023

Need to replace manholes on Sandholdt and Jetty Road

Manhole at Jetty Rd scheduled to be sealed-leaking approx. 3,480 gal/day

< Improvements/CIP/Suggestions

o
Q
Q

MOU with County for Engineering on Elkhorn bridge-CANCELED
Consider options for Elkhorn Bridge Force Main replacement
Schedule pigging of Station #1 & Station #2 force mains

--.84



Moss Landing
JUNE 2023 JETTING 7/12/2023
| (A

v

-~

,,f'
MonteMBay

STATION 3

/
/
/i
=
'amr:a
=
/ ;?r, M ¥ /
/ 7Y |
/ 3
! Z
i ] \ﬂw“
/ \ l
H e
Downstream Upstream
ID Material Length  Street MH MH
MH33>MH32  PSM SDR35 8" 255 SoundholtRd. MH32 ML MH33 ML
MH34>MH33 8" Clay 335 SoundholtRd. MH33 ML MH34 ML
MH38>MH37 8" Clay 315 SoundholtRd. MH37 ML MH38 ML
TOTAL 905

B85



Z jo | abed Aewwng - 8|qeals9)y SJUNODITY WJdEE:S0:E £Z0Z/SIL
86'285'04$ (ga'6z1$) sbieyd ONGWO HALYM (D
98'212'0L8 6z 1ev'Z6s) sbieys watvm 00
SI'6VL'EQLS (9z'228'63) afileyd AOUVHOUNS
W LLE'TLLS 2501'28) afieyd INN3YIY

ZLZEL'o81s
2Lesi'onls
LB'E1B'ERLS
L L6B'EBLS

24°206'€81S

CULEL'DBLS

Z1'/61'081S
Th'464°0815

21 261'081%
Ov'£60'0818
¥5'GEE’18S
Z7'806'60%

LL'60L'E9%
asue|eg

(s9'592'c$) juauwifeg uadQ (€301
(00'02%) {(rpasD uadp wawied)asd 19O SAAIBS HIA1YM
6/ 959'cs) {(pau9 vadg watkegjateyd U3 Lvm
(vz'cas) (npaun uadg wawiheglebieyd I9UYHIUNS

(096%) (wpary uadp wawked)abieyd INNSHIL

§9'592'c$ payddy uadQ (2101
69'692'cS upai) uadQ uawied Y31VM

Junowry. ddyuado
(00°09%} payddy ysodag jejoL

(00°098} abieyd ¥3Lvm

Junoury. : - peyddyysodeg
00°0% Aauanbuyeqg je10L
000% Kjevad HI YA

00°0% Ayeuad INIM3YIA

LO'BBF'OLLS 19'p65'958 vE'£68'658 aBaeys jmoL
zLE0LS L 140100 0O'8SL'Y 2018 00°0$ abieyd ANJWD HILVMm
98'260'86% 0zy'l 14913 00'BEZ 06S'T 8e'/9v'958 8P 0EZ'TYS abJeyd HIALVM
rAWL: A TL vEL 000 0008 N1 AT afieyd IDUVHOUNS

LE'661'08 2L 140qnD 00°280°L 1S'E28 ¥2GLL'98 afieyd INEHIA

D o pajwn

£202/0¢/9 ubnoiyl €20z/1/9 wold
Alewiuing - a|qeAl@29)y SJUNOIDY

121M1SIa SADIAYIS ALINNIWWOD ITTIAOULSYD



Aeting - 9|qeA3ay SUN0IIY WJ6E:S0:E ECOZ/SIL

Z jo z abeg
T
o0
]
26 06¥'00% :@aouejeg Buiso|n
o618} HOUM [Bj0)
Z6'96%'09% (00°0z%) 894 JapIQ BANFG YILYM
Z6'915'09% (oL'6L18) afileyd Y¥3Lvm
00°061% 2884 JepIO ad1AIB8S |BJOL
80°9€9'99% 000618 294 18P0 F0IMIIS YIIVM
(v0'LES'ELLS) wawhed |e10)
g0°9pry'0as (000pLS) 334.J3pI0 3013 HIALYM
80°985°'99% (06°L00'YS) p21D usdQ HILYM



- unpom

Aew o
idym
Jeyym
ge4 0
- uepo
Jeg O
| AON DO
1900
' dagn
| bny m

nea

22 EL6'ZYE 1S 299l VLS L0669'6%

10889118
EC0EL'6018
SZ2'GEIE0LS
£8°/10'66%
89°691°C0L$
25°€50°'101$
er'112'901$
£69rLLLS
29/1.0¢i8
gcivrsecty
69°096°LcL$
29'880'2cL$
sjejoi

©
o2 0 »
" » o » N\
; g e ¢
ad o 3 ol w o
o © ¢ & ¥ ,,,,.

00°0$ |
00°000°018
00°000°02$ |
00°000°0¢$ |

00°000°0v$
00°000°05$ |

00°000°098

IbPE0'628  SE9LP'/8l$ 95°158°Cic$ LLEE6'v/2S 0SV9.VSS$  SIEIOL

LE'661'98  /SGcl$ se'825'cs LE'E99°8LS 2Sv/9'81$ L6EC06'228  BOVEL 'S unp
vz 0ig'9$ vi'9c9% 0291128 8S/vb'vI$ /B908'/L$ 6b062'22%  18°2EIGHrS Aepy
LL7/61°98  vB0SSS 9cGEg'LS Lbvi90L$  9/°995'91% 1/L052'22%  vE'6LI'GrE idy
c5's61'98  16Crss Z0°018'LS €201 [9¢/8'GL$ 60E95'IE$ v8659CH$ 1ely
62°'L619% 06'8vS% £6°069°'L$ 8EEROLS 02098'9l$ [9G9b'eet  19'G/BEVS qad
626198 6b915% G/'829°'1$ 926/6'0L% [9/BL'9I$ BL068'les £L°£59°€r$ uep
£€C02'9¢ B8S6V6$ CLLGE'LS  LEVYE'PLS B9EF6'9L$ bLvbb'2Z$  00°696°€r$ 2eg
£9'602'9¢ £9°120°'l$ 2E022E$ BIL62'8L$ L082L'BI$ 9T YYE'EC$s  vE'6C9'9% AON
$9'/92'9¢ 9r'E80°'l$ 8PBEC'ES  08'8v6'91$ SGB'I02'61§ 11°G58'€C$ 8cEClBL$ 20
SP'6609¢ P60LL'LS PELZLES  8Y /L5028 9ETL06'8I8 EPL96'CES  2LvEl'8v$ deg
99'960°9¢ 0Z'GLE'L$  ¥.E0ES SHEZL'0ZS 6EFPLILBLS €L°99'€2$ 25 0LE'8HS bny
6+'00L°9%  Lb'88S$ [T A A v/€/2'618 2516881 €L6LEYCS  £2crl'0S% nr

aujedid S)ied jusiiuianoy)y jersnpul  jeRJIUWIo) uﬂmstmﬁ_ 14 \:.-Emhm Wsmt.-m

£202-2202 UonEoIISSEID Ag anusAay Jajem [enuuy

88



un
ra o /0
Aewa O N\ o .
2 o ooo ovov >
idym P 20 o & o R
W ) 2 Y &
O ®:7 N2 A " f//.
epne ? ~ \ \
qa 0
¥la “
= | 000002
uerm L {1 MBS 18 | 000°00
seg : w _ : 000°009
. i 2 " i
>°z D “ﬁ Mﬁ. 7 L QQQ hacmh
ny e | I — | — 4 000°000°L
- = 000°002°L
deso 000°00v°L
bnynm
nre
02r'029'92 gr0'9l 262921 920°289 209'€25'9  BOC0EL'r  B2Y'8S8'y  08GE89‘tL  S|ejol
6£0'965°2 280°L £68'0L 2£9'19 Zre'es9 v62'SEY 2ce'90y v1G'/66 unp
£6v'552°2 285"t zee'g 182'2h 6S6'68¥ 051'96€ 500'9.€ vEY'2HE Aew
ISP'PLIOE 110t 8/8'2 Lb8'62 62LVLE 8E6'ZHE 1G/°p2€ 26866 ady
9zb'062'1 806 riS'e /8982 Or0'€0E LoL'pog 26b'2re £89'808 Jepy
SSSLP6°L v/ 68.'2 8/8'ze 9/1L'vZE 060'06€ 2r9'ree 99/'998 ga4
£0E°1689°L 696 208l 02£'02 298'0€€ gll'zze G18'66€ £62'658 uep
£9b'6F1'2 0zz't 691'L2 £/8°0€ G22's8t 258'95€ l1t'28e 212'1/8 LETe
266'2v9'z 2.8l vlb've 8/£'C6 0/5'999 80/ '8€k vee'ser 952'c66 AON
606822 912t voz'Le 80246 ZEP'969 orr'09% 869'8v¥ 9v0'850'1 190
665'C88°2 010t gze'le pGLLE 96£°89/ £9/'06¥ 121Gk 289'680°1 das
05£'958°2 289 £69°0t G61'98 22£'052 881 'ch¥ 80685k 291'260°t bny
00v'658'2 250°L 109t 2.5°'0L pEeLLL £LE'0Sk 6/8°29% PEI'ESL'L ne
sjejo} auljalld syied  JuswWuionoy [elysnpul  [ejosouno) juswpedy Ajjued aibuls

£202-220Z uoneayisse|) Ag abesn jojep jenuuy

- 89



o1 jo L abed

asuadxg suonesadp jelauay M.uu
asuadxg uonesad() 191EM y
asuadxy
%8668 08GO’ S2900'060'¢ 66110182 SWoou) 15101
%cc 69 S9°18G'8EL- 00'/61'06y _ SEGLO'LLE INNIATY (Fuipue ssop) Jamas [e10)
%00 /9E8S'801-  E€9°vBS'80L  9L°0 esn Buluueld SaUNWIO) (RIS 1B1EM UEI|D
%00 LE'8G- 1£'85% 000 £ 8U0Z Jamag-anuanay "SIy
%14'S0E G9°gPs’ L £9'999'¢ 82°60Z'LL pauseg 1Saieiu|
%6L'EL SOre8" LY 00'000'944  SE'SOL'BEL soa- uoneues ML
%00 00'¥06'e- 00'+06'2 00’0 £ 9U0Z 5334 UONIBUUD) IIMET
%59'801 65'9LLEL LE'ERS'BSL 96’668 841 saxe] Auadoly
3NNIA3Y (Puipue] ssop) s1amag
%880} £6° 1¥S'2 L9°/E5'68 08'6L0'E6 LoLbL Nied I1qol 2 SHOWN S@3} Jasn
%eE 801 LE'ESL'8 05°6v6'26 18°201'901 INNIATH (Orod OHOW) 2 INOZ 1|10l
%S'Gel 9E’'10L 00°05L'2 9e’ISh'E pauley jsa43U| g aU0Z
%60°601 000082 00°008°0E 00°009'cE L02e24 SubI 10ans-18a.18-908ds uadp
%ce L0 10'259'y 05°66E'F9 LS 150'69 L0ZE2# 19MAS 7 UlRIQ ULIOLS Sad) J8s()
3NN3IA3Y (Or0D OHOW) 2 INOZ
%6 0960100 9/7J0/gEy’t OVBESEIEL Snuanay ()IIACAISED) | FUOZ 101
%LB'ELL LV'BPE'LS 00°050'€8 Ly'66EYPL peuwle3] }salauy
%l LS BE'GhY- £9°916 ST LLY anuaaay *IsIN
%60°601 00'8eS 00°'808'S 00'9EE'9 §334 UD|J2AUUOY JIBMES
%LE'GLL 16628621 £9°916'LpE 09'9v.L'2L6 xe] Apadoid walolep py
%59°'801 0L'919 00°052'0E 04'998'2E LoesZ# swybi 1eang saa) Jasn
%S 601 6V'659'S LE'EBS'6S 08'2ve'ss LOESZ# vieIq ULIOLS S3a) 1as()
%e6'SE S8 iv9'6Ge- EL'EBL'SOY 8Z'Ges'sPl ubig peayiaaQ-juesy suenegy
anuanay (a|1aonsen) | suoz
%6261 51e96'L e 00°000'6.L2 GH'9E0'ES ety vi doid Wmbl Hma
%6Y LSE 05°200'65 £9'916'2e EL'p26'L8 pauley JUWISIAU|-ISaIaU| JIBM
%cE E8 Or'9gg’t- vl LSE L PEGEL'D anuaaay "9siiy |B10]
%8E'S8 £E0°69%- 26802 vE'6EL'E 18410 - anuaaay "ISiN
%cE' L6 LE'8lE- lE802'E 00'0E6'C sabieyn saq dul
%L6'PE 00'6L1- 00'SLe 00'96 sabieyd 4sN
%S5 PS 00°00¢- 00099 00°09¢ sabiey) 10auucoay
anuaaay ‘osiiy
%88 LEL LEGLY'L £9'0L6'11 00'gee'e! anuaaay mojpoeg
%96801| 02eiL’t ZL'680'EL e 1ag'vt uoHR|[BISU| 32IAISS MBN
%SE8LL Sv'600'L 00°005'S G¥'605'9 208G WrIpAY Adeiodwa)]
%EC 86 88'€L0'¢e- 00°008'8b2'L 21'92v'9ge’t sajes Jajep pPaialepy
awoau|

asuadx3z/ewoou) BulpiQ

“OBPNE J0 % _19bpng Jen0 s 19bpna__EZAEN - ge. Inr

I

gzoe Aep ybnoayy gzoz AIng

[enjoy "sa yebpng sso 3 11j0.d sisea enioov

1011S1Q S291AI19S AlUNWWOD 3)1A0NSED WY 05:01



0t jo Z abeg

%00 00'5LE'L- 00'SLE°L 000
levil 9118 LEEER"L g6'vPe'e
%9v'68 v 98E- £9'999'c 61'082'c
%S0°001 0c’ vl £9'091'00E £8°20£'90E
%B89°26 G/ L20'V- 00'000'SS mm.mhm_mm|
%826 $6'E96'E- LE'EEE'LS EP'69E'LY
%9286 I18'E9- £9'999' 28'209'e
%65 'EC 9L LGL L £9'L62'2 ¥ O¥S
%00 00'SLE"}- 00'GLE"L @00
%96'85 91’928 £9°9L6 L¥°0¥S
%8G°'L6 9l eii- £9'981°6 \.lv.vmm.m
%E6'8¢ 05'$56°L- 00°05.°2 05562
%EVBLL yeeal'L £9°91P'9 26'865°L
%0°0 Z£'802 'E- LE'BOZE 00°0

%00 0005.'e- 00'0S.°2 000

%00 FAME: T LE'QSY 000
%6658 QE'GG5'02- ¥.°'999'9¢| PP LLL'O2])
%9805 gg'sie'e LEERS'Y L1'BOE'S
%BE'EE y8ery'e- £9'099'¢ T
%EG'EGL 107198 £E9'916 Yo'LLL'L
%0°0 £9'0lG- £E9°916 000
%5685 FASEATAY LE'EER’) 08'080°)
%L1°c0l S8'851L LE'EEEL Ze'esy's
%60°EL LE'eE2' L LEEQS'Y 00'0SE'E
%988 6¥ VS6'EL- 2e'e€8'ge! 88'8.8'801
%08 55'606'E- 68'6vL'V2 $€'008'02
%8801 8.'€8. £9°168'8 14°629'6
%811 18°506- £9°9L6 ¢80l
%1520l £8'561 £9°164°L 9°'£86°L
“%¥6'61 21’485 LE'EEL Sc'ovl
“%61°E01 ¥E6'IE £9°916 LS'BY6
%5169 10'6E9- 2E'€E8'} 9e'v6L L
%LE'61 gelie’e 00'052'2 89°2ES
%S¢ £ 8119 £9°916 6. y0t

1abpng Jo o, j9bpng Jan0 §

1abpng
L

€Z ABN - 22, I

£zoz Aey ybnouays 2zoz Ainp
jen}oy "sA j9bpng ssoT % 1joid

191181 S221A19S Ajunwiwo?) 3||In0lISBD)

asuadxg oiny J8410
soueuajuep/meday - oiny
1end

asuadxg ajiqowoiny

asuadx3 uonesasdag

asuadx3g saui Jajepp |B10L
aoueuajuiepmeday - sauiT] JaIBM
sal|ddng - saur Jajepa

asuadx3 sau|q Jalem

asuadxz juripAH |e101
asueusjutey neday - Jueipiy
s3||ddng - JuespAy

asuadx3z Jueipiy

asuadxg J2191 |B10L
asueuajuiew/meday - 1919\
saliddng - Jajap

asuadx3 1919

asuadx3 anjep B1oL
saueuajuiep/eday - aajep
sa)ddng - aajep

asuadxg aajep

esuadx3 saus |1am le1oL
asuadxg 1ayiQ - SaNS JI9Mm
ulepieday Jauanjoseuito|y)
asueuajutep/ieday Buipping
assuBuepMeday yue |
ajueuajujepy/sieday siojeiauar)
sa|s |1om @ sdwing Joj safddng
asususjuieyeday dwng
3% 9d-saniun

asuadx3g sausg [lPM

asuadx3y suoyeiad( |eiauay) |e10L
s8] Wa)sAg Jajepm
Guisa) mojpoeg
saaq Bupsa) Jalem
suolieaynies siojesadp
sauoyd 1en||a)
suuopun si1ojesadp
sjoo] |jews
sol|ddng doys

vl
N

s|seg |ensooy

£e/ee/so
WY 05:01



01 jo ¢ abed

%LE'v6 $9'280's- 05 LEE'06 98'6v2's8 spyauag yieaH aakojduy =\
%E'S0L 6E'252 £9°99.LY 206106 dwo? sianiop - dURINSU| T
%BL L6 0c'189'L- 00'+S09. 08°¢LE'VL sAnesIuIwpY - sabepy i
%S9°'L6 £9°259°t- 88°L£9°02 le'v.6'89 Jabeuepy jeiauay) - sabep
sasuadx] |jolhey
bl €L £8'£99°'21- £9'9L2'8p 08'g4G'GE asuadx3 821)0 e10)
%991 y9'162'e 00052 9E'8SY asueustuiely Buipnng
%eE#0L 8886 £9°'162'e LS 06E'2 asueuajuiepsneday 3o
%E6°501 GE'Se9 E9°LFS0L B86'99L°LL san(] diysiaquiay
%V9ES GLBBL P 00°005°S S2'00E'L sJo)2a11g/Buuies | reupuasg
%219k GTELO' Y- 00°00S'S 52'988 peis/Bujuiel | rsieunuag
%¥EE0L 29°0€ E9'8L6 TAFA 5334 jueq
%5201 ¢l'86c E9'9LE'LL SE'Gle'EL sopeibdy/sweibolg Jayndwo)
%91°562 L2 LEP'L LEEEL 85'v9L'e saxe) Auadoid
%E8°c9 l5'¢le- LEEEL 08°09¢ asinag Guuoyuop waely
%bb'e9 8ell't- LEBOZ'E 05°Ge0'2 asuadx3 29110 "SIV
%ES'S g0ees'l- LE'EER') LE"LOL awdinb3z snyo
%619 4$°998- £E9'l68'C o1'Ger’L sayddng asyjo
asuadx3g a3y
%l 66 2y 06" B9 LYLLL 12 1LG0°LL asuadxg sourinsuj |e104
%.L¥ 66 2r06- EFIPLLL 12° 15021 |BiBUSY) 7} OJNY - SOUBINSU|
asuadxz saurinsyy
%LL'v8 £e'59." 00'G00°S |mrm.mmm.v asuadx3 saninn |11
%Lb 06 SELL- ELGHI 8L°201 191eM LN - sellin
%99°G6 clL'gl- LE'BPE SC'EEE jesods(q - sanlun
%80°18 25'LES- £9°L18'C LL'p0E'S sauoydaja] - s
%E 188 e L0C- 18'669°L ES'v6Y'L 375 d-ssinun
asuadx3 sapiun
ABTROL _ PGLTEL 666G 2EV6LLL esuadx3 Bung 1e10)
%G'G6 00'952- LE'ERY'S LELev's asuadx3 bulig say10
%00 LE'85Y- LE°8SY 000 sjusuNSNIpY-s,40 LM
%00 Sg'90¢- S2'90¢ 000 ajeqay 19jlol
%t 02 26'956 £9'016 G5'EL8'L sa||ddns Bunng
%L L £0'G8E'L E'80L'8 00'v66'6 sbeisog
asuadx3z Buipg
asuadxg aalENSIUNLPY JSIBM
%IE 6 85'910°28- 25 ¥b6'u59 $6°/26'819 asuadxg voneladQ 1218 12101
%6086 99 EP6L- £9°6L8°LOL L6'G/R'EE uonesadg 191ep) asuadxy] ||oshed |ejo)
%60'86 99'EYE‘L- £9°61B8°LOL 16'6/8'66 sabepp Ja1ep s10)eladQ
uopieladQ Ja)epp asuadxy jjoided
%81'98 £8'6V6- 00'548'9 L1'626'S asuadx3 e[iqowolny €101
jabpng Jo, 1ebpnglang$  18bpng £z Ae - 2Z.I0r
. —
£zoz Aely ybnouyy zzoz AInp
|enjay "SA umm—u:m SSOT @ 1jold m_mmmm.mﬂu&
2/90

1o1IS1g $891A195 Ajjunwiwo) ajjIaoise) -



01 jo v abeyg

%EY 56 2y'89p'E- £9162'6L __ LZE€28'SL
%E9'S6 2y'89v'E- £9°162'6L  1E€28'GL
%9009 86'6.€'2- LE'BSE'S 6E 8IS
%00 00'SLE'- 00°SZ€'L 000
%8156 oELL- LEEER'L £0°952"L
%L2'99 89°226- 000542 zezes't
%L 68 vS8Lp'S" LEEEE'Z9  EBPIE'SS
%26 95 LLEEL'S- v29L6'1L __ E0'E8/'
%65 EE ££'809- €9'946 06°20E
%bLBOL  E9VF LE'BSY 00°€0§
%E62 L 94°256- 00001t veey
%189} 06°218'E- LEEBS'Y LyoLL
%PLPOL  S0°L0Z LE'858'F 2v'650'S
%5155 £6'99%'2- 11005’ 8L EE0'E
%900} W LECEL 8L°LEL
%L 06 62Ty LE°8SY 8091y
%L90S 6€ 706" LE'Ee’t 86'826
%LL ZTEIT'I 00'SZE'L 8L'191
%69 HL voLIE 00°00L'L 95882
%6156 [09/1'Lg-  8.962'0vy  LLOZL'ELY
%266 0628l pLELY'8Y  ¥2'9Ee'8y
%890k  05'888°t 0000522  05'88€'62
%60'60L  £1°09L 88°09€'8 S0'121'6
%v9'EB 00°50Y- 00'SLY'E 00'020'2
%LS89 £9°910'2- €9°'915'9 00°00b'%
%28 88 6'607- £9'999'¢ 69'952'E
%2L'L6 _ 25S6L'8- BE1YS'SOE  /B'G/'96C
%6060}  £5'G59'L ZLslesl  S9'0/8'6L
%00 L8°Sp- L85y 00°0

%EL b6 EZGEL'L- E9IPE'SL  0¥'902'8)
%6496 €542 €9°v95 OL'EPS
%LY'SOL  2OIGL EL6SLT S1'0L6'
%E9 V6 8E'S2'L- 00'628'22 __ 29'665'12

19bpng Jo 5, 196png Jar0 §

yebpng

£g Aely - 22, Inp
]

g2oz Aey ybnoiyy gzoz Ainp
[enjoy “sa }19bpng sso 3 Bjoid
1P11S1g S891AI8S AjlUunwiwo) ajjlaodise)

asuadxg aul Jamag

uopeladp-asuadx] |joiled [elO}
sabep | auoz sioyeladQ

uonesad-esuadxy |joihed

asuadx3z ajiqowony |10
asuadx3 oyny JoyiQ
asueumeweday -oiny
s)onJ} 1o} [ang

asuadx3] ajqowoiny

asuadx3g uoneisaudag Jamas

asuadxg uoneis Yy w101
sauruauie/nedsy Buipjing
S10)8J3USY) 10} 994 HYudd
uonels duing Joj salddng
asueustulepyeday uonels Y
3 7 Dd SaNn Jemas

asuadx3 uoners Yy

asuadxg uonesadg |esausr) |10
sauolyd Jenyad
suonespuen sioeiadQ
swuojiuf sioeiadQ
waswdinb3z 3 sjool jjeWS
saljddng doys

asuadx3z uonesadg |elauay

asuadxg uonwiadg | suoz
asuadx3y aAfeNSILIWPY J3IBA [BIOL

asuadxg Bunsuog |BlO0L
saa4 Bunsuo) By
sa94 Bununoaay
saa4 Jojoang
saa4 Buneaulbug
saad jeban
asuadxg Bungnsuon
sasuadxg joshed |ejof

asuadx3 |esipapy uswhojdwy i1sod Ja1ep-83d0

syyeuag safojdw3 pamay
asuadx3 vold

aoueinsu| aj safojdwg
safojdwig Tyn asuadxg uoisuad

l1o1hed Apjaap-1g suonnguual) tafojdw3 syjauag Juswainey sH3d

"~93

siseg |enJooy

£2/€T/90
WY 05:01



01 jo g abey

%SE v6 c8'5t- 00'Sie B1'65¢
%l'v8 ch'ehe- EL'PSLE WA
%68, 6c'lee- 2E855°1L 80’2911
%oh 86 L8 269'E- 05'Lb1'EES 69'6v.'622
%6656 €941 00°0vP iEccy
%60°601 ER282°1 2LioL'rl S6'PSY'SE
%EP 501 BS'9LL 18'9%1'2 SP'EYE'S
%9676 06°168- £9'1L69'2L £2°66.'91
%L 96 S6°¢LY- £9'16E'YL 89'8L6'EL
%6066 0g'L19- £9'916'99 £1°'50€'99
%L '901L S0'2E2 £9°099'¢c 89°E06'C
%6186 L1290 - CL160'65 LO'+20'8S
%5856 8r'8/2'e L8'SE6'PS 6£°259°28
il 8BS L5'LL2'2t- 9/'G61°628 SZvas'gl
%00 FAN o LE'8SP 000
%l S6°1L0L%L- LE'EER'L cv'iel
%95°001 ¥S9Y 00°052'8 ¥5°962'8
%bE'Ee 88°018'2- £9'999'c 5.'s58
%BE"6 88'2ee'e- £9°999'€ SL'EvE
%81°E6 0G'LE- 00°05S 052LS
%6184 L6'66- LE'8SY ov'ase
%LB8° 10} LFEe 0572821 16'028"L
%EQ'EH L#'S52- £9'999'C T HIPE
%611 o¥'852'L- £9°99%'1 21’802
%18’ 12’662 - 00'sL8'L 61
%60'8¥ £8°9v0°}- £9°910'2 08'696
%6828 vﬁhlmlm.mm- 8¥'852'581 +0' 106 LOL
%68 ¢l 6.2 2£°800°L £682L
%68 el vv'6ie- LE'800'L e6'8es
%le'8 51'G52'6- 92°'€80'01 | 1828
%E0'6 25'8EE'8- £9°991°6 L1828
%00 £9'016- £9'916 00’0
%¥6'591 EL¥PO'Q £9'991'6 9E'LI2'S1
%P6'591 £4v10'9 £9'99.'6 9e'L12'Sl

lebpng Jo 9, 18bpng J8A0 §

13bpng

£2 ARl - 22, InP

lesodsiqg - sanNn
sauoydalay - sanlnn
3%9d - selinn

asuadx3 sanlnn

ulwpy asuadx] |joshed @101
aosueinsu| ayn aatojdug
1509 uswAo|dwy 1sod James-g93d0
safopdw 3Ty asuadxy uoisuad
Apeamig jjotled suonnquiuoy) Jadojdw3 sjjausg Juawaiey sH3d
asuadx3 yold
s)ljauag yjeay aaiojdw3y
dwo? siayiop - asueInsu|
uwpy | sauoz sabep
WD | auoz sabep

unupy asuadxg jjosied

asuadx3 asyQ e10L
pung ramas-sy0 el 1qeg peg
aoueuajule Guipjing
sang diysiaquiap
si10)9a11g/Buluied [remwuas
geig/buiuies /sieunuss
saxe] Aupadoid
asinuag Buuoyuop wuely
asueuajuiep/Meday a0
apeibdnwueiboid seindwon
asuadxg aao ‘s
wswdmnb3 aaiy0
sat|ddng aapo

asuadx3 aa1lyo

.94

asuadxg sAnensILWpY | 3UoZ
asuadxzy uoneisdg | auoz |ejoL

asuadx3 ajiqowolny UBIPWIOIS [B10 ]
SHINJ] 10} 3N UBIPULIOIS

asusdx3g a|IgowWoINy URIPWIOIS

asuadx3 ueipwiiols |ejol
asusuajulep/Medey-uripuionls
saj|ddng-ueipuliols

asuadx3y uRipuULOIS

asuadx3g auy] James [e1ol
asueuajulepmeday-aul] Jomas

£20z Aep ybnouy zzoz Ainp
{enjoy “sA jabpng sso1 ® Bjoid
191IS1g S89IAIaS AjlUNWIWOY) 2|[lAonsSe)

siseg |enasy
EZ/E€Z/30
WY 058:01



01 jo g abeg

%0°26 EE'8L- £1'622 08°0l2
%2 ¥0} LYEL 28028 vE'VEE
%GE"¥9 S0°LYL- 052l Gb'G92
%86'6 A LE'8SY 9.'Gt
%65°L OL'LSp- LEBSY &L
%b6'GS 00°052'8Z- 00°0S4'841 _ 00'000°00L
%b6 5SS 00°0G4'84- 00°052'8/4  00'000'001
9%8/2'95 $8°900'v2- 68°6¥5'SS SO'EVS'LE
%819 zZLen'gl- 00'052'61 88'881°|
%00 £9'916- £9°916 00°0
%9E'81 18'S61') £9°012' 0S°ZIP'S
%E0°08 96'v2e'9- £9°991°1E L9 Lb6'Pe
%82 v6 £1°£99'81- 8E'bpe'92E  Ge218S'Z0E
%0°0 JEEEQ'L- LEEER'L 00°0

%00 2E°8G- LEBSY 00°0

%0°0 £9°'916- £9'916 000

%00 LE°85h- LE'8SY 000
%G9'GZL 89'869°C Z1'612'228 08°L16'L2
%G5 6V L £b'¥80'6 LE'EEE'8L 08 L1v'L2
%1606 00°05- 00°055 00°005
%0°0 8g'682 e 89'682'C 000

%00 18'Sh- 18'St 000
%b9'66 Lv'it- £9°L68'E) 9L¥ve'EL
%Y9'66 Ly iy- £9'L62'E} 9L vH2EL
%BL'EL vE 118'G- 1844122 £5°E€9E'01
%¥9'e8 00'SLE- 00'5e6'} 00°0L9't
%EP L £9'LE6- £9'999'E 00'628.'2
%60°601 82’165 28'205'9 SL¥60'L
%9€'89 00°0bL'L- 00'005'S 0009L'
%bS'S2 66°2LY'E- LE'ERS'Y 8E°0LL'L
%18 LE LG~ £1'620'v 28°'12E'E
%1516 8.~ £9'L6 S8'E8
1abpng Jo, 19bpngJeag s  1ebpng ez Ael - 22, Inr

gzoz Aey ybnoayy gzoe AInp

Jen}oy "sA 196png sso1 @ 1joid

1PUISI S991A19S Ajlunwwo?) 3||IA0aise)

sauold Jejnjjan
suonesiuag) siojesadp
suuojiuf siojesadQ
wawd)nb3 3 sjoo} |jews
so||ddng doysg
asuadxg uonelad( |eJaUdY)
asuadx3y uonesadp g auoz
esuadx3g jeuOljBaIDaY | SUOZ jR10]
RUISid ied g 28y ‘0 'ON
asuadx3 |euonealsay | auoz
asuadxy jue p uonesedo JeyiQ | auo? felol
asuadxg uonetaaldaq | auoz Aon
aouRUIUIBY) SS0JD JAAQ UBIISIPaAd
asueuajuiey ubis aj|Aonse)
1seg Alnn Wb weansg
asuadxg e 2 uonesado Y10 | suoz
asuadxg aanegsiuIWPY [ SUOZ |B10]
esuadxg Buninsuo) uelpuuols |BI1I0L
saa4 Bulynsuoy 18yl UBIpULIOLS
sead Jaaujbuy uripuliols
saa4 |eba uripuuolg
asuadxg Buinsuo) uelpuliols
asuadx3 Jiuan 9 ueo ‘puog [BloL
JusLIsSaAU| SSOT/Uler) pazijealun
994 UlWpY WAWSSASSY bl YSI UBPIIM
asuadx3 uonezjpowy gsd2-vt VS2
saouag/asuadxy JuatSanL)
asuadx3 ‘pua) % ueoT ‘puog
asuadx3 aosueinsu| |gjol
jesauan) B oyny -2ouUBINSUY|
asuadx3 asueinsu|
asuadxg Guiynsuoy 19mas |ejo)
s394 JojaallQ
saaj Buiynsuoy 18y)Q lamas
se994 Buitunosoy Jamasg
soa4 jaau|bug Jamasg
saad |eba] Jamasg
asuadxg bunnsuo) James
asusdx3 saniin el
ML - senin

-.95

siseq |en1ooy

£2/EZ/90
WY 05-01



oL jo 2 abed

%E'96 65085 ZI'969'st  €S'GLL'GH
AR 6v°1B6'D- LL'000'LL  29'810'9
%v9'L LEEBY") LEEER'} 000l
%IELLL  PTLE 00°SL2 2'90€
%b8'SS £6'08- Le€8l 0b'20L
%18 £e 12t £9°1¥9 ov'02s
%96'00L  95°LL LE°€E8't £6058'L
%69°El LE16L- £9°916 2g'sel
%8621 £8'86€- LE'8S 05'65
%eLy 2L 9eY- LEBSY 59'12
%LE 05 96'2L2- 00°05S bO'LL8
%GTLLL  LB'ESE £9°910' YYOLE'S
%PEEL 8’885} LE'EER') 0S'¥ve
%LLBL 00'ESY'EL-  BEBLE'EY  BEBLE'GY
%0°0 00°GZE'L- 00°'SLE'L 000
%00 £9916- £9°916 000
%00 LE°8SY- LE'8SY 000
%00 LE'EER'L- LEEES'L 000
%00 LE'EE8'L- LEEER' 000
%6696 1G°089- 00°229'22 ___6V'Ov6'LZ
%66'96 15089 00229'22  6V'9¥6'13
%SELE v6'209'- 00°0S8'E 90°202'L
%00 LE'8GY- LE'8SY 000
%98'02 0S'EL8'}- £9'162'2 EVBLY
%L2'99 LO°VLE 00°004't £6'82L
%2200k  E99E LE'8S6'9Y  00'SE6'OL
%6665 612h6's- 00'0SE'¥L _ 18206'8
%Y'EE 92'S0E- LE'8SY LLESL
%bE VE 08'209- E9'9L6 EELE
%3Z BZ 51062'¢- LEESS'Y 22'e6e't
%6E'08 g6°ErL L £9'168'8 S9'LYL'L
%96'S 29'510'L- v3'6L8'L 29'€98

yabpng jJo o, _ﬂmu:m 180 §

18bpng

gg Aey - 22, Inp

£202 Aep ybnoayy zzoz Ainp
|enjoy “sa }abpng sso1 B J130.d

1oLISI(g S921A19S Ajlunwiwoy) ajjiaoaised

WO g auoz -sabepy
uonessiunupy asuadxy |joiled
asuadx3 anyo (e1oL

Heig/bulules §/siguniag

soxe] Auadoig

sagiaag Bupojuop uuely

aoueuajuiep/liedey aoiyo

spaibdnueibotd Jaindwo?)

esusuajuley Buiping

esuadxz aoyO oSN

wawdinbg aayo

sayddng aoayo

sang diysiaquiapy

s10)2311/Bujuiel | Heuuag
asuadx3z 9210

O
(=p]
J

asuadxy aAneNSIUWPY Z SUDZ
esuadxg uopesadQ z auoz |ejot

ssuadx3 ujeig wiols |B10L
aaueuauiey/meday-uielp wlolS
sa||ddng-mesp wioyg

asuadx3 uleig wlols

asuadxg ault Jamag |BloL
asueudUEp/IIeday-aLHT Jamasg

asuadx] aui] Jamas

suoneladp-asuadxy jjolied [B10L
sabep g auoz 1ojesadp

suoleladp-asuadxy |jouhed

asuadx3 apqowoiny |B10L
asuadx3 ony JBUIO
aoueuajuieymeday-oiny
syani] 1o} jang

asuadx3 ajiqowoiny

asuadxg uonepoandag remag

asuadxg uonmis Yi [eloL
eoueuajmep/eday Buip|ing
uopes dwng 10} saddng
asueuaulepmedsy uonels Y
samnn

asuadx3 uoneis Y

asuadx3g uvoneladp jeiauay) |BjOL

siseg |enJasy

E2/EZ/90
WV 05:01



oL jo g 2Bey

%2 ¥0L 9P El 48°0ce EE'vEE
%6819 Le'LSL- 0scly 62'S5¢
%G8 ov'6Ly- LE'8SY 1688
%6S5°1 0L 1G%- LE°8SY gl

%98 9E £ELLL'L- ¥4 '99E'LL Ly E8L'y
Y%ibl c6'15%- AE°85Y St'9
%00 LE°E8S - LE'EBS'Y 000
%8Lvel 6L°Ev9 2£'859'2 91'toe'e
%50'v¢e £8'v8L'e £9'999'E 08’168
%t0'LE v6'62E'8" 21°209'26 v2'ele'rs
Selb'66 51°0¢- £l 't08'e 86 €8/
%V 66 S1°0¢- elL'v08'e 86'€8.'E
%6984 08'l9¢- 9z'8gc' | 9'996

000

%60°L8 e8¢ 05'le S6'Ec
%1156 1g8'e- 88’2 L0¥L
%9€706 Gg'5S- 88'2LS E9°LIS
YBLE9 61°661- 00055 18°0SE
%198 Leaie't- 8L .¥6'8 28'0EL'2
%00 L1'68p- L1°68¢ oo'o
%¥9'E8 00°06- 00°05S 00°09¢%
%9C'vE 29°109- £9'916 I6'FLE
“%B80°601 82891 c1'8s8'l 06'920'2
%096 £9°9¥1- £9°999°c 00'025’E
%L0'96 £9'45- £9°99b°L 00'60%"|
%9¢ L6 61'058°L- Qm.NNm.le| LE2LL°G9
%.G°E8 c0'B6.- 8°8588't GE'090'Y
%B0'60} 0L'49¢ 00'8b0't 0L SIP'Y
%S0°v6 yo'L- FAN T4 eL'0ct
%6200} L0'S £9°L¥9 0L°9v9
%EY 96 09441 05°LL6'Y 06'66L'v
%9t"66 6l'cel- £9'990°61 vt vr6'el
%t L0t bE'SL 00°004'} vESLL'}
Yoll 96 9c 855" BB'SOL'LL 29'£55'91

19bpng jo % 19bpng 1870 §

19bpng

£z Ael - g2, Inr

suopeaHa) simelado
swojun sioieiadp
wawdinb3 3 sjoo) jlews
saiddng doysg

asuadx3y uonelado |eiausn

asuadx3 yuep 3 uopesadp £ suoZ Jamas
asuadxg uiepy @ JedQ JeyQ g auoZ |Bj0)

abeubig 19915

Jizday peoy

1500 Anjun Wb 1eans

5321A3G apISINQ-uley asedg uadQ

asuadxg uely @ Jadp Jeyi0 2 suo7
asuadx3y aanels|juwpy Z auozZ |Bjo ]

asuadx3 asueinsuy| jejo)

[eJouar) B OJNY-a3URINSY|

asuadxg asueinsuj
asuadx3 sapnn leol

JayiQ - asuadx3 samnn
Ja1e M LIW-saInn
|esodsig-saminn

auoydajaL-saninn
399d-semInn

asuadx3 saminn
asuadxg Bunnsuosn w10

asuadx3 uoneziuowy uonexauuy ofo) oJop
saa 10193J1]

saaq |[eba lamasg

saa4 Bununosoy lamas

saa jasuibug 1amoesg

saaq4 Buynsuo)

asuadx3g Bugnsuo)
uonensiupy asuadxsy |joihed |elol

asuadx3 yoId

sjijsuag Juawalllay 1sod 12410

asueinsug aj aakodwa

Jahojdwg vy asuadx3 uoisuagd

l1o1hed Apaamig uonnquiuoy) Jalojdwg syjsuag uswaiay SHad
syjauag YijeaH aakojdwg

dwo) siaxJop 3aueINSU|

uwpy g auoz-sabem

£zoz Aey uybnoasyl gzoz Ainpe
|enjay "sA jabpng sso % Jjoid
10U1S1g S89IA19S AjJunwiwo) 3|lAodISeD)

s|seq [Enio0y

£2/ee/90
WV 05:01



01 jo ¢ abeg

%LS°E8 20864~ Le'asa'y SE090'Y
%8t’66 sgeal- £9'990'61 pe 68l
%" LOL ve'st 00°001°1 PESHL'L
%Ll 96 92’285 88'S01'LI 29'€55'91
%L 96 65°085- 21'969'sl ES'GLL'GL
%96 1S 2 BYG'G- LL'0SS'L1L 68°100'0
%69°El [T £E9'916 15°5¢1
%1S°Lel [R-R %4 £9'910°¢ 052
%ttel L8'g85' |- LEEED') 0S'vbe
Y%t 18°e69'1- LE'EER’) oo'ovlL

% Et6 ieel- LE'EBI 1 VA
Yt8'5S 16°08- LEEBI or'aat
%80°18 Ev'lcl- £9°L¥9 02’025
%96°001 95°L1 LEEER'L £6'0S8'L
Y% b¥'S 8Y°0V0" |- 00°00+'1 15'65
YeCl'V EL'9EY- LE'BSY v9'le
%6E°LS vEYES 00°055 99'sIE
%618 06'616'171- g/'229'e8 98'204'29
%00 £9'0t1'0- £9'9L+'9 00'0
%00 £9'914'0- £9'9L¥9 000
%.9'66 A A 00'/29'22 6.255°22
%L9°66 Levl- 00'229'28 6.'255'2e
%SE’LE 66'2r9'e- 00'0S8'E 10°202°L
%00 LE8Sh- LE'85Y 000
%9802 15e1g'l- £9°162'2 [ : 744
%9299 FLTLLE- 00’00kt 68'8c.
%¥t'E6 Sgbo9l'e- 00°000'ce 5/'5€8'0E
%95°28 0g'685'e- 68'6¥8'v1 69'092'2t
%SL°LS 6¢°28¢- £9°916 yE'62S
%EF'EY 002902 £9'999't £9'665'}
%6986 16 PEL- £9°992'0t Lol
%S0°Sk 29'gEQ’L- .vm.mlhm. L c9'9t8
%86°1L6 LEBL- El'62C 9.0le

12bpng j0 % yabpng 13A0 §

asuadx3 yoId
s)jauag yijeaH aafojdw3
dulog sIaNI0-2JUBINSU|
ulwupy g auoz sabep
WY £ auoz sabep
uonessiulwpy asuadxy |jolled
asuadx3z aaijo [eIo L
saueusjuiey Suipjing
sang diyssaquiapy
s10)0a11g/Buluiel | jsiBUNLISS
yeis/bujuies/sieuiwss
saxe] Apadoiy
agiaes Bunoyuopy wieje
asuruauiep/leday a3tHO
apeibdn/sueiborg Jeindwod
asuadxg aoyo -asiN
wawdinb3g asyo
saljddng aso
asuadx3 asiyg

Q8

asuadxg aAneNSIUIWIPY € aU0Z
asuadxg juiely § uoneiadp ¢ aUOZ 1aMag B0 ]

asuadx3g au 1amas jejo)
aousuauiel Jieday-au] Jomasg
esuadxg au| Jamas
suoneiadp-asuadxy jjoiied |ej0L
¢ auoz sabep Buipue ssop-sioeiado
suoneladp-asuadxy jjosled
asuadx3 ajiqowoiny |8jo]
asuadx3 ojny Jayio
asueuajueymeday
s¥aNJ] 10} jand
asuadx3] apqowoiny
asuadxg uonetoaidag ¢ auoz (Bujpue ssoyy) Jamas
asuadxg uoneis Y B10L
uopels duing 10} seijddng
asueuaiuepymeday uonels Y
329d Sl romag
asuadx3g uonels Y
asuadxg uonesadg |esausn) [B10}
SauUold 1B|N{ED

_omuam £g Aepy - z2, Inf

£2oz Aey ybnoay zzoz Anp
|enjoy "SA 1obpng sso B Hjold
191181 S99Ia188 Ajlunwwio) ajjlaoldise)

siseg |enioay

E2/EZ/90
WY 05:01



0L Jo 01 26ey

%8226 L'6LE'S0L-  GO'LLZ'6Gb'L  BS'LEG'ESE’L
%00 000 000 00°0
%00 000 00°0 00°0
%00 000 000 00°0
%BL26 LpBLE'SOL- _ SO'L1Z'6SY L 8G LEB'ESE'L
%ZL 88 BE'G/2'092-  0ZSSK'LEL'S LB'6LLLEE'L

e S

%S98 oL'Ggy'El-  6pOpY'E6  EE'120°08
2lb'66 6102 £1°508'E YE'EBL'E
%L y'66 6102 E1L'708'E 6'EBL'E
%LE2Y 62 bbL'S- 6V’ LVe'SL  0Z/6Y'6
%V9'ES 00°06- 00°055 00°09¥
%062 LEVSTE- LE'EBS'Y 00'62€'}
%B0°60L 82891 21'858' 06'920'2
%Y2S LEEVE'Y- LE'ESS'Y 0002
%t 8 L9922} £9'099'E 0E'LYY'S
%L9'8L 86°192 92'922' 82996
%86'98 89°€- 05228 26'E2
%E0'S6 L8°€- 88'2L Lo'PL
%S€"06 0€'SG- 88'2.5 85°215
%BL'ES £2'66- 00'0SS LL'0SE
%0Z 26 85°058'L- 0522929 20°2LL'S8
%96'€6 SL'L- LE'82} 2902}
%80°'60L  OLL9E 00'860'v 0L'SH'Y
%6L00L  L0°G £€9°1¥9 02'9¢9
%EY'96 29'LLL- 05°246'Y 88'66.'%

yabpng jo %, 19 _u_._m JaAQ S

1ebpng

gz Ael - 22, Inr

£2oz Aeyy ybnouyy 2zoz Aine
|enjoy "sa }19bpng ssoT B 1joid
10UISIg S801A195 AJJunwwo) sjjiaciise)

- \@9

awoau| 19N
aurosu| JaY10 19N
esuadxg JauiQ [e10}
junocasy Bunes|n
asuadx3 seuyi0
asuadx3/ewosu) J19Y10
awosu) eupa0 19N
asuadxg jejor
asuadx3y sAnesS|UILIPY £ SUOZ |B)OL
asuadxg asueinsu| |[eloL
jesauat) B oyny-aoueINSY|
asuadx3 asuesnsu|
asuadxzy Bunnsuo) remes |eloL
saaJ J0193JIQ
saa4 Bunnsuog JayiQ Jemes
saad bupunoooy jameg
saad Jeawfiug Jamag
saad |eba Jamag
asuadxy Bunnsuoy Jamoss
asuadx3 saninn lejolL
Jarem LIW-seIIln
lesodsig-saiun
asuoydelas-salinn
J20d-saiin
asuadx3 santin
uonesnsiulwpy asuadxy |joLled jejo)
gaueinsu| ay] aatoldwz
sjjeuag JuawAojdwg 1sod J8Wi0
sakojdw3 7yn asuadx3y uoisuad

l1o1hed Apjaameg suonnquucy) Jafojdwy siyjeusg Juswalllay SH3d

s|seq |enJI2y
EZ/EE/90
WV 05:01



¥ jo | afied

£9°L62 L€ 000 000 £9'L6T LE 00’0 000
£9°962'58¢ 000 000 £9°962'G8¢ 000 000
ZS'OvL'L09'6 000 000 Z5'9vL°L09'6 000 000
00’851 LY 000 000 000 000 008542t
ov'zsh'ese 000 000 ob'zat'ase 000 000
82'00¥'LSY 000 000 8z 00b'ISP 000 000
SE'189'VE 000 000 5€'189'vE 000 000
16'vE0'¥SE 000 000 L6'PE0'YSE 000 000
82°025'0EL 000 82°026'0EL 000 000 00°0
bZ'OpL'698'Gl 2EL9E'ZRE  9Z'P.Z'G9Z  1/'E€B0'LES'S g2’ LS8'0LL L 9'69V'619'8
80°186'685'2 000 00°0 81°656'L8 0E'6GL 65°'098'06%'2
88 Lb1'1LE 000 000 09°198'8¢ 000 82'985'2
98'E6L'S 000 000 9g'E6L's 000 000
0E'65L') 000 000 000 DE6SL'L 000
9€'L50'Y 000 000 000 000 9E'L50'Y
62'651'} 000 000 000 000 626S1'L
16'294- 000 000 IS 29 000 000
$2'298'c9 000 00’0 ¥Z'298'co 000 000
99'E90'E8¥'Z 000 000 000 000 99°'€90'€8H'2
00008 000 000 00°008 000 000
ZE0E8'L 00°0 00°0 ZE0EB'L 00°0 00°0
2eoee’t 000 000 ZE'0E6'} 00°0 00'0
YE'YEZ'LLIZ'ElL  2EOC'Z8E  OZ#IZ'SOZ  92TB6L'LES'S  G6'L62'60L'L  GO'E09'826'C
8% L0F'668 o000 000 000 8t L0V'666 000
68°905'80¢ G8'90G'80E 000 000 000 000
91'665'V. 00’0 91'66%'v.L 000 000 000
ESBFE'LIE'S 000 000 000 000 £G'6P6'11E'G
00'8¥8'ZLL 000 000 000 000 00°8VB'THI
vLEbL'Lve 000 000 000 000 L ErL'IYE
09'.2z'scl 000 000 000 000 99°/22'sgl
lZZL6'Ser'e 000 000 LZL16'SEZY'E 000 000
S'ZZr'968'L 000 000 §8'22¥'968°'L 000 000
0E VE6'Y9 000 000 0E¥66'P9 000 000
59°'819'60L Ip098'E. 0L'G.9'06L 06'E9B'EDZ ov'¥8E'0L L ZL'¥E8'0EL
IejoL Z auoz | auoz | suoz £ auocz - Z auozZ
pung A0Sy  9[HIAOJ}SED afjiaodlses) Bujpue ssopy } suoz
pundg Aog pund Jajep pungd lamag pund lamasg
£20Z ‘1€ Ae jo sy
sse|) Aq joaysg aouejeg

321381 S92iAIag AJlunwwion a|jiAcLSE)

sjueipfy
o S
sadid g sitom 'spoafold ~—
lemeg-pue
pueq
sjuswsaaoudw) g Bujpyng
washs yavos

ssalbold u| uopanljsuo)/siaafold Jajep

ub)g ysewpue ajjironsen
sjassy paxid
Sjagsy juaung [ejoL
Slassy juauny Jeyig [ejol
Aojusau)
Jayepa-sup predasd
£ auoz Jamag-esueinsu| pledaid
| aUoZ soMog-5u| predasg
Z auoZ famag-su| pledazd

IUNOIDY INHRYNOQ 10} SIURMO||Y-JBTeA

sejeg pasajlapy - WY
SJUAWSAAU] pund Jomas
yse9 Aned
§}essy ua.LNg 8410
2|qeAjasay sjUNoITY (ejoL
9410 - WiV - 09) 1
9|qeAlasay SjUNOIIY
sBulaeg/Bupioayn jejol
Jamag N £ auoz-4iv
pung Aogy Z auozZ-4|v
pung A0Sy | suUozZ-4iv1
pund sdw [eyde) |-Jomas-iv]
punz aaJasay | -Jamas-41y
pund anJase) | -Jamas-dNvd
pungd adwi| jejrded |-Jemas-dWvo
puny adw) [epdes Jajeps - 41V
pUNd aaJasa) Jalep - JIv

Jomes B Jajep-pund psodaQ Jawojsny aseys

Bupjoays-pung [Biausg) aseyd
sBujaeg/Bupyseyn
§]988Y JUaLIny
Si3ssv

siseq [Enody
£C/9L190
Wd 20:Z1



¥ jo z abeyg

PE'BSH'BL 000 pE6sk'6l 000 000 000
SL¥GE LGe- 000 oco 000 GL¥eELSE 000
L&' L¥S LBy 00’0 ooo ooo L6 L¥S' LBy 00’0
£2912'09 00'c 000 o0'c €29LL°09 000
ZV'68.L 'Yl 000 000 000 ereBL'Yl 000
Prees'tl o00'c 000 000 PPEZS' L 000
00'cLB'9 000 000 000 00't16'9 000
99'1¢/'82 00’0 000 000 8G'LE€L'8C 00'c
o90's/9'zl 000 000 00’0 80'5.9'21 000
G9'esl'zey o000 00'c 000 GO'ES.'2ed 000
88'892'VL 000 000 000 BR'8SZ'PL 000
SE'8ze'svl 000 000 00’0 000 se'gze'syl
o0'civ Lbe- 000 000 00’0 000 00Eib LvE-
£8'¥89'288- 000 000 000 000 £8'v89'2R8-
66'2IE'6L 000 000 000 000 B6'ZLE'BL
6L ¥8T'ELL o0oo 000 oo'o 000 8L'pR2'ELL
++'665°09 00’0 000 oo'o 000 ¥’ 665°09
88'620'6¥ 000 000 ooo 000 89'620'6b
09'LE6'89 000 000 000 0600 09'1£6'89
LE'EBL'EL 000 00'0 o000 000 LEEBL'EL
8Z'69¥'09S o000 000 o0co o000 82'69%'095
e PPP'90E 600 00’0 000 000 eV PPy 90E
00'000'Le 000 000 000 000 00'000°'L2
F0'S6L'BLL 000 000 oo'o 000 r0'GBL'8LI
80°Z06'LE 600 coo 000 000 80°206'1E
yEvob'e 000 000 000 000 vevor'e
€8°20L'D o000 o000 000 000 £9°L01'9
00'009'6 00’0 oo'o 000 000 00°009'6
86°6.9'68 000 000 00'c 000 86'6.9'69
6L'e91'08¢e o0o0c ooo ooc 000 6L.'€91'08¢E
S0'615'L 00'c 00’0 00'C 000 S0'SLS'2
26°925°16 000 000 000 000 26'925'L6
82'e00'ore 000 0o'o 000 00’0 82'z00'0r2
£9°06L'616°4- 000 00’0 £8'06L'616'L 000 000
12'628'181 000 000 lz'szs'18l 00'¢ 000
85'eLb'681 000 000 85'eL¥'68l 000 00’0
£6'696'vTT 000 000 £6'696'vZE 000 00’0
80°'668'19 000 o000 80'668°'L9 000 000
GZ'ESR'LE ] 000 GZ'EG8'LE 000 000
820Sp'Lp) 000 000 BL'0SH'LPL 000 00'0

jejoL Z duoz | auoz | auoz € auoz Z suoz

pUng ACS  3IIA0IISED llaoaisen Bujpue] ssopy | sauozZ
pun4 A0S pund Jajepn pundg Jamag pund Jamas

£20Z ‘LE Ael Jo sy

ssejn Aq jJesysg souejeg
19L3SI S92IAI8G AJIUNWIWO) ajjlAonse)

vy

[ )

PHOM 8Y} JO Jajua) eyoyapsy-ubig pesytaag sjnosseny =
Bujpue} ssoy £ suoz uopesaadag payenwnasy
1o0foud uonellqeyoY WaIsAs 1sjemalsepn Buipue ssop
Bujpue] ssoW € auoz yavos

PEOY 0ClaiUOd i UOHELS T

S.lUd £q g4 vopels JIn

£ suoz dw g Buip|ing Jomog

I MAH Z# uonels ¥

PEOY 8ARIS L UCHES PN

¢ auoz Buipuen) ssoj saul] Jamag

g suoz-Juswdinbz Jamag

sjoelold Aoadw ujerg LIOIS | BUOZ
JaMag-Z auoZ "iaQg paje|nwnooy

Jemeg | auoZ uolejsaidag pajeniunoay
Joqly 507 g odwe) uopels Y

PAIg 3liaoNisED UORES U

BAY Gjuoly 8] uones YI

EpUIT BIA uonels Y

sou|q Jamag ofon olop

Sau|T Jomasg pA|g 2||lAonsen

80U|7 JOMAG a||IA0Se]

Z % | auozZ dw g Bujp|ing 1ameg

ooy oloy s0)ei8USE)

SlARG-UapJles) eag UC)IElS HIN

PAIE 3JIA0)SEY 10)RIBUDE)

Jamag 7 auoZ-yaqvos

Jamaeg | suoZ-yavos

aae|d epu|] A Jojeiauacy

juswdinbz Jamag

8)onJ] Jauea|D Jamasg

Jajiel] JeA Jameg Z861

aueLD /M jonu ) dnyotd LO0Z Jomas
ssalbolg ul s309f0id Jomas

Jajepn uonejsasdag pajejnunaay

waysig Ajawala)

juswdinbg Budwng

wawdinbg sy

wawdinbg doyg

Jajje}-oBA

so)Ny/syonI|

-
L]

siseq |ensooy
£219LI80
Wd L0:Z1L



¥ Jo ¢ ebey

0000L' aao 000 00'00L'E 000 000 syisodag asinag JueIpiH nul—
26'952'85 00’0 000 26'952'8% 000 00°0 s)isodag Aunoag Jawoisn) o
1918812 00’0 000 P'Se9'v 0SELL'S 18°202's1 lioihey paniaoy -.tn
0L°215'66 000 000 £.'086'2h 02'1685'6 LL 0862y uofjedep paniIdy
000 000 00°0 100" L8l 9.'81- uognquiuog seafoldw3-jysuag pauysq SHIdeD
000 00’0 000 000 90’ a0'g- a|qeied dwoy pasajeq
Gl '#06'G61 00’0 000 51'v06'G61 000 000 Jajep-sMmoju) pauajeq
D9'SES'EY 000 000 0o 09'GES'EP 000 £ JOMag TN-smolu) pausajeq
O LE5'EP 000 000 00’0 000 0P LEG'EY Z JaMaS-SMO|juj paxlajeg
00'609°'LE 00’0 000 00°0 000 00'609°'L2 | Jamasg smo|ju| pauateq 9340
00'vLL'D 000 000 000 000 00'¥L1'9 Z Jomag sMOju| paueeq g3d0
00'sLL'e 000 000 000 00'sLL'9 000 € Jamag smojju| pauajeq g§3d40
00°€8L'42 000 00'0 00'€8L'22 000 000 Jojep sMOlu| paLIayed §3d0
san|liqer Juaung 1810
sap)lige|T Juaung
saljiqei]
__ ALIND3 2 SIILITIAVYI
Z6'C0L'pLE'EZ 2L IOL'ZBE  00°ZZB'OLY  LS'99F'LE60'0L  §9'810°290'2 #¥'620'€9L°0} S138SY IV1OL
B80'6SP'ESO'L poo0 000 om.m.mmﬁv 00'ELS'86 81'8v1'00S 8jassy 1810 B0
00'G66'.- 000 000 000 00’0 00'566'2- uchezjuowWwy xauuy ofog) oJoy
00°000'91 000 000 000 000 00°000'91 190fo1d uopexauuy ofod olow
00'628' L6 000 000 000 00’0 00'6ZE'2S uoljezjgowy asaoivl vso
61'699'£0} 000 000 000 00°0 61°669'201 1509 uonezjueBio ASIOVE VSO
BE' S vl- 000 000 BE¥ES PL- 000 000 a0 [eba gz Ilem-uoneziiowy
8Eves'vlL 00’0 000 e ves'pl 000 000 sead |ebe aoueu|d 82 lI8M
0000061~ 00’0 000 00°000°G1L- 000 000 a4 jebiaT joM puog-uoneziowy
00°000's1 000 000 00°000'S1 000 000 junp-saad [ebe ssueuyey puog
96'GLLl I 00’0 000 96 GLLVL- 000 000 pazjjowy s1S07 pucyd Z861
096'G2L'vL 000 000 86'GLL'PL 000 000 g)s0) puocg zZ86l
00'9€9'0L 000 000 00’0 000 00'9€9'01L 83d0 suonnquiuod-smo|jng palajsQ-Z Jameg
00'SEQ'0L 000 000 000 00'SEQ'0L 000 g3d40 suopnquuod-smoijng palaiag-¢ lemes
00'€2z' e o0 000 000 00’0 00'EeT'E g3d0 suolnquiuod-smoiing palejeg-) Jomag
Q0'BS8'LY 00’0 000 00'8S8'Ly 000 000 g3d0 uelinqliud) sMoing pauajag-iajem
06'8.8'88 000 00’0 000 00'0 05'B.B'88 Z 19Mag-SMOoINQ pauajeq
06'6€6'66E 000 000 06°6£6'66¢ 00'0 000 J2JBM-SMOIIN0O pellaleg
00'8.98'88 000 0o0c 000 oo'elg'eg 000 £ Jamag TN-sme|np pelajag
05'L90°'LIE 000 00’0 000 0o'o 05°190°LLE | Jamag-sMoInQ pausjeqd
§}assy 84O
65'860'26E'0 000 p1'1¥G'GPlL  ¥B'¥BG'ZGE'E cv.vmkmmm L9°L Fv.mmv. l §jossy paxid |ejo L
88 LEP P 000 g8’ LEY ¥ 000 00'0 00’0 o|iir0aISED | BUOZ JUSILLIBAOH-UCNE)DaIda paje|nwnoaoy
|ejol Z duoz | suo? | aucz ¢ auo? Z auoz
pung A0  a||lA0diseD ajjiaonsen  Bupue ssoy } suoz
pund aAco pund Jajep pund Jomag pund Jamasg
£20Z ‘1€ Ay jo sy
sse|) Aq joaysg asuejeg siseq jeniooy
£2/9L/80

J0L)SIq SO2IAIaS AJlunwiwio ) a{JIA0LISED) Wd 2021



¥ jo ¢ abed

Z6'C0L'PLE'ET  ZE29€'Z8S  00°ZZ8'0LY  LS'8S8P°L60'OL  S9'BLO'L90'Z ¥ 620°'E9E°0)
69'/G0'026'ZZ TE'LOE'Z8E  00'22ZB'OLy  E0'Z06'088'6  96'095'vE0'C 81'GoP' L1201
8G°LERA'EGE'L  G6°19B8'CE  £6'10L'SEL  95'995'€oE gl1'168'L6 86'60F'109
GL'88L'0L¥'8  90'€62'062 [C20P'288- QL9P'8LP'E LE'ZBG'GED'L Spgleleb'e
00'295'L9L 000 000 000 000 00'2es'L9.2
00'gLL'PES'E 000 000 00°2L2'PES'E 000 000
L¥6v8°20L 000 000 000 Ly'6¥B2ol 000
2o'eee’LL 000 000 000 co8ee'LL 000
SLpiL'SSE'S 000 000 000 000 GL'¥LL'GSE'S
vreel'ees 000 #PZZL'GES 000 000 000
LE'2LL'E8 lEChi'es 000 000 00’0 000
22'980'048'C 000 000 2L°980'048'C 000 000
£F'919'88E 00°0 00'0 mv.Em_voN mw.mmv_mn 92'vZ29'LSL
00 26 682Z- 000 00’0 51 GZZ0EL- DS L6 8e- SL'¥ZZ 0EL-
00°265'1L2 000 000 000 000 00'265'Le
00265'12 000 000 000 00'265'LE 000
000.5'GL 000 000 000 000 000.5'sL
0029’6 000 000 00'291°L6 000 000
05 E£5'06- 000 000 000 05 €£5'05- 000
GLI8E 122 000 000 Gl'ige'lze- 000 000
GZ988'0lL- 000 000 000 000 GZ'958'9L 1
0%'0£5'05- 000 000 000 000 05'0£5'05"
£9'8£0'8.9 000 000 mw.cmm{mm 61°66€'1L9 LO'6¥B'LBZ
£1'8E0'8.9 000 000 EZ' 08/ 'VEE BL'66E'LD LO'BY8'LBE
Ga'89e'2stE 000 000 000 000 G8'89E'251
00’000} 000 000 00°'000°L 000 00'0
lejel Z auoz | auozZ | suoZ ¢ auoz T auoz
pun4g A0S  9jlaodses e)jaosiseny  Bujpue-) ssol | auoz
pund Ao09 pund Jsjean pund Jamag pund Jamag

£20Z ‘1t Ael jo SY
sse]) Aq joayg aosuejeqg
Jo13SI(] S9IAIRS HUNWWo) afjirnonse)

03

ALIND3 2 SAILUBYIT TVL0L
Anb3 pejo)
awoatl| JaN
sBujuwieg pauejey - 006€
JoMag-5)as8Y _N«_QWU U] pajseay|
JIJEMN-GlO68Y _ﬂamnﬂo ul pajsoau|
adue|eg pund ¢ auoz m_.__ﬁ:wl_ SSO Jomesg
Bujpue ssopy Jamasg £ auoZ suopippy |epxden
aouejeg pund Z ¢ | SU0Z Jamag
aluejeg pund aj|lAosen-A0g) | JUOZ
aouejeg pund o__OU QION-ADE) Z 3UOZ
ajuejegq pund Jajeps
Anb3
safjlliqe) [ejoL
sepiqer wus) Buo j@oL
Z Jomog-Alngel g3do 1oN
£ Jamasg W Agel 5340 18N
Jamag-Ainqer] 9340 18N
Jajepm-Alige) §340 18N
¢ Jomas TN-Aige uosuad
Jajep-Aynge) uoisuad
I lamag-Ajliqel uojsuad
Z Jomasg- Ajpqe| uojsuag
sapHqe! uue, Buos
sa|iqe|T uaung |goL
sapiqe!T Juaung Jayi0 1e30L
| J8MBS-SMO|JuUl poaLIBlaQq
sysodaq uone|eysu| -1ajepp

s|seq |enisoay
£2/91/30
Wd 20:Z1



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2022 through May 2023

Date Num

Castroville Landmark Sign

10/18/2022 279-Advance
11/01/2022 80922
11/01/2022 B1105
11/01/2022 81304
11/30/2022 81572

01/06/2023 81762
01/18/2023 279

01/26/2023 82057
01/26/2023 82058
03/08/2023 82273
03/08/2023 82274
04/05/2023 82617

04/05/2023 82616
Total Castroville Landmark Sign

Name

Signs By Van Inc.

MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
Signs By Van Inc.

MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Enginesers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, inc,
MNS Enginears, Inc.

Water Projects/Construction In Progress

08/19/2022 81028
10/26/2022 81220
10/26/2022 81395
11/30/2022 81682
12/20/2022 81939

01/25/2023 2022-167
01/26/2023 82169
02/28/2023 62336
04/05/2023 B2686

MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc,
MNS Enginears, Inc.
Puebic Water Resources, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.
MNS Engineers, Inc.

Total Water Projects/Construction In Progress

SCADA System
01/06/2023 22
03/08/2023 000023

Total SCADA System

Building & Improvements
11/01/2022 C3318

Total Building & Improvements

Land

03/16/2023 Wire Trnsfr

Total Land

Projects, Wells & Pipes

09/16/2022 22-1329-01
11/16/2022 22-1320-02...
01/02/2023 Carrection
01/02/2023 Corraction
02/24/2023 411

04/18/2023 421
04/19/2023 M23-028
05/12/2023 22-1358-01

Total Projects, Wells & Pipes

Shop Equipment
10/03/2022 117066
10/16/2022 130232

Total Shop Equipment

Pumping Equipment
08/19/2022 9328
09/16/2022 3281378-02

Rylan Utegaard
Rylan Utegaard

R & S Erection of Monterey Bay, Inc.

Chicago Title Insurance Company

J Johnson & Company, Inc.

J Joehnson & Company, Inc,
J.Johnson & Company
J.Johnson & Company

Pacific Electric Engineering, LLC
Pacific Electric Engineering, LLC
Maggiora Bros. Dhilling, Inc.

J Johnson & Company, Inc.

USA Bluebook
USA Bluebook

Valley Valves & Pumps
Buckels-Smith Electric Co.

Page 1

Memo

05-1P540 Clean C...

Engineering Servic...
Engineering Servic...
Engineering Servic...
CM/ for Castrovitie...
CM/ for Castroville...

05-1P540 Clean C...

CM/| for Castroville...

Caltrans Encroach...

CM/| for Castroville...
Castroville Sign Re...

Castroville Sign
Castrovilla Sign

Engineering Sarvic...
Emergency Deep ...

Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Emergency Deep ...
Waell #6 Project

Emergency Deep ...
Emergnecy Deep ...
Emeargency Deep ...

SCADA Upgradeff...

Programming for S...

Upgrade Front Offi...

Lot Line Adj-Well 1...

Castroville North S...
Castroville North S...

Replaced Water S...

Intalled New Bronz...
Waell Site #4 Well L...
Level Sounders for...
Well #4 Upgrades- ...

New Service Later...

Ultility Locator
Locator Transmitter

Waell #2 Booster Pu...
VFD Drive For BP#...

Debit

40,000.00
920.00
2,760.00
4,485.00
2,330.00
1,955.00
€2,535.28
1,840.00
2,640.00
3,670.00
3,850.00
1,925.00
1,610.00

130,520.28

25,930.19
6.817.50
16,775.00
6,405.00
3,085.00
537.50
1,525.00
1,004.63
€13.76

62,693.57

5,351.13
1,113.33

6,464.46

6,218.34
6,218.34

95,000.00
95,000.00

93,156.31
43,705.95
4,325.74
2,510.83
2,506.47
5,600.83
89,605.50
14,220.00

255,631.63

3,366.70
1,219.25

4,587.95

3,889.30
2,561.81

0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

404



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2022 through May 2023

Date
04/19/2023

Num
144180

Name
Borges & Mahoney Inc.
Total Pumping Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation Water

07/29/2022 July EOM New Customer Deposits
08/31/2022 Aug EOM
09/30/2022 Sept JE 22
10/31/2022 Oct JE 2022
11/30/2022 Nov JE
11/30/2022 Nov JE
12/30/2022 Dec JE
01/31/2023 Jan JE
02/28/2023 Feb JE
03/31/2023 March EOM
04/28/2023 April JE 23
05/31/2023 May EOM JE

Total Accumulated Depreciation Water

Sewer Projects in Progress

08/22/2022 81051 MNS Engineers, Inc.
10/04/2022 81247 MNS Engineers, Inc.
10/04/2022 81219 MNS Engineers, Inc.
11/01/2022 81394 MNS Engineers, Inc.
11/01/2022 81426 MNS Engingers, Inc.
11/30/2022 B1644 MNS Engineers, Inc.
01/06/2023 81877 MNS Engineers, [nc.
01/26/2023 82127 MNS Engineers, Inc.
02/22/2023 2022120160  Monterey County Clerk
03/08/2023 82370 MNS Engineers, Inc.
04/05/2023 82701 MNS Engineers, Inc.

Total Sewer Projects in Progress

Castroville Sewer Lines

08/19/2022 22-0000-101  J Johnson & Company, Inc.
01/06/2023 22-1344-01 J Johnson & Company, Inc.
01/25/2023 22-1344-02 J Johnson & Company, Inc.

Total Castroville Sewer Lines

Accumulated Depreciation Zone 1 Sewer

07/29/2022 July EOM New Custorner Deposits
08/31/2022 Aug EOM
09/30/2022 Sept JE 22
10/31/2022 Oct JE 2022
11/30/2022 Nov JE
12/30/2022 Dec JE
01/31/2023 Jan JE
02/28/2023 Feb JE
03/31/2023 March EOM
04/28/2023 April JE 23
05/31/2023 May EOM JE

Total Accumulated Depreciation Zone 1 Sewer

Accumulated Depr. Zone 2-Sewer

07/29/2022 July EOM New Customer Deposils
08/31/2022 Aug EOM

09/30/2022 Sept JE 22

10/31/2022 Oct JE 2022

11/30/2022 Nov JE

12/30/2022 Dec JE

01/31/2023 Jan JE

02/26/2023 Fab JE

03/31/2023 March EOM

Page 2

Memo Debit Credit
Cell for Chlorinators 1,862.60
8,313.71 0.00
Accumulated Depr... 27,846.13
Monthly Accumulat... 24,846,117
Accumulated Depr... 24,846.17
Monthly accumulat... 24,846.17
Monthly Accumulat... 27.846.17
Aug, Sept & Octob... 9,000.00
Accumulated Depr... 27,846.17
Accumulated Depr... 27.846.17
Monthly Accumulat... 27,846.17
Monthly Accumulat... 27,846.17
April Manthly Accu... 27,846.17
Monthly Accumulat... 27,846.17
0.00 306,307.83
Washington Sewr ... 1,687.50
Washington Bypas... 28,601.74
Deslign for Washin... 500.00
Design for Washin... 107.50
Washington Sewer... 29,739.37
Washington Sewr ... 28,448.08
Washington Sewer... 12,516.39
Washington Sewer... 3,052.39
NOD filing fees for ... 2,814.00
Washington Sewer... 10,631.84
Washington Sewer... 6,200.18
124,298.99 0.00
New sewer main a... 21,512,42
Haight St Upgrade ... 14,832.76
Haight Strest Sews... 13,579.91
49,925.09 0.00
Accumulated Depr... 5,083.13
Monthly Accumulat... 5,083.17
Accumulated Depr... 5,083.17
Monthly accumulat... 5,083.17
Monthly Accumulat... 5,083.17
Accumulated Depr... 5,083.17
Accumulated Depr... 5,083.17
Monthly Accumulat... 5,083.17
Monthly Accumulat... 5,083.17
April Monthly Accu... 5,083.17
Monthly Accumulat... 5,083.17
0.00 55,914.83
Accumulated Depr... 1,545.00
Monthly Accumulat... 1,545.00
Accumulated Depr... 1,545.00
Monthly accumulat... 1,545.00
Monthly Accumulat... 1,545.00
Accurnulated Depr... 1,545.00
Accumutated Depr... 1,545.00
Monthly Accumulat... 1,545.00
Monthly Accumulat... 1,545.00

409



Castroville Community Services District

Transaction Detail by Account
July 2022 through May 2023

Page 3

Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit
04/28/2023 April JE 23 April Monthly Accu... 1,545.00
05/31/2023 May EOM JE Monthly Accumulat... 1,545.00

Total Accumulated Depr. Zone 2-Sewer 0.00 16,995.00
Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitaton Project
08/19/2022 81029 MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss Landing Was... 44 .206.99
10/04/2022 B1221 MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss Landing Was... 17,072.50
10/06/2022 81221-A MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss Landing Was... 24,801.52
11/30/2022 81683 MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss Landing Was... 6,757.16
01/18/2023 2022110384  Monterey County Clerk Moss Lanidng WW... 2,814.00
03/08/2023 81408 MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss aznding Was... 16,0932.84
03/08/2023 82337 MNS Engineers, Inc. Moss Landing Was... 15,840.22
Total Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitaton Project 127,586.23 0.00
Accumulated Depreciation Zone 3 Moss Landing
07/28/2022 July EOM New Customer Deposits Accumulated Depr... 2,803.25
08/31/2022 Aug EOM Monthly Accumulat... 2,803.25
05/30/2022 Sept JE 22 Accumulated Depr... 2,803.25
10/31/2022 Oct JE 2022 Monthly accumulat... 2,803.25
11/30/2022 Nov JE Manthly Accumulat... 2,803.25
12/30/2022 Dec JE Accumulated Depr... 2,803.25
01/31/2023 Jan JE Accumulated Depr... 2,803.25
02/28/2023 Feb JE Monthly Accumulat... 2,803.25
03/31/2023 March EOM Monthly Accumulat... 2,803.25
04/28/2023 April JE 23 April Monthly Accu... 2,803.25
05/31/2023 May EOM JE Monthly Accumulat... 2,803.25
Total Accumulated Depreciation Zone 3 Moss Landing 0.00 30,835.75
Accumulated Depreciation-Government Zone 1 Castroville
07/29/2022 July EOM New Custormer Deposils Accumulated Depr... 108.08
0B/31/2022 Aug EOM Monthly Accumulat... 108.08
09/30/2022 Sept JE 22 Accumulated Depr... 108.08
10/31/2022 Qct JE 2022 Monthly accumulat.., 108.08
11/30/2022 Nov JE Monthly Accumulat... 108.08
12/30/2022 Dec JE Accumulated Depr... 108.08
01/31/2023 Jan JE Accumulated Depr... 108.08
02/2B8/2023 Feb JE Monthly Accumulat... 108.08
04/28/2023 April JE 23 March Monthiy Acc... 108.08
04/28/2023 April JE 23 Agril Monthly Accu... 108.08
05/31/2023 May EOM JE Monthly Accumulat... 108.08
Total Accumulated Depreciation-Government Zone 1 Castroville 0.00 1,188.88
TOTAL 871,240.25 411,242.29

{06



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
INTERNAL REPORT

Receipts, Disbursements, and Bank Balances as of June 30, 2023

Ending balance as of May 31, 2023

CHASE BANK, GENERAL FUND - Revenue and Expenses
Beginning Balance
Water Receipts
Walter-Sewer Miscellaneous Receipts
Monterey One Water Sanitation Fees
Property Taxes & User Fees
Bank Fees
Misc. Over/Short
Expenses (Checks Written)
Ending Balance for General Fund

CHASE BANK, CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND
Beginning Balance
New Deposits {opened accounts)
Deposits Returned or Applied to Accounts
Ending Balance for Customer Deposit Fund

LAIF FUND
Beginning Balance
Quarterly Interest Earned: January, April, July, & October
Ending Balance LAIF

CAMP FUND

Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Capital Improve Account
Monthly Interest Earned-Current Yield 5.27%

Ending Balance Camp Federal Security Account

Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Reserves Account
Monthly Interest Earned-Current Yield 5.27%
Ending Balance CAMP Federal Security Account

CalTRUST-INVESTMENT
Beginning Balance Sewer (Zone 1) Medium-Term Account
Income Distribution
Unrealized Gain (Loss)

Ending Balance CalTRUST

New Balance as of June 30, 2023

$15,760,298.50

709,618.65
113,844.17
1,098.74
24,086.85
27,299.18
(88.25)
(20.00)
(162,642.55)

713,196.79

64,984.30
1,960.00
(104.73)

66,849.57

12,129,651.08
0.00

12,129,651.09

125,227.66
539.70

125,767.36

247,743.14
1,067.71

248,810.85

2,483,063.66
6,984.01
{15,296.08)

2,474,751.59

15,759,027.25 |




.‘1 L1/ "

‘\I'u?% p )
7 E PMIA/LAIF Performance Report -s";:

D 4 as of 07/05/23 D A
Quarterly Performance PMIA Average Monthly
Quarter Ended 03/31/23 Effective Yields!!
LAIF Apportionment Rate'?:  2.74 June  3.167
LAIF Earnings Ratio™:  0.00007493902135155 May 2,993
LAIF Administrative Cost™’:  0.34 April 2,870
LAIF Fair Value Factor'™;  0.986510329 March 2.831
PMIA Daily'™;  2.87 February  2.624
PMIA Quarter to Date':  2.63 January 2.425

PMIA Average Life'”; 275

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)
05/31/23
$179.6 billion

Corporate
Commercial Bonds
Time Paper 0.25%
Deposits 4.87% Loans
2.89% 01%%

Certificates of
Deposit/Bank Notes
6.96%

Agencies
20.37%

Treasuries
64.47%

Chart does not inciude $2,938,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.002%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding

Daily rates are now available here. View PMIA Daily Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825
{cl{1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a}.

*The percentuge of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The faw provides that
administrative costs ore not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the fast doy of
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year.

Source
iState of California, Office of the Treasurer
i State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

a8



Ca.lifornia State Treasurer
Fiona Ma, crA

Local Agency Investment Fund July 10, 2023

P.O. Box 942809
Sacramento, CA 94209-0001 LAIF Home
(916) 653-3001 PMIA Average

Monthly Yields

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
OFFICE MANAGER/SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
P.O. BOX 1065

11499 GEIL STREET

CASTROVILLE, CA 95012 e T T

Account Number: SN

June 2023 Statement

Account Summary

Total Deposit: 0.00 Beginning Balance: 12,129,651.09
Total Withdrawal: 0.00 Ending Balance: 12,129,651.09

09



04 Jo g abed
| abeq Aewwing onN wawabeuen 19SSV N4d
L —

e}

dl
T Ayaniepy 01 sAeq sbesany paiyblem

%00°00T

Apopny %00'00T TZ'8LS'PLES =304
///z.ﬁ i 000 000 BaA § JAAQ

S R I i st A
y /%/,/////%/ 00°0 00'0 Sie3l s 0y b

AR AR . .

//,ﬂ/ ///.”/// /x/ﬂ 000 000 S0k p O €
,/,/...//.// VV/////.J/, T 0070 00'0 \ SIEIA E M7
,,;N/,.”//W/////ﬂ// RN 00'0 00'0 steahz 01 1
V/L//%JM; o0'o 00'0 JeaA 1 0) sAep 18T
/o /// /W/f,f 000 000 shep 08T 01 16
,/// 00°0 00'0 sAep 06 01 19
NN N 000 00'0 skep g 01 1€
i 00'G0T 128L5'vLE sAep Og J5pun
JuadIed anjep 19)4ep Buiso|) sBujpjoy otjojiod

uoneao[y 103385 {sBuipjoH swaiuy paxid) vonnouisig Auniep

%00"00T TTRLS'VLES lejol 1T'8LS'vLES T¥°209°T$ =30l
00°007 TT8LS'bLE AUONY SIBMOd IWIOL % LTS TTBLS'BLE 16°209' 100d dWvD
Juasiag anjea 19%1ep Bulsop adAL juswnsasuy  PPEIA IN[eA 3Ie Swodur pue sBUIp|oH 01[0JH0d
waun)  Buiso)d spuspiald ysed
U0ed0] |y JuaLlsaaur MAewwns oljoj3iog
1OTYISIA SADIAYTS . ALINNIWIWOD ITIIAOHLSYD
€202 ‘0€ dung Buipuz yiuoy ay) Jod juswjels Alewwing pajepijosuo)

{ y g L >
UBWIIRIS JUNOIDY ﬂ-.ﬁ. i 3 H”M
{ Y bt



CalTRUST

* PO Box 2709 Investment Account Summary
06/01/2023 through 06/30/2023

Granite Bay, CA 95746
www.caltrust.org

Email: admin@caltrust.org

CALTR T Fax: 402-963-9094
A PUBLIC AGENCY Phone: 833-CALTRUST (225-8787)

SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS
Account Total Shares Net Asset Value Value on Average Cost Cumulative
Fund Number Owned per Share oh Jun 30 ($} Amount {$) Change in
Jun 30 (%) Value ($)
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (N>
CalTRUST Medium Term Fund — 255,656,156 9.68 2.A474,751.59 2,578,613.22 (103,861.63)
Portfolios Total value as of 08/30/2023 2,474,751.69
DETAIL OF TRANSACTION ACTIVITY
Activity Actlvity Amount Amount Balance price per Average Realized
Description Date $ in Shares InShares Share ($) Balance ($) Cost Amt ($) Gain/{Loss)($)
CalTRUST Medium Term Fund CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT Account Number: dENENEIPED
Beginning Balance 06/01/2023 254,934,667 9.74 2,483,063.66
Accrual [ncome DIv Reinvestment 08/30/2023 6,984.01 721489 255,666.156 9.68 2,474,751.69 0.00 0.00
Change In Value (15,296.08)
Closing Balance as of Jun 30 255,666.156 9.68 2,474,751.68

~Ht

Please note that this information should not be construed as tax advice and it is recommended that you consuilt with a tax professional regarding your account.

0000066-0000133 POFT 548513

Page 1 of 2



List of Checks for June 2023

Date Number Name Memo Amount
General Fund Checking
1839-
06/01/2023 1B44  District Employees' Bi-Weekly Net Payroll $ 14,020.71
06/01/2023 1845 VALIC Bi-Weekly Deferred Comp $ 2215.00
06/01/2023 1 Electronic Federal Tax Payment Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 6,278.94
06/01/2023 2 EDD Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 1,083.40
06/01/2023 3 PERS -Employees' Contribution  Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 1,562.04
06/01/2023 4 PERS-Employer Contribution Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 2,090.71
06/01/2023 5 PERS Employees Health Benefits-Monthly $ 17,338.75
06/02/2023 1846  Valley Pacific Petroleum Services Monthly Fuel for Vehicles $ 182.50
06/08/2023 1848 MNS Engineers Emergency Deep Aquifer Project $ 6,427.50 ——
06/09/2023 1849  Optimum Business Services Office Supplies for Printer & Meter  § 286.76
06/09/2023 1850 Pacific Gas & Electric Street Lights Zone 1 & 2 $ 1,844.34
06/09/2023 1851  Elan Financial Services Visa-Eric: Portable Diesel Fuel Tank $ 1,625.65
continued Two Lunch Meetings & Parking Fee § 85.86
06/09/2023 182  Elan Financial Services Visa-Lidia: GM Summit for Eric $ 675.00
continued Monthly Internet Service $ 99.98
06/09/2023 1853  Elan Financial Services Visa-Roberto; Collection 1 $ 50.00
continued Tools & Well Site Supplies $ 264,75
06/15/2023 1854 ACWA JPIA Employees Monthly Dental-Vison-EAl $ 961.62
06/15/2023 1855 Aramark Operators Uniforms, Rstrms & Mats  § 777.75
06/15/2023 1856 California Water Service Co Zone 2 Lift Stations Water Meters $ 42.04
06/15/2023 1857  Castroville Hardware Monthly Parts & Supplies Needed $ 1,035.39
06/15/2023 1858 CCSD Petty Cash-Eric Tynan Postage-letters Re: M L Project 3 100.80
06/15/2023 1859 Core & Main LP Parts & Supplies $ 153.60
06/15/2023 1860 Eudoxio Orozco Jr Monthly Cellular Phone Expense $ 40.00
06/15/2023 1861  Grainger Parts & Supplies $ 176.21
06/15/2023 1862 ICONIX Waterworks (US) Inc Parts & Supplies $ 396.83
06/15/2023 1863 J Johnson & Company Inc Merritt St Main Repair-SignalLoop $  7,110.24 —
06/15/2023 1864 Jonathan Varela Monthly Cellular Phone Expense $ 40.00
06/15/2023 1865 Lidia Santos Maonthly Cellular Phone Expense $ 40.00
06/15/2023 1866 Linde Gas & Equipment Inc Supplies for Well Sites $ 388.26
Caltrans Encroachment Permit
06/15/2023 1867 MNS Engineers Inc for Castroville Sign $ 1,320.00
continued Design for Washington Project 60% § 360.00
Washington Project-Environmental
continued Review & Permitting $ 6,499.91
Caltrans Encroachment Permit
continued for Castroville Sign $ 412.50
continued CMA for Castroville Sign $ 230.00
Washington Project-Environmental
continued Review & Permitting $ 1,609.71
continued Grant Writing-Washington Project $ 2,690.00
06/15/2023 1868 Monterey County Weekly Public Notice-Preliminary Budgets $ 173.25
06/15/2023 1869 Monterey One Water Bi-Monthly Sanitation Fees $ 47.90
06/15/2023 1870 Pacific Gas & Electric Moss Landing Lift Stations-Zone 3 $§ 1,019.40
continued Lift Stations Zone 1 $ 525.10
continued Lift Stations Zone 2 $ 734.83
continued Steel Garage $ 19.72
06/15/2023 1871  Principal Life Insurance Employees Life Insurance Premium  § 107.35
06/15/2023 1872 USA Bluebook Parts & Supplies 5 422.27

b2



Date Number Name Memo Amount

06/15/2023 1873 WM Corporate Service Inc Monthly Waste Disposal Fees $ 70.51
06/15/2023 1874 Zoom Imaging Solutions Copy Fees & Xerox Maintenance $ 182.29
1875-
06/15/2023 18BO  District Employees' Bi-Weekly Net Payroll $ 13,706.39
06/15/2023 1881 VALIC Bi-Weekly Deferred Comp $ 2,215.00
06/15/2023 1 Electronic Federal Tax Payment Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 6,156.36
06/15/2023 2 EDD Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 1,037.90
06/15/2023 3 PERS -Employees' Contribution Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 1,562.04
06/15/2023 4 PERS-Employer Contribution Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 2,090.71
0616/2023 1882  MNS Engineers Inc CM/ Castroville Sign Project $ 1,942.50
06/20/2023 1883  Charter Communications Monthly Internet Service $ 99.99
06/20/2023 1884  GreatAmerica Financial Svcs Monthly Lease of Billing Equipment $ 484.76
06/20/2023 1885 Pacific Gas & Electric Well Sites & Office $ 10,954.21
06/20/2023 1886  Valley Pacific Petroleum Services Fuel for Trucks-Monthly $ 359.94
Replace Front Axle Brakes &
06/21/2023 1887  Golden State Truck & Trailer Rotor on 2007 International Jetter $ 5,038.05
06/23/2023 1888  Aramark Operators Uniforms, Rstrms & Mats  § 477.32
06/23/2023 1BB9  ATRT Monthly Telephone Service $ 244.90
06/23/2023 1890  Eric Tynan Fuel Expense-Tahoe GM Summit $ 173.12
Moss Landing Wastewater System
06/23/2023 1891  MNS Engineers Inc Rehabilitation Project $ 2,697.19
06/23/2023 1892  Noland, Hamerly, Etienne, Hoss Legal Fees $ 1,836.00
06/23/2023 1893  Pacific Gas & Electric Street Lights Zone 1 & 2 $ 699.49
06/23/2023 1894  Verizon Wireless GM & LD Oper Cells & Modem 3 138.97
1895-
06/29/2023 1900  District Employees' Bi-Weekly Net Payroll $ 13,504.34
06/29/2023 1901  VALIC Bi-Weekly Deferred Comp $ 2215.00
06/29/2023 1 Electronic Federal Tax Payment Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 6,143.24
06/29/2023 2 EDD Bi-Weekly Payroll Taxes $ 1.027.20
06/29/2023 3 PERS -Employees' Contribution  Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 1,562.04
06/29/2023 4 PERS-Employer Contribution Bi-Weekly Retirement Benefits $ 2,090.71
06/29/2023 1902 Cosme Padilla 6-20-2023 Board Meeting $ 91.45
06/29/2023 1903  Gregory K MacMillan 6-20-2023 Board Meeting $ 91.45
06/28/2023 1904 James Cochran 6-20-2023 Board Meeting $ 91.45
06/29/2023 1905 Ronald J. Stefani 6-20-2023 Board Meeting $ 91.45
Total General Fund-Checking $162,642.55
Customer Deposit Fund
06/30/2023 117  Castroville CSD June Closures % 60.00
Total Customer Deposit Fund $ 60.00

~13



Calendar for Year 2023 (United States)

January
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 56 7
8 9 10 11 1213 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

6:0 140 21:@ 280

February
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 1
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28

50 13:0 20:@ 27:©

March
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 91011
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

70 140 21:@® 28:©

April

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

6:0 13:0 20:@0 27.©

May
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

50 1220 19@ 27.0

June
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

3:0 10:0 18:@ 26:0

July

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31

3:0 90 17.0 250

August
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 3t

1.0 80 16:@ 240 300

September
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

60 14@ 22.0 29:0

October
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 56 7
8 9 10 11 1213 14
15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

60 14@ 21:© 280

November
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 N1
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30

50 13:@0 200 27.0

December

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25 26 27 28 29 30

3

50 120 190 26:0

Holidays:
Jan1 New Year's Day Jun 19 Juneteenth
Jan2 'New Year's Day'dayoff | Jul4 Independence Day

Jan 16 Martin Luther King Jr. Day

Feb 20 Presidents' Day
May 29 Memorial Day

Sep 4 Labor Day
Oct9 Columbus Day

Nov 11 Veterans Day

Nov 23 Thanksgiving Day

Dec 25 Christmas Day

Nov 10 Veterans Day' day off |

Calendar generated on www.timeanddate.com/calendar

~j14



